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Life full of happiness and contentment,

where imagination becomes reality,

connecting friends across the world,

communicating anywhere and anytime,

and new experiences bringing joy to life.

Everything is possible with NAVER.
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NAVER is committed to creating a world that connects the past and the 

present, the people, and the networks. Having opened new chapters in 

Korea’s ICT history with innovative services and leading technology,

NAVER is now evolving into being a next-generation technology platform.

This reflects our philosophy to embed state-of-the-art technology

into the daily lives of everyone as a useful and convenient tool.

with NAVERExperience A Whole New Horizon 
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Redefine Paradigm 

In an era of inundating information and countless products, 

users opt for faster and more relevant search results. 

Utilizing deep learning technology that understands users' 

intention backed by big data, NAVER pinpoints information 

that best meets users' preferences and tastes. NAVER 

leads the new paradigm of search service as we endeavor 

to deliver value-added information to users.

with NAVER
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Connect People Beyond Borders

Today, users enjoy a happier and more convenient life as 

they communicate with NAVER anywhere and anytime. 

NAVER’s diverse and differentiated services bring users  

closer while giving them opportunities to share daily lives 

with more friends. NAVER delivers new experience and 

values to users with its innovative and rich contents, taking 

connection to the next level.

with NAVER
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NAVER is rising as a service provider that delivers new and special experiences 

to global users. ‘LINE’, ‘SNOW’, ‘V LIVE’, ‘Grafolio’, ‘Café PLUG’, and ‘Webtoon’ 

have already established themselves as a global platform. NAVER is also 

accelerating its global business by supporting domestic content creators to 

enter overseas markets, cooperating with global institutions, and directly 

investing in foreign promising technology startups. We will continue to sharpen 

our creativity and technologies to drive further growth on the global stage.

Unleash Your Potential with NAVER
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Find New Possibilities 

NAVER is gearing up its technology development to generate new values 

and reinforce future competitiveness. Our AI-based R&D projects – cloud

 AI platform ‘CLOVA’, autonomous driving car, robotics ‘M1’, neural machine 

translation app ‘Papago’, and web browser ‘WHALE’ - will become driving 

forces of our future growth and leadership. NAVER will concentrate its 

resources on advancing AI technology to compete with global corporations 

while collaborating with local and foreign businesses and discovering 

competent talents.

with NAVER
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Forge Ahead, Rise to a Challenge 

NAVER’s open platform strategy ensures that both startups and ventures 

have an equal opportunity to grow. They deliver rich information to users 

through NAVER’s sophisticated business solutions and infrastructure, 

enhancing their brand recognition and competitiveness. Also, creators can 

share their contents with users around the world via NAVER open markets, 

which can lead to revenue generation and expansion of creativity domain. 

Our open platform strategy will make great contribution to sustainable 

growth and establishing the virtuous circle of the Internet.

with NAVER
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CEO’S LETTER 
The year 2016 was a fundamentally important year for the future of NAVER. We have laid the 
foundation to become a global player by harnessing our challenging spirit and innovation,
while at the same time taking actions for co-prosperity with small businesses and startups.

NAVER’s commitment to global expansion has throughout the year. LINE, which continues to grow by 

offering a wide variety of services and contents, was successfully listed on the New York Stock Exchange 

and Tokyo Stock Exchange in July. This feat will allow LINE to make another leap forward to go beyond the 

messenger services into become a mobile platform. Furthermore, the image and video chatting app 

SNOW, which launched in September 2015, has recorded more than 130 million downloads, enjoying the 

rapid growth in popularity in the global market.

In the domestic market, we continued to promote shared growth with small businesses and startups. 

NAVER, as the largest online platform for content creators and small businesses in Korea, launched the 

“Project Flower” program to help fledgling entrepreneurs with creative ideas to run business, create 

sustainable growth, and ultimately encourage them to go global.

As a result, over 10,000 new online merchants joined NAVER and more than 5,500 small businesses saw 

their annual sales exceed KRW 100 million in 2016. NAVER also helped create marketing channels for 

contents creators of different genres, ensuring that the value of their creation is fully appreciated.

The number of content creators with NAVER is on the rise as we diversify platforms through “Designer 

Window” for fashion designers, “Art Window” for pure art creators, “Musician League” online marketplace 

for undiscovered musicians and “Grafolio Market” where anyone can sell digital contents.

Moreover, NAVER has strived to give content creators more chances to expand overseas. A well-known 

illustrator “Puuung” and an art studio “Something” launched their works on Amazon.com, and many 

Grafolio artists are publishing their illustration books in the overseas markets. Beauty creators who are 

trend-setters of beauty contents have also received opportunities to introduce themselves overseas via 

our “V LIVE” platform.

In 2017, NAVER pledges to evolve into a global technology platform while reinforcing supports for 
shared growth with content creators and small businesses.

Today, state-of-the-art technologies such as AI and autonomous driving are no longer confined to labs but 

rapidly interwoven with our lives. At "DEVIEW", the developer conference held in October 2016, NAVER 

showcased its cutting-edge technologies that included autonomous driving car, “Papago,” a self-

developed neural machine translation app equipped with artificial intelligence, a new browser “Whale,” and 

“M1,” a robot that creates photo realistic 3D indoor map. More recently, we unveiled a plan to launch a AI 

platform “Clova” and smart speaker “Wave” at the MWC 2017.

NAVER promises to transform into a technology platform that best serves the needs of advertisers, 

startups, and content creators by incorporating our cutting-edge technologies into the ecosystem we 

create.

Supports for global expansion of contents will also continue. By harnessing diverse service platforms such 

as LINE, Webtoon, and V LIVE, we will make a concerted effort to introduce Korea’s competitive web 

contents and creative works to global users. 

Lastly, NAVER will be proactive in the domestic investment as well. We plan to more than double the 

investments in developing domestic contents and technologies over the next five years to about KRW 500 

billion. KRW 50 billion will be exclusively earmarked on helping grow startups while another KRW 50 billion 

will be spent on building a healthy ecosystem for content creation and global expansion.

In 2017, NAVER will continue to drive major shifts and rise to challenges in services and businesses to 

remain committed to delivering values to shareholders and becoming a respected company.

Thank you.

CEO of NAVER Corporation, Sang-hun Kim

CEO'S LETTER
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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2016 FINANCIAL HIgHLIgHTS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income

FY2015 FY2016 % Change

Operating Revenue  3,253.9  4,022.6 23.6%

       Advertising  2,322.4  2,967.0 27.8%

       contents 848.8  924.9 9.0%

       other 82.7  130.8 58.1%

Operating Expenses  2,423.7  2,920.6 20.5%

       labor Expenses  714.9  873.3 22.2%

       commission Expenses  902.2  1,141.5 26.5%

       marketing Expenses  304.6  303.4 (0.4%)

       depreciation Expenses 152.9 162.9 6.5%

       Telecommunication Expenses  103.7  114.1 10.0%

       Employee Benefits  75.2  90.8 20.8%

       other 170.1 234.6 37.9%

Operating Income  830.2  1,102.0 32.7%

Operating Margin (%) 25.5% 27.4% 1.9%p

Profit Before Income Tax 823.2 1,131.8 37.5%

Net Income 517.0 759.1 46.8%

FY2015 FY2016 % Change

Operating Revenue  2,141.3  2,496.5 16.6%

       Advertising  1,985.2  2,357.8 18.8%

       contents  124.8  101.0 (19.1%)

       other  31.3  37.7 20.4%

Operating Expenses  1,314.8  1,528.1 16.2%

       labor Expenses  238.4  297.7 24.9%

       commission Expenses  823.1  979.0 18.9%

       marketing Expenses  156.0  150.5 (3.5%)

       depreciation Expenses 32.9 32.1 (2.6%)

       Telecommunication Expenses  0.7  0.6 (12.6%)

       Employee Benefits  25.6  29.5 15.3%

       other 38.0 38.8 1.9%

Operating Income  826.5  968.4 17.2%

Operating Margin (%) 38.6% 38.8% 0.2%p

Profit Before Income Tax 848.5 909.7 7.2%

Net Income 642.6 651.8 1.4%

Condensed Statement of Financial Position Condensed Statement of Financial Position

FY2015 FY2016 % Change

Total Assets  4,385.9  6,370.6 45.3%

Total Liabilities  2,116.3  2,241.0 5.9%

Total Shareholders’ Equity  2,269.6  4,129.6 82.0%

FY2015 FY2016 % Change

Total Assets  3,383.7  3,856.5 14.0%

Total Liabilities  1,008.0  1,147.1 13.8%

Total Shareholders’ Equity  2,375.7  2,709.4 14.0%

(Units: KrW in billions, %) (Units: KrW in billions, %)

(Units: KrW in billions, %) (Units: KrW in billions, %)

SEpArATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* Net income includes profit for the year from discontinued operations.

*   We plan to adopt more systematic classification of revenue, expense, and major indices that satisfy the changes in our services and businesses from 2017, thereby 

providing shareholders and investors with our operating performances in more transparent and efficient manner.

* Net income includes profit for the year from discontinued operations.

*   We plan to adopt more systematic classification of revenue, expense, and major indices that satisfy the changes in our services and businesses from 2017, thereby 

providing shareholders and investors with our operating performances in more transparent and efficient manner.

2016 FINANCIAL HIgHLIgHTS
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Launched Neural Machine Translation App ‘Papago’

NAVER launched ‘Papago’, a cutting-edge neural machine 

translation app equipped with artificial intelligence, in August 2016. 

NAVER LABS, R&D division that develops future technologies, has 

developed ‘Papago’ by integrating its voice recognition, speech 

synthesis, machine translation, and letter recognition technologies. 

‘Papago’ currently offers translations for four languages: Korean, 

Japanese, Chinese, and English, and has the ability to translate text 

and speech as well as texts embedded in images. ‘Papago’ also 

offers features that makes user experience far more convenient, 

such as adding contextual images to clarify words with multiple 

meanings and automatic conversion of the currency within the text 

on a real time basis. Going forward, NAVER will focus on enhancing 

the quality of its translation and on making it a useful tool for 

anyone travelling to Korea and not acquainted with Korean.

Spun off NAVER Labs to Focus on Future Technologies

In a bid to swiftly cope with the fierce competition, we spun-off our 

R&D division for robotics and autonomous driving and incorporated 

NAVER LABS. The R&D division, set up in 2013, has focused on 

developing internet service software, as well as future technologies 

with regard to robotics, autonomous driving, and smart home 

which are closely linked to our life. Joint researches with overseas 

R&D institutes and researchers have also been expanding. The 

newly organized NAVER LABS will devote itself to the development 

of Ambient Intelligence-based products and services as well as 

robotics and self-driving technologies.

AT A gLANCE

AT A gLANCE

Unveiled NAVER’s LIVE Search Technology 

The ‘NAVER LIVE SEARCH 2016’ Colloquium, where search experts 

discuss about NAVER’s search technology, was held in March 2016. 

The participants included NAVER’s search developers as well as 

researchers from 21 university research institutes across the nation 

including Seoul National University, KAIST, and POSTECH. Through 

the Colloquium, the participants had a chance to better understand 

NAVER’s research projects regarding context, deep learning, 

and search system for the Live Search service and to share 

technological know-how. LIVE Search epitomizes the direction 

of our search service that aims to meet mobile users’ contextual 

intentions and to provide them with the most relevant and updated 

results. NAVER concentrates its technological resources on deeply 

understanding ‘user’ and ‘data’ for better LIVE Search service.

Advanced NAVER’s Shopping Platform

‘NAVER Shopping Window’, a platform to easily showcase offline 

shops’ products on the internet, has witnessed the economic 

value creation of the O2O service. An increasing number of shops 

in ‘NAVER Shopping Window’ has seen their online sales match 

or even exceed their offline sales, which in many cases resulted 

in new job creation. Also, we implemented chat bots backed with 

AI in ‘NAVER TalkTalk’ to improve user experience for ‘NAVER 

Shopping Window’. The chat bots allow users to consult, make 

orders, and check delivery status even when the sellers are not 

available. ‘NAVER Pay’, launched in June 2015, has become a 

leading payment solution for small shops by delivering sales growth 

to shop owners and convenient payment experience to users. With 

120,000 merchants as of the end of 2016, NAVER Pay contributes 

greatly to sales growth of NAVER Shopping thanks to convenience 

and safety in payment.
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AT A gLANCE

Rated ‘Excellent’ in the Shared growth Evaluation Index

NAVER received ‘Excellent’ rating in the win-win Index for the first 

time as an internet platform service provider. The win-win Index, 

released by the Korea Commission for Corporate Partnership, is 

measured by evaluating the domestic companies’ efforts to coexist 

with suppliers and the level of shared growth. In 2016, a total of 

151 companies were evaluated. In particular, NAVER was highly 

recognized for the following attempts: support for sales channel 

expansion both at home and overseas; consultation on productivity 

improvement; energy saving by building inspection and repairing; 

and creative activities for shared growth. 

Named One of the Top 100 Innovative Companies for
Three Consecutive Years

NAVER has become the only Korean company to be selected as one 

of the world’s most innovative companies by Forbes for three years 

in a row. Forbes evaluates the innovativeness of global companies 

and announces the list every year. NAVER ranked 13th on the list in 

2016, followed by LG Household & Health Care and Amore Pacific 

at 19th and 21st, respectively. NAVER, in particular, jumped eight 

notches to 13th from the last year.

Raised a KRW 50 Billion Fund Aimed at Fostering Contents 
Business with SoftBank Ventures

NAVER has joined hands with SoftBank Ventures to raise the SB 

Next Media Innovation Fund, size of KRW 50 billion, to mainly 

invest in cultivating the contents industry. This fund will preferably 

invest in supporting tech startups specializing in webtoon, video, 

game, and AR/VR in order to enrich contents and invigorate the 

contents ecosystem. In addition, the scope of investment targets 

will be further extended to the global stage and SoftBank Group’s 

worldwide network will be utilized to help promising startups make 

their debut in the global market.

Renewed SOC2 and SOC3 (SysTrust) Certification for
Three Consecutive Years

NAVER PAY has obtained SOC2 and SOC3, the international 

certification for privacy protection, for the first time as a payment 

solution in Korea. In addition, NAVER has successfully renewed 

SOC2 and SOC3 (SysTrust) certification for 16 categories in 

seven personalized services including mail, contact, and calendar 

for three consecutive years. These results ensure that NAVER’s 

personal information management system and internal control fully 

satisfy the global standard.

Selected as an Official Sponsor of the 2018 PyeongChang 
Winter Olympics

NAVER became an official sponsor in the Internet portal sector for 

the 2018 PyeongChang Winter Olympics. NAVER plans support 

the event through our services including search, webtoon, map, 

display advertisement, and NAVER TV in return for the rights to use 

its brand and intellectual properties during the event. NAVER will 

make the most of its know-how and infrastructure accumulated 

from servicing various sporting events in supporting the 2018 

PyeongChang Olympic Games to attain a magnificent success.

NAVER LABS Ranked Second in the VQA Challenge

NAVER LABS ranked second in the Visual Question Answering 

(VQA) sector at the ‘Conference on Computer Vision and Pattern 

Recognition (CVPR 2016)’ held in Las Vegas on June 26, 2016. 

CVPR is the biggest computer vision and pattern recognition 

academy in the world and 2nd prize is the highest rank to be 

awarded to a Korean firm so far. NAVER LABS’ AI team took the 

honor with its self-developed Dual Attention Network (DAN), an 

algorithm that automatically extracts several significant areas and 

words from given images to come out with a correct answer.

AT A gLANCE



NAVER is committed to delivering new 

experiences and higher-value services to 

users.

Our big data-driven search service ensures 

more relevant, dynamic, and advanced results, 

and our upgraded video contents service 

helps users see live information. Moreover, we 

have enhanced our service platforms to 

further support the growth of SMEs and 

content creators while launching AI-based 

innovative services.

Going forward, NAVER will continue to not only 

develop future technologies for more various 

services and contents, but also to accelerate 

its overseas expansion in order to further 

solidify its status as the industry leader.

026   NAVER

028   NEW TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVES 

030   LINE

031   SNOW & OTHERS

Service Overview
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Two key words, ‘technology’ and ‘global’ have been at the center of the evolution of 
NAVER’s service platforms. The evolution connotes a transformation into a tool 
readily available for not just the users and small business owners but content 
creators as well. NAVER pledges to deliver special new experiences to users around 
the world by consistently creating new contents that can be well accepted in the 
global market.

Korea’s No.1 Internet
Search Portal

WWW.nAVEr.com
NAVER MOBILE

As of december 2016

Number of daily unique visitors

27 million

NAVER

As of december 2016

Number of subscribers

42 million

Live Search to Provide Dynamic Search Results

NAVER LIVE Search aims to meet mobile users’ increasing demand for instant, relevant search 

results. To that end, NAVER developed the ‘C-Rank (Creator Rank)’ algorithm which measures 

creators’ popularity based on user feedbacks over a certain period of time. This technology 

ensures the delivery of differentiated and customized information to users. For example, the 

‘Image Timeline’ service which shows images of celebrities in a time sequence allows users 

to easily understand the stories of celebrities and enhances the value of the information 

in the image. We also provide ‘LIVE Travel’ service, which recommends customized tourist 

destinations that meet users’ search intention. NAVER will make its best efforts to help users 

experience more dynamic and live search results going forward.

Upgrade Service Quality and Contents

NAVER has continued to upgrade our services with an inclusion of mobile and PC main 

renewal. For children’s portal, ‘Junior Naver,’ we added on more contents, opened brand 

channels, and enhanced UI, offering optimized video contents services for kids.

NAVER News added audio service for Korean news which had been limited to English news 

before, and NAVER Blog secured wider connectivity with social network services and other 

communication channels to strengthen the role as the SNS hub. As for NAVER Knowledge 

Encyclopedia, we introduced new contents created with industry experts and adopted the 

machine learning technology to better optimize in the mobile environment. 

Furthermore, following the Korean-Chinese dictionary, Vietnamese-Korean dictionary was 

launched. Going forward, we will do our best to cover more languages and to help more users 

having problem with Korean.

Introduce New Services to Help Users and Small Businesses

NAVER introduced ‘Shopping recommendation by specific user base’ and ‘overseas travel 

search’ services which provide customized search results by analyzing the big data on user’s 

search intention. ‘DATA Lab’, a big data portal launched in January 2016, allows users to easily 

search private and public data and utilize those data to create value in many ways.

Moreover, the ‘regional interest’ function which shows users’ interest by region and industry 

makes it possible for small businesses to conduct marketing activities and inventory control 

more effectively. 

The ‘gifting’ service of ‘NAVER Shopping’ enables users to easily send and receive goods 

on the Store Farm. In addition, ‘NAVER Shopping Window,’ which has nation-wide user base, 

is improving its user experience through functions such as reservation, NAVER talktalk, and 

payment. ‘NAVER Pay’ is adding offline reservation services for concerts, camping ground, 

and hotel restaurant to deliver differentiated experiences to users.

Other new services include ‘Light Home’, a simplified version of NAVER which provides faster 

access to NAVER services when travelling, and introduced ‘NAVER Place’ vertical on mobile, 

where users can share daily news and stories as well as information on community festivals, 

cultural events, and lectures.

Provide Differentiated Video Contents

The global live video streaming platform ‘V LIVE’ has expanded the scope of its contents 

portfolio to K-Pop, beauty, fashion, musical, TV drama, genre music and more. The ‘Channel 

Guide Page’ was launched to help ‘V LIVE’ users to easily search within the app.

Moreover, celebrities and their fans are able to enjoy differentiated contents and experiences 

through ‘V LIVE+’, ‘Multicam’, ‘V STORE’, and ‘V Fansubs’ services which are backed by 

NAVER’s cutting-edge video technologies.

Continue to Expand and Enrich Contents

NAVER is committed to providing more various contents.

As part of this effort, NAVER signed an agreement with British Council to introduce the British 

culture, art, and lifestyle to Koreans. 

We also joined forces with the Korean Association for Conservation of Nature to create 

contents on 100 species of endangered wild animals in Korea which have been designated 

as Class 1 and 2 by the Ministry of Environment. Upon the completion, the information will be 

provided through the ‘NAVER Knowledge Encyclopedia’. 

Meanwhile, ‘NAVER Knowledge Encyclopedia’ launched the ‘Greek and Roman Mythology 

Character Encyclopedia’ which contains detailed information along with 3,000 images of 800 

key figures from the mythology based on the analysis of users’ search words. 

Other new contents include ‘NAVER Music Vertical Tab on Mobile’ that offers extensive 

information on a variety of musicians and concerts at a glance, and ‘Book Culture Vertical Tab’ 

where users are able to enjoy and share information with regards to book, musical, play, and 

exhibition.

Rise to Challenges toward the global Market

NAVER has been making continuous efforts to expand into the global market.

With a matchless position in the domestic webtoon market, NAVER Webtoon actively sought 

to expand its presence to markets outside Korea, and was able to secure more than 18 million 

monthly users overseas just after two years into the expansion, outnumbering the domestic 

user base.

The global live video streaming platform ‘V LIVE’ backed by our cutting-edge technologies has 

further contributed to creating live video contents and expanding our service to the world.

Moreover, the image and multi-media messaging app ‘SNOW’ has been gaining popularity in 

Korea, Japan, China, and southeast Asia. SNOW recorded over 100 million downloads in the 

global market since its launch in September 2015.

Meanwhile, the SDK (Software Development Kit), which helps mobile game users to stay within 

the app while using café services, was upgraded and renamed ‘NAVER Café Plug’ to give spurs 

to globalization. Starting with the mobile strategic board game ‘Pirates War’ which is available 

in 153 countries, the SDK will be applied to around 30 global games. Going forward, ‘NAVER 

Café Plug’ will evolve into a leading communication tool for global mobile game users by 

continuously adding language supports and expanding platforms to mobile web and PC web.

NAVER
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WHALE

NAVER launched the beta version of a new web 

browser WHALE which had been developed by

our own web browser and AI technologies for 

the past five years. WHALE, one of our Ambient 

Intelligence projects, was developed to change the 

way users search information on the web.

Key feature of WHALE lies in ‘omni-tasking’ which 

allows users to process all tasks in a single

window without having to open multiple tabs.

Other convenient functions include quick search, 

automatic translation, pop-up management, and 

built-in security system.

Papago

Papago is a cutting-edge neural machine

translation app developed by integrating NAVER’s 

voice recognition, speech synthesis, machine 

translation, and letter recognition technologies.

Papago will be a useful assistance when users

travel to foreign countries or meet foreigners.

With the neural machine translation technology in 

place, Papago provides more accurate translation 

service that understands the context of sentence

as it translates whole sentences instead of each 

phase. NAVER will continue to enhance the quality 

of its translation while applying the neural machine 

translation technology to other services.

Robotics (M1)

NAVER has been focusing on developing core 

technologies to build robots that can take various 

motions and move freely. NAVER LABS developed 

AI-powered robot ‘M1’ equipped with laser scanner 

and high-performance camera. This robot is used 

to create photo realistic 3D indoor map of offices, 

shopping malls, and movie theaters.

Established in 2013, ‘NAVER LABS’ has been committed to research and 
development of technological convergence with regard to robotics, mobility, and 
smart home which are closely connected to our daily lives, and have been 
expanding on conducting joint researches with overseas R&D institutes and 
researchers. NAVER’s future R&D focus will be on ‘Ambient Intelligence,’ where 
technology understands users’ environment and offers right services at right time. 
CLOVA, mobility, robotics (M1), Papago, and browser WHALE are some of the core 
products we will be working on.

NEW TECHNOLOgY INITIATIVES

NEW TECHNOLOgY INITIATIVES

CLOVA

CLOVA is a platform that incorporates various 

AI technologies including voice and visual 

recognition, artificial neural machine 

translation, and conversational engine which 

work based on the five human senses.

The Clova Brain, consisting of modules and 

engines to handle natural language process, 

conversation control, artificial neural machine 

translation, and search, plays a key role in 

autonomously analyzing situations recognized 

by the Clova interface and presenting optimized 

solutions. NAVER and LINE plans to phase 

CLOVA in services and launch a relevant app 

as well as AI speaker WAVE and smart display 

FACE. We will also expand cooperation with 

partner firms in each field to adopt CLOVA to 

more devices and services.

Mobility (Autonomous Car)

NAVER is making continuous technological efforts to

provide users with services that take part of everyday life.

As part of this effort, we signed an agreement with a 

car-sharing company, Green Car, to develop connected 

car building an infotainment platform to provide Green Car 

customers with NAVER’s map, navigation, music, and

search services. Through the platform, users will be able

to experience advanced car sharing services that ensure

more pleasant driving environment.

In addition, NAVER is working to develop an autonomous

car that can become a new gateway to our services.

Current level stands at level 3 according to US National 

Highway Traffic Safety Administration and we plan to

further enhance our technologies going forward.
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LINE has evolved from a messenger into a global mobile platform that connects 
people, businesses, and services. Music, game, easy payment, low-end phone, 
delivery, motorbike call service are few examples of online and offline apps that are 
connected to LINE that provide more convenience user experience.

Global Mobile
Contents Platform

line.me/KO

Satisfy User Needs by Adding Innovative Functions

‘LINE Live’ is a live broadcasting app with over 68 million users in Japan. Since the launch in 

December 2015, LINE Live has attracted more than 100 million plays in a cumulative manner. 

In August 2016, we opened up the live broadcasting function to general users, leading to an 

increase in the number of monthly active users.

LINE TV is also expanding user base by offering differentiated contents mainly in Thailand, and 

LINE News and LINE Today are seeing a steady growth of MAUs.

‘B612’ has emerged as one of the most loved photography apps by recording 250 million 

accumulated downloads since its launch in August 2014. ‘B612’ aims to become a fun 

communication tool by adding trendy functions like ‘Play’ which allows users to add on 

messages to make a webtoon image out of selfies and videos. 

LINE integrated ‘B612’ and other camera-based services into ‘SNOW’ which has evolved as 

a global app with the aim of further enhancing competitiveness in the visual communication 

market where competition is increasingly fierce.

Evolve into a Global Mobile Platform beyond a Messenger

LINE’s mission is to transform itself from a messenger to a leading ‘smart portal’ that connects 

a wide variety of services by adding new services and features.

LINE announced a plan to launch a new communication tool combining the advantages of 

LINE Messenger and Works Mobile through a business partnership with Works Mobile Japan. 

Also, LINE formed a business strategic alliance and acquired 20% stake in Yume no Machi 

Souzou linkai, the food delivery portal, in an attempt to enter into the O2O market in Japan.

LINE operates ‘LINE Man’ that specializes in delivering daily necessities in Thailand, and 

entered the Indonesian O2O market by partnering with a local motorbike taxi service provider 

Go-jek. Other new services include virtual beauty camera app ‘LOOKS’, food-specialized 

camera app ‘FOODIE’, and action selfie cam ‘EGG’ featuring various special effects and 

filters to create fun images and videos. Going forward, we will focus on creating synergy by 

integrating SNOW and camera-based services.

LINE Friends That Grow into a Global Character Brand

LINE Friends has grown to become a global character brand with 5,000 goods sold through

27 stores in 11 regions across the world as of 2016.

Today, various fields including smartphone, cosmetics, food, and paper are working together 

with LINE to utilize LINE Friends characters to add value and a little bit of fun to their products. 

In addition, TV dramas and entertainment programs also collaborate with LINE Friends 

characters to further appeal to the public. 

Moreover, LINE Friends IP games have attracted great attention in South Asian market, adding 

momentum to our strategy to advance into the global market.

LINE & SNOW & OTHERS

As of December 2016

Number of monthly active users

217 million

LINE

SNOW is a mobile image and multi-media messaging app developed to share daily 
lives in a more vivid and fun way. SNOW has been enjoying a steady growth in the 
global market and has focused on expanding into the video communication market 
through partnership with LINE.

Mobile Image and Multi-media 
Messaging App 

snOw.me

Continuously Upgrade Functions and Items

SNOW lets users play with a variety of effects on the smartphone camera and share the 

result with their acquaintances. It is especially popular among teens and we are upgrading 

the service to keep up with their trends by providing diverse stickers, filters, and SNS function 

where users can share photos and videos through chats and stories. The number of stickers 

jumped from 300 to 1,300 since the launch, offering greater fun to users.

Gain Tremendous Popularity in the Global Market

SNOW, which presented ‘video’ as an alternative in the text-driven communication market, has 

grown into a global service with 130 million downloads in a cumulative manner, of which 70% 

account for overseas users. Apple app store in Korea, Japan, and Thailand selected SNOW as 

the ‘Free App of the Year’ in 2016 and SNOW remained at the top for 75 days in the free app 

category in Japan’s Apple app store. In Taiwan and Indonesia, it was chosen as the ‘App of the 

Year 2016’ in Google Play store. Users are able to share diverse and vivid features of daily lives 

with their friends through stickers, filters, comments, and scribble effect of SNOW.

As of February 2017

Launched in 

Number of cumulative downloads

Sep. 2015

130 million

SNOW

The group SNS platform, BAND has concentrated on the improving usability and 
strengthening global marketing. BAND is now growing into a global community app 
that attracts more than 50 million downloads thanks to a high popularity in Taiwan 
and India. Especially in Taiwan, BAND played a key role as a communication channel 
among many politicians and younger voters ahead of an election.
BAND has evolved into a theme/interest-based community app to better 
accommodate users’ needs. Going forward, BAND plans to expand into the global 
market by strengthening its competitiveness through experimenting new services 
specializing in work/group communication and by adding new functions such as 
‘Feed’ which provide new postings based on analysis of the user pattern and 
activities.

Mobile Community
Service

bAnD.us/hOme

The group SNS platform, BAND has concentrated on the improving usability and 
strengthening global marketing. BAND is now growing into a global community app 
that attracts more than 50 million downloads thanks to a high popularity in Taiwan 
and India. Especially in Taiwan, BAND played a key role as a communication channel 
among many politicians and younger voters ahead of an election.
BAND has evolved into a theme/interest-based community app to better 
accommodate users’ needs. Going forward, BAND plans to expand into the global 
market by strengthening its competitiveness through experimenting new services 
specializing in work/group communication and by adding new functions such as 
‘Feed’ which provide new postings based on analysis of the user pattern and 
activities.

Customized Spam Call Filtering 
Service

whOscAll.cOm



In 2016, NAVER continued stable growth by 

introducing innovative services, convenient 

user experiences, and by providing effective 

support to sellers and advertisers.

In particular, mobile ads and overseas not only 

lead the growth but also contributed to margin 

improvements. 

Our webtoon service saw overseas users 

outnumber domestic users. The global live 

broadcasting app ‘V LIVE’ and image and 

multi-media messaging app SNOW have also 

proved their potential to fuel the company’s 

future growth as the number of overseas users 

expanded.

Going forward, NAVER pledges to strengthen 

its global competitiveness by increasing 

investments in technology development, 

collaborating with diverse business partners, 

and exploring new markets.

034   ADVERTISING

036   CONTENTS

038   OTHERSBusiness Overview
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ADVERTISINg

Revenue

as of december 2016, based on K-ifrs

consolidated financial statements

(Unit: KrW in billions)

ADVERTISINg

NAVER’s advertising revenue is mainly generated from search ads, display ads, and 
timeline ads of Korea’s No.1 internet portal NAVER and the global mobile messenger 
LINE. Advertising revenue in 2016 increased 27.8% from the previous year to KRW 
2.97 trillion. The proportion of mobile advertising revenue sharply increased from 
40% in the previous year to 53% in 2016. Overseas advertising revenue also rose 
by 5% compared to the previous year thanks to the growth of LINE ads.

Provide a New Ad Management Platform

NAVER opened a new ad management platform on July 1, 2016 to efficiently operate 

advertisers’ budget, execution period, search keyword, and contents for ads to meet their 

purpose, and to easily identify ad impacts. In addition, advertisers are able to separately 

manage ad performance and contents for PC and mobile. The new platform is expected to be 

a practical solution for advertisers to effectively establish and execute their ad strategy in the 

fast-changing market environment.

Launch Shopping Search Ad Service

Shopping Search Ad was newly introduced in November 2016. It is a search product that 

shows advertisers’ product image on ‘NAVER Shopping’ and shopping search results when 

a user searches for a certain product. Advertisers can enjoy higher ad impact as the product 

attracts users to ‘NAVER Shopping’ and rewards them with additional mileage points on 

NAVER Pay when they purchase a product. 

Shopping Search Ad is expected to boost business growth of advertisers and to create 

virtuous circle of marketing activities.

LINE's Advance into an Excellent Ad Service Platform 

The global mobile messenger LINE is further solidifying its status as an ad platform by offering 

diverse services that connect businesses and LINE users through ‘LINE@’, which covers the 

areas of food (Tabelog), beauty (Hot Pepper Beauty), real estate (HOME S), and automobile 

(Goo-net). The service is highly welcomed by for small and medium-sized enterprises, helping 

their marketing activities with rich benefits and build close relationships with customers in an 

efficient manner.

LINE also introduced ‘LINE Ads Platform’ service in June 2016, which exposes targeted ads 

based on 20 user characteristics such as age, gender, and region on the ad pages of LINE 

Timeline or LINE News, ensuring highly cost-effective ad impact. 

Provide Wholehearted Supports for Advertisers' Marketing Activities 

NAVER provides a wide range of free services designed to help advertisers’ marketing 

activities. For example, ‘NAVER Talk Talk’, which allows direct communication between buyers 

and sellers on NAVER platform, has been utilized by more than 140,000 merchants just in one 

year since its launch in September 2015, emerging as a leading business messenger for small 

and medium-sized enterprises in Korea. The mobile web page builder ‘modoo!’ completed an 

extensive upgrade in September 2016 in order to further help business owners enhance their 

competitiveness. In addition, NAVER has been continuously introducing efficient services by 

utilizing big data and effectively contributing to the sales growth of small and medium-sized 

enterprises with the expansion of ‘NAVER Shopping Window’ and ‘NAVER Pay’.

201620152014

2,967.0

2,091.1

2,322.4

*   We plan to adopt more systematic 

classification of revenue, expense, and 

major indices that satisfy the changes in 

our services and businesses from 2017, 

thereby providing shareholders and 

investors with our operating performances 

in more transparent and efficient manner.
Revenue Proportion by Region
(Unit: %)

overseas revenuedomestic revenue

Proportion of Mobile Search
Advertising Revenue
(Unit: %)

FY2015 FY2016

Proportion of Mobile Display
Advertising Revenue
(Unit: %)

FY2015 FY2016

38

49

22

37

81

19
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Revenue from contents business is generated through NAVER games, music, 
webtoon, web novels, and LINE games and stickers. NAVER achieved KRW 924.9 
billion in revenue from contents business in 2016, up 9% from the previous year, 
and the mobile revenue accounted for 91%. Overseas contents revenue saw a 
stable growth thanks to the continued increase in the number of global users.

Secure Diverse Contents to Offer More Values to Users

NAVER provides a variety of contents such as game, music, TV cast, V LIVE, webtoon, web 

novel, Grafolio, and more. These contents have been continuously upgraded to deliver new 

values to users. NAVER Webtoon, in particular, has been serviced throughout the world with 

more than 500 different works, and some webtoons boast over one million users in Indonesia, 

Thailand, and the US. Accordingly, the number of global monthly active users exceeded 18 

million, surpassing that of monthly active users in Korea. NAVER Webtoon now focuses on 

cultivating amateur artists through diverse competitions in order to create quality contents 

and build a sound ecosystem for creators, and as the popularity of web novels has soared 

recently, a new generation of printed books, films, and dramas is being reproduced based on 

the original web novels.

Focus on Enhancing Video Contents Service

Video contents consumption has greatly increased these days and, in response, NAVER has 

introduced web drama and entertainment theme pages to help users access to its video 

contents more easily. We also established a system to support outstanding creators in five 

categories of NAVER TV Cast - web drama, web entertainment, beauty, kids, and game. ‘V 

LIVE’ has grown into a live video streaming platform with about 260 channels by continuously 

expanding contents to the fields of beauty, film, and independent music as well as K-pop. 

Following the success of ‘V LIVE’, NAVER opened ‘V STORE’ where users can purchase special 

contents and items.

LINE Contents That Is Loved by global Users

The global messenger LINE has achieved 220 million monthly active users as of the end of 

December 2016 and generates revenue through games, stickers, video and webtoon (LINE 

Manga) utilizing the strong user base around the globe. The real-time live video broadcasting 

platform ‘LINE Live’ recorded 100 million cumulative plays in just 3 months since its launch in 

December 2015, and ‘LINE MUSIC’, a subscription-based streaming music service, has also 

gained explosive popularity with 15 million songs in service and 10 million cumulative app 

downloads. 'LINE Manga' is emerging as one of the most famous e-comics services in Japan 

with over 15 million downloads, and ‘LINE Sticker’ has become a key communication tool that 

replaces up to 2.4 billion messages per day. ‘LINE Account Media Platform’, the news service 

that utilizes LINE official accounts, is also sharpening its competitive edge by attracting more 

media.

CONTENTS

Revenue Proportion by Region 
(Unit: %)

924.9

676.7

848.8

201620152014

87

13

Revenue

as of december 2016, based on K-ifrs

consolidated financial statements

(Unit: KrW in billions)

*   We plan to adopt more systematic 

classification of revenue, expense, and 

major indices that satisfy the changes in 

our services and businesses from 2017, 

thereby providing shareholders and 

investors with our operating performances 

in more transparent and efficient manner.

overseas revenuedomestic revenue
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We plan to adopt more systematic guidelines to classify revenue, expense, and 
major indices that satisfy the changes in our services and businesses from 2017, 
thereby providing shareholders and investors with our operating performances in 
more transparent and efficient manner.

LINE Friends to Accelerate Overseas Expansion

With more than five thousand adorable character products that are beloved by many people 

around the world, LINE Friends has become a world-loved brand in a wide range of areas 

including animation, games, cafes, hotels, theme parks and more. The year of 2016 marked a 

special chapter for LINE Friends as it generated additional values through collaborating with 

the world’s renowned brands such as LAMY, Samsonite, and Kellogg’s. 

In addition, ‘LINE Friends Store’ which sells LINE Friends character products has successfully 

entered China, Taiwan, and Japan, and there are 27 regular stores in operation worldwide as of 

the end of 2016. ‘LINE Friends Store’ plans to expand even further into the US market as well 

as Singapore, Indonesia, and Malaysia in the near future.

IT Service

NAVER offers consulting services on IT infrastructure with its proven capabilities and 

innovative technologies. Our professionals in the fields of IDC infrastructure, network, 

server, and database provide comprehensive and tailored consulting services on designing, 

establishing, and operating IT infrastructure. Based upon our decade-long operation know-

how, NAVER is equipped with abundant IT infrastructure technologies to meet the ever-

changing user needs and demands for service. NAVER puts its focus on operating fast and 

reliable IT infrastructure as the internet service is increasingly becoming global and mobile.

OTHERS

130.8

62.7

82.7

201620152014

Revenue

as of december 2016, based on K-ifrs

consolidated financial statements

(Unit: KrW in billions)

*   We plan to adopt more systematic 

classification of revenue, expense, and 

major indices that satisfy the changes in 

our services and businesses from 2017, 

thereby providing shareholders and 

investors with our operating performances 

in more transparent and efficient manner.
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The advancement of smartphone has 

accelerated the connection between people 

and the world, and to cope with this 

environmental change, NAVER started the 

‘Project Flower.’ The ‘Project Flower’ was 

created to introduce a new strategic direction 

aimed at cultivating small enterprises and 

creators in order to fulfill its responsibility as 

Korea’s leading internet search portal provider. 

To this end, we have been making a concerted 

effort to provide the small enterprises and 

creators with diverse services and platforms 

and to support their entrance into the global 

market. 

NAVER also seeks to strengthen its global 

competitiveness strategically and 

technologically. In one hand, NAVER invested 

in a global investment fund to discover and 

nurture promising developers and startups 

and in another hand, seeks to create more 

opportunities for domestic startups with 

technological competitiveness to efficiently 

make a foray into the global market.

NAVER will continue to devote in invigorating 

the ecosystem of internet business in Korea 

where more startups, creators, and small 

enterprises are able to present their 

capabilities and grow beyond domestic market 

player and become global players.w

Sustainability

042   SHARED GROWTH

044     BUILDING FOUNDATION FOR ICT 

ECOSYSTEm

048   COEXISTENCE

052   SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION
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Contribute to Business Success in Diverse Fields

NAVER Shopping Window, launched in December 2014, is a 

platform that makes it easy to showcase offline shops’ products on 

the internet and mobile phone. More than 12 thousand small to mid-

size merchants have opened shops in NAVER Shopping Window 

as of the end of 2016 and the number of shops with over KRW 100 

million in annual sales expanded from 2,400 to 5,500 increasing 

130% year on year.

On top of that, NAVER has strived to support creators in the fields 

of webtoon, web novel, illustration, and indie music in many ways, 

which resulted to increase in the number of creators from 16 

thousand in January 2016 to 24 thousand at the end of 2016.

NAVER Platforms to Support Creators

Open Art Window for Designers and Artists
With the aim of cultivating the cultural and artistic ecosystem and 

fostering sustainable creation environment, NAVER opened an 

online platform, ‘Art Window’ in July 2016 where users can discover 

and connect with artists and purchase their works. In September 

2016, ‘Designer Window’ was launched to provide support to the 

domestic fashion creators. 

Expand Open Markets for Creators
‘Grafolio Market’, an open online platform where illustrators can 

present their works, has seen continuous increases in product 

categories and creators since the launch in September 2015. Any 

creator can open his/her own shop and sell their digital illustration 

works in Grafolio Market. NAVER also opened ‘Musician League 

Market’ where musicians can showcase and sell their songs to 

users. Going forward, NAVER will try to provide more platforms 

where creators can seek sustainable growth.

get a Foothold for Creators and Startups to go global and 
Create Profits

Assist Creators to Compete on the global Stage
A lot of illustrations in ‘Grafolio’ have been introduced to global 

users through books, PPL(product in placement) in Korean dramas, 

and character goods. Puuung, an illustrator who successfully 

debuted through ‘Grafolio’, published a collection of her works 

in Taiwan and Indonesia as well as Korea in 2016. Recently, the 

collection was made available on the amazon US site as well. NAVER 

will be proactively supporting more creators and to introduce 

artists’ creative works to the global stage.

V LIVE to Boost Communication between Celebs and global Fans
During 2016, the number of ‘V LIVE’ users in the world increased

1.5 times from 16 thousand to 24 thousand. NAVER plans to 

support diverse platforms to boost the global expansion of the 

Korean celebrities. Of the initiatives, we introduced ‘Rookie Project’, 

which was aimed to discover potential starts through ‘V Live’ and 

also launched ‘V Store’ where stars can showcase special contents 

and items for fans.

Raise a New Fund to Foster the Contents Business
NAVER raised joint fund with SoftBank Ventures that is a size 

of KRW 50 billion. The focus of the fund is to invest in media 

and contents businesses. This fund will be mainly invested in 

innovative startups engaging in creator-oriented services and 

media technology business driven by platform, MCN, and AI, with 

the purpose of nurturing enterprises that can compete in overseas 

markets.

SUSTAINABILITY SHARED gROWTH

NAVER is committed to shared growth and co-prosperity with
small enterprises and creators.

NAVER launched the ‘Project Flower’ in early 2016 to fulfill its 
responsibility as a leading internet search platform with the
largest number of small enterprises and creators.
The ‘Project Flower’ has provided meaningful platform services 
where small enterprises and creators can easily form their 
businesses and pave the way for sustainable growth.
It has also helped them advance into the global market more 
efficiently and reap success.

SHARED gROWTH
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` NAVER's Tech Startup Accelerator ‘D2 Startup Factory’

NAVER’s tech startup accelerator ‘D2 Startup Factory (D2SF)’ 

opened in May 2015 to cultivate early stage startups. D2SF 

provides full supports for startups which include business space, 

feedback on technology and business proposals, collaborations 

with NAVER, infrastructure, PR, and marketing and by end of 2016, 

total of nine startups joined D2SF. NAVER plans to make the 

best use of D2SF in nurturing tech-driven startups in the field of 

robotics, VR, AR, intelligent mobility, and context engine which are 

closely related to the researches on ‘Ambient Intelligence’. Going 

forward, D2SF will give tech-driven startups more chances to grow 

with NAVER while helping grow the startup ecosystem.

NAVER D2 to Support the Software Developers Ecosystem

NAVER runs ‘D2 (For Developers, By Developers)’, a program 

to promote and support growth of the developers and provide 

a channel of communication among developers. ‘D2’ program 

includes Korea’s largest developer conference ‘DEVIEW’, where 

NAVER shares a variety of open source and development tools and 

supports relevant academies and communities. We will continue 

to support developers and communities to foster healthy ICT 

ecosystem.

NAVER University Relations
NAVER operates the ‘NAVER University Relations’ which promotes 

academic-industry cooperation for software technology 

development and trains software experts, A total of 12 joint 

research projects were conducted through the program in 2016. 

We also discovered 16 new professors with premier research 

competency to stimulate joint research in the computer science 

field, and awarded NAVER Young Faculty Prize. For the cultivation of 

software experts, NAVER encourages universities to promote the 

‘Software-oriented University Project’ and helps them customize 

their education system for software experts.

Hello world
Since December 2011, NAVER has been operating ‘Hello World’, 

a blog for NAVER’s developers, to help share knowledge among 

developers. Through the blog, developers share their experience on 

various cases, problem solving, test results, as well as the results of 

the experiments, which leads to less number of trial and error and 

lower cost of development.

D2 Campus Fest
‘D2 Campus Fest’ is an open source contest for university students, 

which was launched in 2013. The purpose of the contest was to 

encourage open source development and support the continuous 

development of relevant projects even after the final round.

SUSTAINABILITY  
BUILDINg FOUNDATION FOR ICT ECOSYSTEM

NAVER seeks to establish and invigorate
technology-driven startup ecosystem.

NAVER operates various programs to support the growth of
startups and developers and to nurture healthy ICT ecosystem.
We also support the joint product development and global market
expansion through the use of our platforms, while investing in
recruiting talents and developing new business models.

BUILDINg FOUNDATION FOR ICT ECOSYSTEM
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Korea’s Largest Developer Conference ‘DEVIEW’

‘DEVIEW’, developers’ conference for sharing experiences and 

technologies at home and abroad, celebrated 9th anniversary in 

2016. With engineers from domestic and overseas IT companies 

and world-renowned universities as presenters, ‘DEVIEW 2016’ 

hosted 48 sessions on the latest trends including machine learning, 

robotics, big data, search, preceding technology, and developers’ 

culture. In particular, a lot of NAVER’s developers with expertise in 

preceding technologies such as Papago, AI, machine translation, 

and voice synthesis showcased their development know how. 

‘DEVIEW 2016’ attracted great attention as advance enrollments of 

2,700 participants were completed just in one minute. 

NAVER's Comprehensive Support Package for Startups 
’Npac’

Npac (NAVER Partner Aid & Care) is our comprehensive support 

package for startups. Startups and university students are able to 

use NAVER’s cloud service infrastructure free of charge for up to 

30 months. Npac was offered to nearly 800 startups as of the end 

of 2016. Npac makes it possible for a startup to save up to KRW 12 

million in expenses for a year. In addition, no additional cost occurs 

even if the network traffic increases while using NAVER’s server, 

which allows startups with higher utilization of server to reduce cost 

more.

SUSTAINABILITY  
BUILDINg FOUNDATION FOR ICT ECOSYSTEM

BUILDINg FOUNDATION FOR ICT ECOSYSTEM

Startup Alliance to Boost Public-Private Cooperation

In order to cultivate a healthy startup ecosystem and facilitate 

promising startups' entry into the global market, NAVER established 

the ‘Startup Alliance’ in 2014 jointly with MSIP (Ministry of 

Science, ICT, and Future Planning), leading internet companies, 

and investment organizations at home and abroad, and pledged 

to invest a total of KRW 10 billion for the next five years. In 2016, 

the Startup Alliance implemented diverse activities to motivate 

startups and support their communities that cover the government, 

internet companies, domestic and foreign venture incubators, and 

pre-entrepreneurs, contributing to the invigoration of the startup 

ecosystem.

Continue Investments in Competitive Startups 

NAVER is committed to discovering and cultivating startups 

with global competitiveness. As part of this, we have invested in 

promising tech-driven startups by raising funds. Reshaping our 

status as a technology platform based on accumulated know how 

and knowledge, we will continue to invest and provide supports for 

startups engaging in AI, robotics, VR, and AR which will be our new 

growth drivers.

Participate in the European Investment Fund ‘K-fund 1’
In September 2016, NAVER and LINE each invested EUR 50 million 

respectively, in the European investment fund ‘K-fund 1’ organized 

by Korelya Capital which was established by Fleur Pellerin, the 

former Minister of Digital Economy in France, and Antoine Dresch, 

a European financial expert. With the investment, NAVER and LINE 

plan to accelerate the advancement into the global market and 

make investments in local technology-driven ventures with growth 

potential.

Raise a KRW 100 billion Fund for Future Technology 
Development
NAVER raised a KRW 100 billion sized fund jointly with Mirae 

Asset Daewoo in December 2016 with the aim of fostering future 

technology businesses. This fund will mainly focus on discovering 

and cultivating startups in the fields of AI, IoT, robotics, AR, VR, 

self-driving, healthcare, and smart home, contributing to the 

development of future technologies.
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SUSTAINABILITY COEXISTENCE

By capitalizing on property, know how, and professionalism earned from 
business activities, NAVER has been implementing activities to ensure 
coexistence with business partners.
The effort for co-prosperity is further driven by the operation of a dedicated 
organization and portal website. Moreover, our commitments to co-prosperity 
are extended to supports the local communities and cultivate talents.

COEXISTENCE

Shared growth Programs of NAVER

Based on our business ethics of honesty and sincerity, NAVER has 

cooperated with business partners to establish a healthy internet 

ecosystem. As part of this effort, we established an organization 

dedicated to promoting co-prosperity and cooperation with 

partners, through which more diverse programs are designed and 

operated to provide assistance to sustainable growth. Our efforts 

were rewarded with the ‘Excellent’ level at the Sustainable Growth 

Index in 2016.

Build a System to Ensure Fair Trade
NAVER and its business partners abide by the agreement on ethical 

business practices which was made in 2015 to pursue shared 

growth through fair and transparent transactions and cooperation. 

We comply with four major action agendas for co-prosperity and 

operate programs for business ethics and information protection. 

Transparency and fairness in transactions are ensured as bidding 

and contracts are made through the electronic purchase system.

Provide Customized Support Programs to Business Partners
NAVER operates a wide array of programs to support business 

partners in finance, corporate management, employee training, and 

sales channel expansion.

Operate Communication Channels for Business Partners
Our business partners are able to directly make proposals and 

inquiries through the ‘Partners’ Line’ and share NAVER’s vision on 

shared growth at the ‘Partners’ Day’ event, which is held twice a 

year.

NAVER invests its core capabilities and resources in co-prosperity with partners. 
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SUSTAINABILITY COEXISTENCE

COEXISTENCE

Cultivate Entrepreneurs in Cooperation with KEF

NAVER signed an agreement with the Korea Entrepreneurship 

Foundation(KEF) in 2015, and have been proactive in discovering 

and cultivating startups with creativity and spirit of challenge. 

This project aims to spread and embed entrepreneurship in the 

society by carrying out various activities such as the introduction 

of entrepreneurship, supports for research, and operation of pilot 

education programs. In 2016, NAVER provided many young talents 

with pilot education programs and supported forums and academic 

researches through this project.

Entrepreneurship School program for teenagers
•   Conducted two sessions to help teenagers cultivate 

entrepreneurship in Gangwon-do.

•   Invited about 100 students from 5 middle schools during the 1st 

session and 36 classes from 6 middle schools in Chuncheon 

during the 2nd session to the pilot education program.

•   Nurtured young instructors to train entrepreneurship by 

employing them as assistance instructors.

Entrepreneurship Korea Conference
•   Held the conference twice with the aim to spread and 

systematically study entrepreneurship.

• Played a role as a think tank for the research on entrepreneurship.

•   Saw increased interest from around 90 persons at the 1st which 

rose to 150 persons at the 2nd conference.

Researches on entrepreneurship
•   Organized a research team consisting of 10 professors and 

experts to build self-motivated ecosystem for entrepreneurship 

research and create relevant education items and contents.

•   Ordered research projects to diagnose entrepreneurship 

education at home and abroad and systemize relevant programs 

and contents.

Establish an Ecosystem for Software Education in Korea

Connect Foundation is an independent non-profit organization 

which was established in 2011 by NAVER with the aim of 

implementing software education transparently and professionally 

for the public interest. In line with its establishment purpose, 

the foundation has strived to provide opportunities for software 

education to everyone ranging from beginners to expert 

developers, and to upgrade contents and platforms for software 

education. Going forward, Connect Foundation will make a 

concerted effort to create environment where everyone can take 

high-quality software education for free and cultivate competitive 

software developers. These efforts will present a new education 

model and contribute to the sustainable growth of software 

development ecosystem. 

Supports for software education of elementary and middle 
school students
Connect Foundation operates a variety of programs which supports 

elementary and middle school students to easily study software 

with interest and clear understanding. Through the project, we hope 

to support students grow creativity and to develop computational 

thinking, nurturing future talents.  

• Let’s play with software

A program launched in 2012 to help children easily understand 

software and use it as a creative educational tool. It also offers 

parents and teachers a guideline on software education.

• Go-to-Teacher

A group consisting of about 100 software education experts which 

was established in December 12, 2015. The major role of the group 

is to inform the importance of software education across the 

country and help schools adopt software education as a regular 

subject.

• Software classroom with college students

A talent-donation program for software education conducted 

by students majoring in computer education at 15 educational 

universities. The program supports elementary, middle, and high 

school students to create their own software programs for five 

weeks.

• Entry

A software education platform for elementary and middle school 

students operated by Entry Education Institute, which was acquired 

by NAVER in May 2016. The platform provides programming 

language in blocks which is explained in Korean instead of difficult 

and complex text type programming, helping students learn 

software easily and teachers instruct efficiently.

Connect Design Camp
Connect Foundation operates the ‘Connect Design Camp’ to 

nurture young and talented designers to engage in IT businesses, 

in which expert designers from IT companies and relevant 

organizations participate.

Education With (edwith)
Connect Foundation launched the beta service of ‘edwith’ in April 

2016 to help everyone learn new knowledge, technologies, and 

ideas with ease. ‘edwith’ offers a variety of online education courses 

needed for teachers preparing software education at elementary 

and middle schools, mobile app developers, pre-entrepreneurs and 

startups, online business operators, and so on. These courses are 

available at edwith.org.
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SUSTAINABILITY SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

NAVER contributes to create a healthy society.

NAVER has been the only Korean company to continue donating over
1% of the total revenue, giving back to the society since 2012.
The donation is mainly used to sponsor welfare facilities,
cultural contents business, and ICT ecosystem. NAVER Cultural Foundation
strives to find more creators and to support Korea’s cultural and artistic ecosystem.
The donation portal website ‘Happybean’ is also playing a significant role in 
establishing a new donation culture to help the socially marginalized. 
NAVER will make a concerted effort to fulfill its social responsibility to
create a better tomorrow.

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

NAVER Cultural Foundation to Support Cultural and
Artistic Creators

NAVER Cultural Foundation was established in 2010 to promote 

more creative and practical social contribution activities. For 

instance, ‘On Stage’ and ‘Hello! Artist’ projects offer artists with 

opportunities to communicate with the public and ‘Open Podium’ 

project delivers diverse lectures on culture guided by great 

scholars. Going forward, NAVER Cultural Foundation will contribute 

to forming a virtuous cycle of the culture and art ecosystem 

where more creators and the public can enjoy cultural and artistic 

experiences and values.

NAVER On Stage
Established in 2010, ‘NAVER On Stage’ is a live platform for indie 

musicians. Up to 2016, a total of 1,014 live videos from 328 indie 

musicians have been showcased. NAVER operates the ‘On Stage 

Live’ where indie musicians and the public communicate with each 

other and the ‘On Stage-K’ jointly with Arirang TV to introduce 

Korean indie music to 188 countries. ‘NAVER On Stage’ will continue 

to play a vital role in introducing unsung musicians and their works 

to the public and establishing a foothold in cultivating diverse music 

culture.

Hello! Artist
‘Hello! Artist’ is a project that supports promising and passionate 

amateur artists in the visual arts sector. A new artist is introduced 

to the public every two weeks through fair evaluation by the art 

professionals. A total of 1,845 works of art from 86 artists have 

been introduced through ‘Hello! Artist’ until 2016. In addition, we 

hold an offline exhibition named ‘Art Around’ to directly connect 

artists with the public. The exhibition has celebrated its 3rd 

anniversary in 2016. Support for creative artists was extended to 

the launch of ‘Art Window’ in 2016 where their works can be sold via 

online channel.

Open Podium: Inside and Outside of Culture
NAVER holds a lecture program called ‘Inside and Outside of 

Culture’ with Korea’s prominent intellectuals and scholars since 

2014. The main theme in the first year was ‘Cultural Introspection 

on This Era’, followed by ‘This Era and Classics’ in 2015 and ‘Ethics 

and Human Life’ in 2016. In particular, eight books about the theme 

in 2014 were published in 2016. NAVER will continue to expand 

opportunities to share humanistic discourses and knowledge 

property, contributing to the improvement of cultural ground.

Korea’s First Donation Portal Website ‘NAVER Happybean’

‘Happybean’ is Korea’s first donation portal website which 

connects donors and public welfare organizations, celebrating 

its 11th anniversary in 2016. A total of about 1,300 users have 

donated KRW 63.5 billion through ‘Happybean’ for the past 11 

years. NAVER has strived to expand public donation contents and 

encouraged more people to participate in the activity by launching 

new crowd-funding platforms such as ‘Automatic Donation Saving’ 

and ‘Empathy Funding’. We will continue our efforts to make more 

people interested in public donation and provide more support to 

the socially marginalized and creators.

NAVER Together N
NAVER introduced the ‘Together N’ vertical tab on the mobile 

NAVER home screen in April 2016. ‘Together N’ delivers diverse 

stories about social contribution activities conducted by social 

enterprises and public welfare organizations, encouraging 

involvement of users in social contribution. More than 300 users 

have created ‘Together N’ menu on their mobile NAVER home 

screen until now. ‘Happybean’ endeavors to share more news and 

information on social contribution activities with users through 

‘Together N’ and encourage them to join the funding list.

Automatic Donation Saving
‘Automatic Donation Saving’, launched in December 2015, is 

Happybean’s unique program to save a certain amount of money 

every month for donation. In addition, NAVER promoted ‘Our Saving 

Box’ campaign where Korean celebrities took the lead in donations 

and users followed their activities by saving a certain amount of 

money every month. As a result, more than 10 thousand users have 

joined the program and saved about KRW 500 million as of the end 

of 2016.

Empathy Funding
‘Empathy Funding’ is a crowd funding service aimed to support 

social ventures, media, culture creators, and public welfare facilities. 

More than 80 thousand people joined 81 projects, raising KRW 1.75 

billion since the launch in June 2015. The fund is used to sponsor 

diverse projects for public interest as well as to introduce products 

and works of social ventures, startups, small enterprises, and 

creators, pursuing more efficient and practical assistance.
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NAVER has integrated its service platforms 

and expanded the scope of contents to help 

users better enjoy video contents as well as 

laid the foundation for co-prosperity by 

proactively supporting small businesses, 

startups, and creators.

Moreover, we showcased neural machine 

translation app Papago, AI-powered robot M1, 

autonomous car, and browser Whale, tangible 

results in cutting-edge technology 

development.

As a result, our consolidated revenue and 

operating profit in 2016 increased 23.6% and 

32.7% from the previous year to KRW 4.23 

trillion and KRW 1.10 trillion, respectively.

In the coming year, with the aim of solidifying 

the foundation for profit creation, NAVER will 

focus on advancing search technology and 

advertising platforms, enhancing mobile-

specific services, and developing new 

contents with professionalism and 

differentiated value.
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The Management’s Discussion and Analysis contains information about not only NAVER’s current operating performances and financial 

conditions but also future goals and strategies in accordance with a prospect of the domestic economy and internet industry. Readers and 

potential investors should be aware that statements regarding NAVER’s operating environment and market outlook can be affected 

significantly by unforeseeable future events. Therefore, the company’s future business results and performances may differ substantively 

from those described herein.

In addition, NAVER does not guarantee either the accuracy or the completeness of the information given below. Statements concerning the 

company’s past achievements and future prospects must not be construed as constituting definite promises or guarantees, and NAVER is 

under no obligation to publish or otherwise provide additional information regarding unforeseen future events. 

NAVER’s consolidated financial statements have been made by applying the Korean International Financial Reporting Standard in compliance 

with Article 13, Clause 1, Item 1 of the Act on External Audits of Stock Companies. The company also prepared its non-consolidated financial 

statements using the same method. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis was prepared on consolidated basis, unless stated 

otherwise.

NAVER classifies revenues into three categories; ‘Advertising,’ ‘Contents,’ and ‘Others.’ Advertising revenue is primarily generated from NAVER 

search ads, display ads, video ads, shopping ads, LINE official accounts, sponsored stickers, and performance-based ads. Contents revenue 

earns from NAVER game, webtoon, web novel, music, LINE game and LINE sticker. Sales of LINE Character products and IT infrastructure 

service are main sources of other revenue.

In 2016, NAVER and LINE have risen to changes and challenges to further advance services and businesses. Our progress will continue more 

extensively and profoundly in the coming years. In this regard, we plan to adopt more systematic guidelines to classify revenue, expense, and 

major indices that satisfy the changes in our services and businesses from 2017, thereby providing shareholders and investors with our 

operating performances in more transparent and efficient manner.

Disclaimer

MANAgEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

NAVER was established in June 2, 1999 with a goal of offering Korean and other internet users the widest possible selection of online 

services. And, as of August 1, 2013, the company spun its Hangame business off and changed the name to NAVER Corporation from NHN 

Corporation. The company listed its shares on the Korean Securities Dealers’ Automated Quotations (KOSDAQ) market on October 29, 2002, 

and then transferred its share listing to the Korea Composite Stock Price Index (KOSPI) market on November 28, 2008. The largest 

shareholder was National Pension Service (10.56%) as of the end of 2016.

We offer competitive online and mobile services such as Korea’s No.1 internet search portal ‘NAVER’ and globally acclaimed messenger 

platform ‘LINE’. Revenues are created from online and mobile advertising business, paid digital contents such as LINE Game and LINE Sticker, 

and sales of LINE Friends character products.

The number of domestic wired and wireless internet users has increased to 43.6 million with the rate of internet use of 88.3% as of the end of 

2016, according to the Korea Internet and Security Agency. This solid foundation leads to swift growth of the domestic internet-related 

businesses including online ads, digital contents, and e-commerce. Particularly, the popularization of smart phone has unleashed the increase 

of mobile internet users around the world, which stimulates the development of new mobile internet services and products and consequently 

will ensure sustainable growth of the internet industry at home and abroad.

In line with these changes, NAVER is providing integrated search service to help users find Knowledge iN, Blog, Café, news article, special 

reference, and image at a glance by utilizing its innovative search technologies, spearheading the generalization of knowledge. With good 

understanding of fast-changing mobile environment and users’ needs, we also take the initiative in delivering more competitive and various 

mobile services. In particular, mobile video communication app ‘SNOW’, group-based social network platform ‘BAND’, celebrities’ real-time 

broadcasting platform ‘V Live’, and ‘Webtoon’ have been gaining tremendous popularity in both Korea and other countries.

Moreover, NAVER devotes to developing AI-based innovative technologies to create new values and enhance future competitiveness. Going 

forward, we will continue to harness our accumulated knowhow and knowledge and investments to reshape our status as a technology 

platform.

Subsidiaries for consolidated reporting as of the end of 2016

We have expanded our service area and intensified business capability through continued cooperation with promising SMEs and venture 

companies as well as direct and indirect investments including M&As. As of the end of 2016, NAVER has 57 subsidiaries. A total of 10 

companies including SNOW, WAV Media, Webtoon Entertainment, and LINE Mobile were newly incorporated via establishment, while 4 

companies such as Brainpub and Bonsai Garage were excluded due to the selling of stake and merger during the year. Our subsidiaries for 

consolidated reporting as of the end of 2016 are as follows:

I. INTRODUCTION
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In 2015, NAVER has focused on developing cutting-edge technologies and further improving online and mobile services to deliver users new 

experiences and values. In this regard, we integrated service platforms and diversified contents to help users enjoy our video contents more 

conveniently. Supports for small enterprises, startups, and creators have also continued to lay the foundation for shared growth. In addition, 

we showcased visible performances in the development of AI-based technologies including Papago, robot M1, self-driving vehicle, and a new 

browser Whale. These activities resulted in remarkable growth both quantitatively and qualitatively in 2016.

Our consolidated operating revenue soared 23.6% from the previous year to KRW 4.02 trillion, which was led by the growth of advertising and 

contents sales in an accelerating degree. Operating income and net income from continuing operations also increased 32.7% and 29.7% 

year-on-year to KRW 1.10 trillion and KRW 770.9 billion, respectively. Operating income margin was 27.4%.

II. SUMMARY OF OPERATINg PERFORMANCES

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change FY2016 FY2015 % change

Operating revenue 4,022.6 3,253.9 23.6% 2,496.5 2,141.3 16.6%

Operating income 1,102.0 830.2 32.7% 968.4 826.5 17.2%

Operating income margin (%) 27.4% 25.5% 1.9%p 38.8% 38.6% 0.2%p

Net income from continuing operations 770.9 594.2 29.7% 651.8 642.6 1.4%

(KrW in billions)

1. Operating Revenue

Our operating revenue in 2016 amounted to KRW 4.02 trillion, 73.8% and 23.0% of which were contributed from advertising and contents, 

respectively, with 3.2% created from other businesses. The proportion of advertising revenue increased 2.4%p from the year before, while 

that of contents revenue decreased 3.1%p. By region, we achieved KRW 2.59 trillion in Korea, up 19.5% from the previous year, KRW 1.34 

trillion in Japan, up 30.6%, and KRW 89.1 billion in other countries, up 53.1%; and the regional proportions were 64.4% for Korea, 33.3% for 

Japan, and 2.2% for other countries, respectively.

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change Proportion FY2016 FY2015 % change

Operating revenue 4,022.6 3,253.9 23.6% 100.0% 2,496.5 2,141.3 16.6%

Advertising 2,967.0 2,322.4 27.8% 73.8% 2,357.8 1,985.2 18.8%

Contents 924.9 848.8 9.0% 23.0% 101.0 124.8 (19.1%)

Others 130.8 82.7 58.1% 3.3% 37.7 31.3 20.4%

(KrW in billions)
Operating Revenue by Business Segment

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change Proportion FY2016 FY2015 % change

Korea 2,592.0 2,168.7 19.5% 64.4% 2,496.5 2,141.3 16.6%

Japan 1,341.5 1,027.0 30.6% 33.3% - - -

Other countries 89.1 58.2 53.1% 2.2% - - -

Total 4,022.6 3,253.9 23.6% 100.0% - - -

(KrW in billions)
Operating Revenue by Region

Note)   NAVER has a 100% stake in all the above subsidiaries, except for SNOW (95.09%), LINE Company (Thailand) (99.95%), M.T.Burn (50.49%), SB Next Media Innovation Fund 
(88.89%), Gogolook (70.00%), LINE Book Distribution (52.00%), Quicket (51.01%), PT.LINE PLUS INDONESIA (99.84%), and LINE Vietnam (95.00%). Please refer to Notes 
to the Independent Auditors’ Report for details.

Company name Main business Ownership Assets

Major subsidiaries (4) LINE Mobile service 80.35% 2,672

LINE Plus Global marketing for mobile service 100.00% 401

NAVER Business Platform System development and operation 100.00% 263

LINE C&I Fund operation 100.00% 105

Other subsidiaries (53) LINE Pay / LINE BIZ+ / LINE Taiwan / LINE Friends / Camp Mobile / SNOW / NAVER I&S / Works Mobile / Line Fukuoka / NHN Technology 

Service / WAV Media / LINE Digital Technology (Shanghai) / LINE PLAY / NAVER China / LINE NAVER Game Investment Association / 

InComms / Green Web Service / Line Business Partners / LINE Company (Thailand) / M.T.Burn / LINE BIZ+ / Webpay / SB Next Media 

Innovation Fund / LINE Game Global Gateway / MIXRADIO / Search Solution / NITService / LINE Mobile (former, LMN) /

LINE Euro-Americas / Gogolook / Works Mobile Japan / LINE Book Distribution / CommPartners / LINE BIZ+ Taiwan / N-Visions / 

Iconnect / WEBTOON Entertainment / NAVER Business Platform America / Webpay Holdings / SNOW China / Quicket / PT.LINE PLUS 

INDONESIA / LINE Life Global Gateway / Entry Education Research Institute / LINE Ventures / NAVER Business Platform Asia Pacific / 

LINE Vietnam / Camp Mobile Inc. / NAVER Business Platform Europe / SNOW Japan / Watong Entertainment Limited / LINE Digital 

Technologies India / MixRadio Entertainment India

 (KrW in billions, %)

MANAgEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Advertising
Sources of NAVER’s advertising revenue include NAVER's search ads, display ads, and video ads, and LINE's official accounts, sponsored 

stickers, LINE@, LINE points, and performance-based ads. Sales from NAVER Shopping is also being recognized as advertising revenue.

NAVER, boasting about 27 million daily visitors, provides advertisers with highly efficient advertising services by capitalizing on its innovative 

search technology. In particular, mobile segment has made a noticeable contribution to the growth of advertising revenue thanks to the 

introduction of NAVER Place on vertical mobile. Newly launched Shopping Search advertising and LINE’s performance-based advertising 

have also driven the growth. The proportion of mobile platforms in generating advertising revenue has been on a rise due to continuously 

increasing number of smartphone users.

Advertising revenue increased 27.8% year-on-year to KRW 2.97 trillion in 2016, of which mobile advertising and PC advertising accounted for 

53.5% and 46.5%, respectively. Overseas advertising revenue also soared 74.8% from the previous year to KRW 577.6 billion in virtue of an 

increasing sales of LINE’s messenger advertising and performance-based advertising, and its proportion expanded from 14.2% in 2015 to 

19.5% in 2016.

Contents
Revenue from contents is created from NAVER's game, webtoon, web novel, and music services, and LINE's game and stickers. Our contents 

revenue rose by 9.0% from the previous year to KRW 924.9 billion in 2016, backed by a stable sales growth of LINE's game and stickers, of 

which 91.2% was generated from mobile platforms and 87.0% from the overseas markets.

LINE is proactive in developing and launching new games and competitive contents such as Play and Manga as well as cultivating the 

Creators' Market to secure more diverse stickers.

NAVER has strived to consistently improve service quality and accelerate global expansion to diversify contents. As a result, overseas 

webtoon users have outnumbered domestic users, and celebrities’ real-time broadcasting platform ‘V Live’ and mobile video communication 

app ‘SNOW’ have also gained great popularity in the global market. Moreover, ‘NAVER TV’ was launched by integrating existing ‘TV Cast’ and 

‘Media Player’ services to offer users new experiences and secure differentiated competitiveness in video contents service.

Others
Other revenue is generated from character product sales by capitalizing on LINE character IP, IT infrastructure service, etc. It recorded KRW 

130.8 billion, an increase of 58.1% year-on-year, and accounted for 3.3% of total operating revenue. 

2. Profitability

Operating expenses in 2016 amounted to KRW 2.92 trillion, an increase of 20.5% year-on-year. Commissions, labor costs, and marketing 

expenses accounted for 39.1%, 29.9%, and 10.4%, respectively. Labor costs increased 22.2% to KRW 873.3 billion due to continuous 

recruitment for the expansion of our services and commissions also rose by 26.5% to KRW 1.14 trillion due mainly to the increase of contents 

sourcing. Meanwhile, marketing expenses decreased 0.4% from the previous year to KRW 303.4 billion in virtue of efficient cost control 

despite the expansion of advertising and promotion activities for NAVER services and LINE games. 

As a result, our consolidated operating income in 2016 increased 32.7% from the year before to KRW 1.10 trillion. Operating income margin 

was 27.4%, an increase of 1.9%p. Gains on the disposal of tangible assets and investments in affiliated companies contributed to the 

realization of KRW 29.7 in non-operating income.

Our consolidated net income from continuing operations grew 29.7% from the previous year to KRW 770.9 billion in 2016 and, as a result, net 

income margin from continuing operations also improved 0.9%p to 19.2%. Basic earnings per share from continuing operations were KRW 

26,153, and ROE and ROA recorded 23.7% and 14.1%, respectively.

In 2017, we will continue to focus on upgrading services, developing cutting-edge technologies, expanding collaborations for securing 

high-quality contents, and investing in mobile business, while efficiently controlling costs in order to improve profitability.

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change Proportion FY2016 FY2015 % change

Operating Revenue 4,022.6 3,253.9 23.6% 2,496.5 2,141.3 16.6%

Operating Expenses 2,920.6 2,423.7 20.5% 1,528.1 1,314.8 16.2%

Labor Expenses 873.3 714.9 22.2% 29.9% 297.7 238.4 24.9%

Commission Expenses 1,141.5 902.2 26.5% 39.1% 979.0 823.1 18.9%

Depreciation Expenses 162.9 152.9 6.5% 5.6% 32.1 32.9 (2.6%)

Marketing Expenses 303.4 304.6 (0.4%) 10.4% 150.5 156.0 (3.5%)

Telecommunication 

Expenses
114.1 103.7 10.0% 3.9% 0.6 0.7 (12.6%)

Employee Benefits 90.8 75.2 20.8% 3.1% 29.5 25.6 15.3%

Others 234.6 170.1 37.9% 8.0% 38.8 38.0 1.9%

Operating Income 1,102.0 830.2 32.7% 968.4 826.5 17.2%

Operating Margin (%) 27.4% 25.5% 1.9%p 38.8% 38.6% 0.2%p

Net income from continuing 

operations
770.9 594.2 29.7% 651.8 642.6 1.4%

Net margin from continuing 

operations (%)
19.2% 18.3% 0.9%p 26.1% 30.0% (3.9%p)

(KrW in billions)

MANAgEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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1. Assets

Our consolidated total assets at the end of 2016 stood at KRW 6.37 trillion, an increase of 45.3% from the previous year.

Current Assets
Current assets increased 59.1% year-on-year to KRW 4.20 trillion at the end of 2016. Cash and cash equivalents, short-term financial 

instruments, and trade and other receivables rose by 112.2%, 33.4%, and 44.5%, respectively. Deposits, short-term financial instruments, 

and trade receivables are on a rise due to the expansion of our businesses. The company monitors cash flows in accordance with mid-to 

long-term business plans and short-term management strategies, while ensuring sufficient cash and cash equivalents for general operating 

expenses.

Non-current Assets
Non-current assets of the company amounted to KRW 2.17 trillion, up 24.3% from the previous year, due mainly to the increases of 304.3% in 

long-term financial instruments and 180.8% in investments in affiliates for securing high-quality contents. Available-for-sale financial assets 

increased 23.0% year-on-year to KRW 385.3 billion, which was mainly attributable to the increase of investments in beneficiary certificates 

and other companies’ debentures. 

2. Liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities at the end of 2016 increased 5.9% from the prior year to KRW 2.24 trillion. Current liabilities were KRW 1.80 

trillion, up 7.1%, mainly due to the increase of accounts payables and accrued expenses despite the redemption of short-term borrowings. 

Non-current liabilities were KRW 437.1 billion, an increase of 1.0% year-on-year.

As a result, consolidated debt-to-equity ratio decreased 39.0%p from 93.2% in the previous year to 54.3% at the end of 2016. NAVER strives 

to maintain stable and sound financial structure based on its excellence in creating cash.

III. FINANCIAL POSITION

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change FY2016 FY2015 % change

Current assets 4,199.9 2,639.4 59.1% 2,108.0 1,804.8 16.8%

Cash and cash equivalents 1,726.2 813.4 112.2% 203.7 355.1 (42.6%)

Short-term financial instruments 1,243.2 931.9 33.4% 1,103.6 873.7 26.3%

Trade and other receivables 760.9 526.6 44.5% 404.3 265.5 52.3%

Others 469.6 367.5 27.8% 396.4 310.5 27.7%

Non-current assets 2,170.7 1,746.5 24.3% 1,748.5 1,578.9 10.7%

Tangible assets 863.3 863.8 (0.1%) 666.6 662.0 0.7%

Long-term financial instruments 192.2 47.5 304.3% 78.0 47.0 65.9%

Available-for-sale financial assets 385.3 313.3 23.0% 238.2 158.9 49.9%

Investments in affiliates 182.2 64.9 180.8% 625.0 574.1 8.9%

Deferred tax assets 285.9 244.8 16.8% 82.8 72.2 14.7%

Others 262.0 212.2 23.4% 57.8 64.6 (10.5%)

Total assets 6,370.6 4,385.9 45.3% 3,856.5 3,383.7 14.0%

(KrW in billions)

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change FY2016 FY2015 % change

Current liabilities 1,803.9 1,683.7 7.1% 875.6 739.2 18.5%

Trade and other payables 671.8 548.6 22.5% 329.2 251.8 30.8%

Short-term borrowings 227.3 412.8 (44.9%) - - -

Income tax payable 239.1 178.9 33.6% 173.6 139.0 24.9%

Others 665.7 543.3 22.5% 372.7 348.4 7.0%

Non-current liabilities 437.1 432.7 1.0% 271.5 268.9 1.0%

Debenture 150.0 150.0 0.0% 150.0 150.0 0.0%

Liabilities for defined benefit obligations 241.7 233.7 3.4% 109.7 110.8 (1.0%)

Others 45.4 49.0 (7.3%) 11.8 8.0 47.3%

Total liabilities 2,241.0 2,116.3 5.9% 1,147.1 1,008.0 13.8%

(KrW in billions)

MANAgEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Cash and cash equivalents increased 112.2% from the previous year to KRW 1.73 trillion in 2016.

Cash flow from operating activities rose by 36.7% to KRW 1.16 trillion, which was mainly attributable to stable cash inflows from the 

expansion of our businesses, most notably advertising.

Cash flow from investing activities recorded minus KRW 941.7 billion, a slight expansion from the previous year. This was mainly attributable 

to the increase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, acquisition of tangible and intangible assets, and increase of investments 

in affiliated companies for business expansion.

Cash flow from financing activities sharply increased to KRW 697.8 billion from KRW 5.9 billion in 2015, which was mainly due to the capital 

increase from the listing of LINE, our subsidiary, on the stock markets in Japan and the US.

In 2017, NAVER will strive to create stable cash flow by remaining committed to expanding global business and mobile business as well as 

providing innovative services based on its strong competitive advantages. The created cash will be mainly used for investments in 

sustainable growth, shareholder-return policy, and other activities for corporate value enhancement.

IV. CASH FLOWS

The number of mobile internet users has been stably increasing throughout the world and relevant new services and products are actively 

developed and launched. We believe this trend will continue and allow the internet industry to enjoy stable growth in 2017.

NAVER will spare no effort to provide users with newer experiences and more convenient services in the coming year. To this end, we will 

focus on further upgrading search technologies and service quality, expanding mobile-optimized services, and developing new contents 

containing professionalism and value. We believe that these activities will solidify the foundation for our profit creation in the future.

Other focuses will be on reshaping our presence as a technology-driven platform and strengthening AI-based technologies to secure future 

growth engines, while building healthy ecosystem for internet business.

LINE, as a listed company on the stock exchange, is committed to enhancing independency and management transparency and pioneering 

new markets, thereby establishing its status as a global player. Moreover, LINE will concentrate its efforts on developing new contents 

including game and upgrading performance-based advertising, launched in 2016, to pursue sustainable growth. 

V. OUTLOOK FOR 2017 AND BUSINESS PLANS

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change FY2016 FY2015 % change

Cash flow from operating activities 1,164.0 851.4 36.7% 842.9 786.6 7.2%

Cash flow from investing activities (941.7) (785.9) - (557.3) (651.1) -

Cash flow from financing activities 697.8 5.9 11,730.4% (436.6) (173.8) -

Cash and cash equivalents at the

beginning of the year
813.4 722.5 12.6% 355.1 393.6 (9.8%)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,726.2 813.4 112.2% 203.7 355.1 (42.6%)

(KrW in billions)

3. Shareholders’ Equity

The company’s consolidated total shareholders’ equity at the end of 2016 recorded KRW 4.13 trillion, an increase of 82.0% year-on-year. 

There was no change in share capital and the number of shares issued was 32,962,679.

We hold treasury shares for stock price stabilization. The number of treasury shares was 4,155,266 at the end of 2016 and the acquisition 

cost was appropriated to other capital. Other capital recorded minus KRW 1.45 trillion due to the increase of more than 390 thousand treasury 

shares.

Retained earnings were KRW 3.81 trillion, up 24.1% year-on-year, which resulted from the increase of unappropriated retained earnings led by 

continuous profit creation.

Consolidated Non-consolidated

FY2016 FY2015 % change FY2016 FY2015 % change

Share capital 16.5 16.5 0.0% 16.5 16.5 0.0%

Share premium 1,217.2 133.1 814.6% 162.5 162.5 0.0%

Other capital (1,449.1) (1,094.4) - (1,395.0) (1,097.0) -

Retained earnings 3,810.2 3,069.4 24.1% 3,925.4 3,293.7 19.2%

Non-controlling interests 534.9 145.1 268.7% - - -

Total equity 4,129.6 2,269.6 82.0% 2,709.4 2,375.7 14.0%

(KrW in billions)

MANAgEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of 

NAVER Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of NAVER Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries 

(collectively the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the 

consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash 

flows for the years then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea (Korean IFRS) and for such internal control as management determines is

necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in 

accordance with Korean Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial tatements. 

The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Group’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Korean

Opinion 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position 

of the Group as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years 

then ended in accordance with Korean IFRS.

Auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The procedures and practices used in the Republic of Korea to 

audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries.

Seoul, Korea

March 9, 2017

This report is effective as at March 9, 2017, the audit report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances, which may occur between the audit report 
date and the time of reading this report, could have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. Accordingly, 
the readers of the audit report should understand that there is a possibility that the above audit report may have to be revised to reflect the impact of such 
subsequent events or circumstances, if any.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial position december 31, 2016 and 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries
(KrW in thousands)

[Continued]

Notes 2016 2015

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6,7   1,726,231,781   813,391,895

Short-term financial instruments 6 1,243,188,526 931,889,351

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss

5,6,8 352,050,575 295,150,847

Trade and other receivables 6,9 760,913,097 526,632,267

Available-for-sale financial assets 5,6,10 31,239,416 19,350,684

Inventories 12 10,346,099 15,506,933

Other current assets 13 75,963,753 37,460,664

4,199,933,247 2,639,382,643

Non-current assets 　

Property and equipment 14 863,258,398 863,804,605

Intangible assets 15 112,131,534 103,318,772

Long-term financial instruments 6 192,181,000 47,529,767

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,6,8 4,338,051 8,469,206

Trade and other receivables 6,9 122,501,672 71,364,581

Available-for-sale financial assets 5,6,10 385,267,016 313,297,732

Held-to-maturity financial assets 6,11 2,907,350 2,726,392

Investments in associates and joint ventures 16 182,152,420 64,864,935

Deferred tax assets 29 285,890,761 244,792,137

Other non-current assets 13 20,073,731 26,362,248

2,170,701,934 1,746,530,376

Total assets   6,370,635,181   4,385,913,018

Consolidated Statements of Financial position, Continued

NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries

december 31, 2016 and 2015

(KrW in thousands)

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes 2016 2015

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 4,6,17   671,823,271   548,631,755

Short-term borrowings 4,6,19 227,320,593 412,759,705

Current portion of debentures 4,6,19 -  104,957,251

Income tax payables 239,105,202 178,936,058

Provisions 20 46,354,542 48,705,511

Other current liabilities 18 619,321,945 389,665,600

1,803,925,551 1,683,655,880

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 4,6,17 9,065,272 4,158,772

Debentures 4,6,19 150,000,000 150,000,000

Net defined benefit liabilities 21 241,674,743 233,680,449

Provisions 20 15,120,742 16,617,718

Deferred tax liabilities 29 20,622,509 27,619,241

Other non-current liabilities 18 627,501 602,439

437,110,766 432,678,619

Total liabilities 2,241,036,318 2,116,334,499

Equity 

Share capital 22 16,481,340 16,481,340

Share premium 1,217,201,127 133,088,065

Other components of equity 23 (1,449,123,370) (1,094,415,010)

Retained earnings 25 3,810,189,404 3,069,369,884

Non-controlling interest 534,850,363 145,054,241

Total equity 4,129,598,863 2,269,578,519

Total liabilities and equity   6,370,635,181   4,385,913,018
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, Continued

NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries

years Ended december 31, 2016 and 2015 years Ended december 31, 2016 and 2015

(KrW in thousands)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes 2016 2015

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year is attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company 733,007,313 555,637,191

Non-controlling interests (9,415,847) (1,630,028)

Earnings (loss) per share from continuing and discontinued
operations to the equity holders of the Parent Company

Basic earnings (loss) per share (in Korean won)

From continuing operations 30   26,153    20,242 

From discontinued operations 30 (407) (2,623)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share (in Korean won)

From continuing operations 30    25,921   20,242 

From discontinued operations 30 (407) (2,623)

(KrW in thousands)

Notes 2016 2015

Operating revenues 35   4,022,629,620   3,253,930,352

Operating expenses 26 (2,920,589,144) (2,423,705,391)

Operating profit 1,102,040,476 830,224,961

Other income 27 102,016,940 63,036,499

Other expenses 27 (91,759,944) (82,593,406)

Finance income 28 66,704,080 67,236,221

Finance costs 28 (37,789,903) (52,997,259)

Share of net loss of associates and joint ventures 16 (9,440,699) (1,685,213)

Profit before income tax expense 1,131,770,949 823,221,803

Income tax expense 29 (360,863,616) (229,003,000)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 770,907,333 594,218,802

Loss from discontinued operations (11,834,381) (77,232,523)

Profit for the year   759,072,951   516,986,280

Profit (loss) for the year is attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company

Profit from continuing operations 761,140,055 595,979,009

Loss from discontinued operations 36 (11,834,381) (77,232,523)

Non-controlling interests 9,767,277 (1,760,207)

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (12,901,820) 46,096,784

Reclassification due to disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (42,827) (315,353)

Exchange differences (48,071,576) 838,303

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures 1,038,024 316,948

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit liabilities 24,496,715 (9,915,798)

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year, net of tax (35,481,484) 37,020,883

Total comprehensive income for the year     723,591,467   554,007,163

[Continued]
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries

years Ended december 31, 2016 and 2015 years Ended december 31, 2016 and 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(KrW in thousands)

Attributable to owners of the parent Company

Non-controlling 
Interest

Total  
Equity

Share
Capital

Share 
Premium

Other
Components 

of Equity
Retained 
Earnings

Balance at January 1, 2015   16,481,340   133,101,785   (937,172,720)   2,583,591,599   1,416,211   1,797,418,215

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -  -  -  518,746,486 (1,760,207) 516,986,280

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale 
financial assets

-  -  45,781,431 -  -  45,781,431

Exchage differences -  -  717,594 -  120,709 838,303

Share of other comprehensive income of 
associates and joint ventures

-  -  316,948 -  -  316,948

Remeasurements of net defined benefit 
liabilities

-  -  -  (9,925,268) 9,470 (9,915,798)

Transactions with owners

Dividends -  -  -  (23,042,934) -  (23,042,934)

Share-based payment expenses -  -  -  -  105,016,671 105,016,671

Issuance of shares -  -  (8,887) -  1,325,895 1,317,008

Payments for treasury shares -  -  (165,123,879) -  -  (165,123,879)

Others -  (13,720) (38,925,497) -  38,925,492 (13,725)

Balance at December 31, 2015   16,481,340   133,088,065   (1,094,415,010)   3,069,369,884   145,054,241   2,269,578,519

Balance at January 1, 2016   16,481,340   133,088,065   (1,094,415,010)   3,069,369,884   145,054,241   2,269,578,519

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year -  -  -  749,305,674 9,767,277 759,072,951

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale 
financial assets

-  -  (11,010,317) -  (1,934,330) (12,944,647)

Exchage differences -  -  (29,809,085) -  (18,262,491) (48,071,576)

Share of other comprehensive income of 
associates and joint ventures

-  -  876,506 -  161,518 1,038,024

Remeasurements of net defined benefit 
liabilities

-  -  -  23,644,535 852,180 24,496,715

Transactions with owners

Dividends -  -  -  (32,130,690) -  (32,130,690)

Share-based payment expenses -  -  -  -  100,992,243 100,992,243

Acquisition of treasury shares -  -  (298,713,407) -  -  (298,713,407)

Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries -  -  -  -  1,856,146 1,856,146

Share issuance of subsidiaries -  1,084,113,061 (16,052,057) -  296,363,580 1,364,424,584

Balance at December 31, 2016   16,481,340   1,217,201,127   (1,449,123,370)   3,810,189,404   534,850,363   4,129,598,863

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(KrW in thousands)

Notes 2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 31   1,471,646,010   1,087,915,691

Interest received 29,646,879 28,992,545

Interest paid (6,732,074) (6,402,744)

Dividends received 8,272,597 8,391,316

Income taxes paid (338,809,154) (267,529,396)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,164,024,258 851,367,412

Cash flows from investing activities

Net increase in short-term financial instruments (292,254,028) (540,835,259)

Increase in long-term financial instruments (175,854,609) (43,050,000)

Decrease in long-term financial instruments 10,050,000 -  

Net decrease(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss

(68,725,460) 4,474,620

Acquisition of property and equipment (153,799,501) (120,794,916)

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 56,618,452 2,317,873

Acquisition of intangible assets (20,810,426) (15,846,553)

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 187,761 513,451

Acquisitions of available-for-sale financial assets (124,184,791) (113,889,595)

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 19,004,020 71,969,133

Acquisitions of investments in associates and joint ventures (104,722,327) (31,219,736)

Proceeds from disposal of investments in associates and joint 
ventures

2,712,000 573,237

Decrease in cash due to business combination (4,597,667) (32,945,880)

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 7,300,449 30,898,580

Cash inflows(outflows) from other investing activities (92,636,442) 1,976,543

Net cash outflow from investing activities (941,712,567) (785,858,502)

[Continued]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAVEr Corporation and Subsidiaries

NAVER Corporation (the “Company”) was established on June 2, 1999 under the Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea to provide 

internet portal services. The Company’s headquarter is located at Buljeong-ro 6, Bundang-gu, Seongnam-si, Gyeonggi-do, Korea.

On October 29, 2002, the Company listed its shares on the Korean Securities Dealers’ Automated Quotations market. On November 28, 

2008, the Company transferred its share listing to the Korea Composite Stock Price Index market. As at December 31, 2016, the major 

shareholders of the Company consist of National Pension Fund (10.56%) and others.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) engage in providing internet portal and mobile services.

1.1 Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. general Information

december 31, 2016 and 2015

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Continued

NAVER Corporation and Subsidiaries

years Ended december 31, 2016 and 2015

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(KrW in thousands)

Notes 2016 2015

Cash flows from financing activities

proceeds from short-term borrowings 232,880,139 195,578,069

repayment of short-term borrowings (468,100,761) (153,960,560)

proceeds from debentures -  150,000,000

repayment of debentures (105,454,276) (4,590,746)

payment of dividends (32,130,690) (23,042,934)

Acquisition of treasury shares (304,437,387) (159,399,899)

share issuance of subsidiaries 1,374,092,814 -  

cash inflows from other financing activities 1,000,000 1,314,848

Net cash inflow from financing activities 697,849,840 5,898,778

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,321,645) 19,457,893

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 912,839,886 90,865,583

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 813,391,895 722,526,313

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   1,726,231,781   813,391,895

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Largest 
shareholder Subsidiaries Location Primary business

Ownership interest
held by the group (%)

Closing
month

December
31, 2016

December
31, 2015

NAVER NAVER Business Platform Korea Online information distrubution business 100.00 100.00 December

NAVER I&S Korea
Business support, workforce supply, 
employee dispatch,and software 
development

100.00 100.00 December

LINE1 Japan Mobile service development 80.35 100.00 December

NAVER China China Software development and distribution 100.00 100.00 December

Search Solution Korea Software development and distribution 100.00 100.00 December

N-Visions Korea
Exhibition and performance planning 
business

100.00 100.00 December

Brainpub Korea Mobile service development -   100.00 December

Camp Mobile Korea Software development and distribution 100.00 100.00 December

Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8 Korea Investment -   100.00 December

Entry Labs Korea Software development and distribution 100.00 100.00 December

Works Mobile Korea
Applied software development and 
distribution

100.00 100.00 December

WAV Media USA Mobile service development 100.00 -   December

SNOW3 Korea Software development and distribution 95.09 -   December

WEBTOON Entertainment USA Mobile service development 100.00 -   December

SB Next Media Innovation Fund Korea Investment 88.89 -   December

NAVER
Business
Platform

NAVER Business Platform Asia Pacific Singapore IT infrastructure operations 100.00 100.00 December

NAVER Business Platform America USA IT infrastructure operations 100.00 100.00 December

NAVER Business Platform Europe Germany IT infrastructure operations 100.00 100.00 December

[Continued]
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Largest 
shareholder Subsidiaries Location Primary business

Ownership interest
held by the group (%)

Closing
month

December
31, 2016

December
31, 2015

LINE BIZ+2

LINE Pay Japan
Mobile payment system planning and 
development

100.00 100.00 December

Line Biz Plus Korea Software development and distribution 100.00 100.00 December

Line Biz+ Taiwan Taiwan
Mobile payment system planning and 
development

100.00 100.00 December

LINE Pay2

Webpay Holdings Japan
Mobile payment system planning and 
development

100.00 100.00 December

Webpay 
Holdings2 Webpay Japan

Mobile payment system planning and 
development

100.00 100.00 December

LINE
Company
(Thailand)2

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY
(formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS)

Thailand Mobile payment service 50.00 100.00 December

MIXRADIO MixRadio Entertainment India India Mobile service operations 100.00 100.00 December

SNOW SNOW China Hong Kong Mobile service operations 100.00 -   December

SNOW Japan Japan Mobile service operations 100.00 -   December

WEBTOON
Entertainment

Watong Entertainment Limited Hong Kong Mobile service operations 100.00 -   December

1   During the year, LINE, subsidiary of the Group, listed its newly issued shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and NYSE. Thus, the ownership of the Group decreased due to 
issuance of shares arising from LINE’s initial offering and exercising of stock options.

2 Ownership interest held by the Group represents percentage of LINE's ownership, and the effective ownership based on non-controlling interests of LINE are as follow:

Largest 
shareholder Subsidiaries Location Primary business

Ownership interest
held by the group (%)

Closing
month

December
31, 2016

December
31, 2015

NAVER I&S Incomms Korea Other contract services 100.00 100.00 December

Greenweb Service Korea Other contract services 100.00 100.00 December

NHN Technology Service Korea
Software consulting,
development and distribution

100.00 100.00 December

NIT Service Korea
Software development and
consulting

100.00 100.00 December

CommPartners Korea
Portal and other Internet
services, call center and
telemarketing services

100.00 100.00 December

LINE Plus2 LINE Play Korea Software development 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Euro-Americas USA Mobile service marketing 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Taiwan Taiwan Mobile service operations 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Company (Thailand) Thailand Mobile service operations 99.95 99.95 December

LINE Digital Technology (Shanghai) China Mobile service marketing 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Vietnam Vietnam Mobile service operations 95.00 95.00 December

LINE Digital Technologies India India Mobile service operations 100.00 100.00 December

PT.LINE PLUS INDONESIA Indonesia Mobile service operations 99.84 -   December

Camp Mobile Iconnect Korea Software development 100.00 100.00 December

Quicket Korea Software development and consulting 51.01 51.01 December

Gogolook Taiwan Mobile service development 70.00 70.00 December

Camp Mobile USA Mobile service operations 100.00 100.00 December

Works Mobile Works Mobile Japan Japan Mobile service operations 100.00 100.00 December

LINE2 Line Business Partners Japan Search advertising service 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Plus Korea Portal and Internet services 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Fukuoka Japan Mobile service operations 100.00 100.00 December

LINE BIZ+ Singapore
Mobile payment system planning and 
development

100.00 100.00 December

LINE Book Distribution Japan Mobile service development 52.00 52.00 December

LINE Ventures Japan Investment 100.00 100.00 December

LINE C&I Korea Investment 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Game Global Gateway Japan Investment 100.00 100.00 December

MIXRADIO UK Mobile service development 100.00 100.00 December

Bonsai Garage Japan Design -   100.00 December

LINE Friends Korea
Character equipment and doll wholesale 
and retail

100.00 100.00 December

LINE Life Global Gateway Japan Investment 100.00 100.00 December

LINE-NAVER Game Investment Fund Korea Investment 100.00 100.00 December

LINE Mobile(formerly, LMN) Japan Telecommunications service 100.00 -   December

M.T.Burn Japan Mobile advertising service business 50.49 -   December

[Continued]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Largest 
shareholder Subsidiaries Location Primary business

Effective
Ownership interest(%)

Closing
month

December
31, 2016

December
31, 2015

LINE Plus LINE Play Korea Software development 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Euro-Americas USA Mobile service marketing 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Taiwan Taiwan Mobile service operations 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Company (Thailand) Thailand Mobile service operations 80.31 99.95 December

LINE Digital Technology (Shanghai) China Mobile service marketing 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Vietnam Vietnam Mobile service operations 76.34 95.00 December

LINE Digital Technologies India India Mobile service operations 80.35 100.00 December

PT.LINE PLUS INDONESIA Indonesia Mobile service operations 80.23 -   December

LINE Line Business Partners Japan Search advertising service 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Plus Korea Portal and Internet services 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Fukuoka Japan Mobile service operations 80.35 100.00 December

LINE BIZ+ Singapore
Mobile payment system planning and 
development

80.35 100.00 December

LINE Book Distribution Japan Mobile service development 41.78 52.00 December

LINE Ventures Japan Investment 80.35 100.00 December

LINE C&I Korea Investment 80.35 100.00 December

LINE Game Global Gateway Japan Investment 80.35 100.00 December

MIXRADIO UK Mobile service development 80.35 100.00 December

Bonsai Garage Japan Design -   100.00 December

LINE Friends Korea
Character equipment and doll wholesale 
and retail

80.35 100.00 December

LINE Life Global Gateway Japan Investment 80.35 100.00 December

LINE-NAVER Game Investment Fund Korea Investment 86.90 100.00 December

LINE Mobile(formerly, LMN) Japan Telecommunications service 80.35 -   December

M.T.Burn Japan Mobile advertising service business 40.57 -   December

LINE BIZ+
LINE Pay Japan

Mobile payment system planning and 
development

80.35 100.00 December

Line Biz Plus Korea Software development and distribution 80.35 100.00 December

LINE BIZ+ Taiwan Taiwan
Mobile payment system planning and 
development

80.35 100.00 December

LINE Pay 
Webpay Holdings Japan

Mobile payment system planning and 
development

80.35 100.00 December

Webpay 
Holdings Webpay Japan

Mobile payment system planning and 
development

80.35 100.00 December

MIXRADIO MixRadio Entertainment India India Mobile service operations 80.35 100.00 December

3   The ownership interest of SNOW is the effective ownership interest held by the Group calculated based on the shares held by both the Company and LINE, a subsidiary of 
the Company.

1.2 Summarized Financial Information

Summarized financial information for subsidiaries as at and for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Subsidiary Assets Liabilities Equity Sales
Profit (loss)
for the year

Total 
comprehensive 

income (loss)

LINE   2,671,847,783   770,303,957   1,901,543,826   1,142,901,303   2,001,319   (28,538,899)

LINE Plus 401,385,543 229,902,433 171,483,110 470,239,376 37,212,416 53,461,572

NAVER Business Platform 262,990,115 49,252,041 213,738,074 304,236,920 20,200,274 20,745,634

LINE C&I 104,838,746 12,171,927 92,666,819 752,055 (4,344,167) (22,514,627)

NAVER I&S 43,449,445 15,999,569 27,449,876 15,405,060 (63,794) 1,136,206

Works Mobile 31,403,999 15,272,970 16,131,029 26,173,288 (10,606,386) (8,970,303)

LINE Friends 57,477,822 46,782,360 10,695,462 78,130,776 6,887,263 8,060,385

Camp Mobile 55,875,470 17,789,060 38,086,410 36,062,146 (23,786,881) (22,687,176)

LINE BIZ+ PTE 69,835,061 12,909,463 56,925,598 8,421,585 (10,048,228) (9,249,220)

LINE Taiwan 60,960,130 51,173,824 9,786,306 23,246,652 2,590,682 3,054,175

2015

Subsidiary Assets Liabilities Equity Sales
Profit (loss)
for the year

Total 
comprehensive 

income (loss)

LINE   1,341,596,751   894,039,103   447,557,648   822,016,147   767,301   6,566,508

LINE Plus 303,583,867 191,108,541 112,475,326 434,054,465 42,951,664 37,238,338

NAVER Business Platform 238,802,930 45,810,490 192,992,440 289,037,993 16,950,227 18,446,537

LINE C&I 133,768,488 18,587,080 115,181,408 353,425 (164,443) 61,536,141

NAVER I&S 43,854,923 17,541,253 26,313,670 17,703,278 1,433,583 1,610,146

Works Mobile 40,313,349 15,212,017 25,101,332 16,279,161 (6,458,336) (7,181,383)

LINE Friends 40,087,785 39,177,699 910,086 34,138,616 (9,969,513) (11,048,374)

Camp Mobile 38,587,156 22,702,377 15,884,779 16,744,866 (30,999,983) (33,420,324)

LINE Biz+ PTE 31,522,065 8,996,366 22,525,699 3,002,774 (11,880,144) (9,949,176)

LINE Taiwan 22,825,512 16,717,435 6,108,077 20,351,110 (231,195) (435,878)

(KrW in thousands)
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1.3 Changes in Scope of Consolidation

Subsidiaries newly included in the consolidation for the year ended December 31, 2016, are as follows:

Reason Subsidiaries

Obtaining control through establishment PT.LINE PLUS INDONESIA, LINE Mobile(formerly, LMN), WAV Media, SNOW1, SNOW China, WEBTOON 
Entertainment, SB Next Media Innovation Fund, Watong Entertainment, SNOW Japan

Newly acquired M.T. Burn

1 During the year, SNOW was established through the spin-off from Camp Mobile.

Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidation for the year ended December 31, 2016, are as follows:

Reason Subsidiaries

Liquidation Bonsai Garage, Dongbu Together Global Bond Trust No.8

Loss of control due to disposal RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY (formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS)

Merge Brainpub1

1 During the year, Brainpub was merged into Iconnect, subsidiary of Camp Mobile.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies 

have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation
The Group maintains its accounting records in Korean won and prepares statutory financial statements in the Korean language (Hangul) 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea (Korean IFRS). The accompanying 

consolidated financial statements have been condensed, restructured and translated into English from the Korean language financial

statements.

Certain information attached to the Korean language financial statements, but not required for a fair presentation of the Group's financial 

position, financial performance or cash flows, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Korean IFRS. These are the standards, 

subsequent amendments and related interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that have been 

adopted by the Republic of Korea.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of critical accounting estimates. Management also needs to exercise 

judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where 

assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policy and Disclosures

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing January 

1, 2016. The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact on the current period or any prior period and is not likely to affect 

future periods.

- Disclosure Initiative – Amendments to Korean IFRS 1001 Presentation of Financial Statements

Korean IFRS 1001 Presentation of Financial Statements clarifies that materiality applies to the exclusion, inclusion or aggregation of the 

disclosures in the notes. And also, clarifies that the share of OCI arising from equity-accounted should be presented in total for items which 

will and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Additional amendments are made in relation to a particular order of the notes and other.

- Clarification of Acceptable methods of Depreciation and Amortization – Amendments to Korean IFRS 1016 Property, Plant and Equipment, 

and Korean IFRS 1038 Intangible assets

Amendments to Korean IFRS 1016 Property, Plant and Equipment clarify that a revenue-based method should not be used to calculate the 

depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment. Korean IFRS 1038 Intangible assets now includes a rebuttable presumption that the 

amortization of intangible assets based on revenue is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome if either; the intangible asset is

expressed as a measure of revenue, or it can be shown that revenue and the consumption of economic benefits generated by the asset are 

highly correlated.

- Investment entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception – Amendments to Korean IFRS 1110

Consolidated Financial Statements, Korean IFRS 1028 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and Korean IFRS 1112 Disclosures of 

Interests in Other Entities

•   Amendments made to Korean IFRS 1110 Consolidated Financial Statements clarify that the exception from preparing consolidated 

financial statement is also available to intermediate parent entities which are subsidiaries of investment entities. If an investment entity 

has a subsidiary that is an investment entity and whose activities are providing services that related to the investment entity’s 

investment activities, the investment entity measures the subsidiary at fair value through profit or loss.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
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•   Amendments made to Korean IFRS 1028 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures clarify that entities which are not investment 

entities but have an interest in an associate which is an investment entity have a policy choice when applying the equity method of 

accounting.

•   Amendments made to Korean IFRS 1112 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities clarify that an investment entity which does not 

prepare consolidated financial statements should present disclosures relating to investment entities required by Korean IFRS 1112.

- Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations – Amendments to Korean IFRS 1111 Joint Arrangements

Amendments to Korean IFRS 1111 Joint Arrangements clarify the accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation where 

the activities of the operation constitute a business. An investor requires to apply the principles of business combination accounting 

when the investor acquires an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a business.

- Annual Improvements to Korean IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle

Annual Improvements to Korean IFRS 2012-2014 Cycle consist of the following amendments.

•   Korean IFRS 1105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation – clarifies when an asset (or disposal group) is 

reclassified from ‘held for sale’ to ‘held for distribution’ or vice versa, this does not have to be accounted for as such.

•   Korean IFRS 1107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures – clarifies the specific guidance for transferred financial assets to help 

management determine whether the terms of a servicing arrangement constitute ‘continuing involvement’, and also clarifies that the 

additional disclosures relating to the amendments in 2012 ‘Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’ only need to be 

included in interim reports if required by Korean IFRS 1034 Interim Financial Reporting.

•  Korean IFRS 1019 Employee Benefits clarifies that when determining the discount rate for postemployment benefit obligations, it is the 

currency in which the liabilities are denominated that is important, and not the country where they arise.

•  Korean IFRS 1034 Interim Financial Reporting clarifies what is meant by the reference in the standard to ‘information disclosed 

elsewhere in the interim financial report’ and also amended requirements for a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to 

the location of that information.

- Korean IFRS 1011 Construction Contract, Korean IFRS 1037 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and Interpretation 

2115 Arrangements for Property Construction

These standards and interpretation clarify the accounting information disclosure requirement for construction contracts. The 

accounting estimates and potential risk information of the construction contracts should be disclosed in detail by either individual 

construction or operating segment.

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted by the group
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations that have been published that are not mandatory for December 31, 2016 

reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group are set out below.

- Amendments to Korean IFRS 1007 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to Korean IFRS 1007 Statement of Cash flows requires to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to 

evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. 

The Group will apply this amendment for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with early application permitted. 

The Group does not expect the amendments to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- Amendments to Korean IFRS 1012 Income Tax

Amendments to Korean IFRS 1012 clarify how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. 

Korea IFRS 1012 provides requirements on the recognition and measurement of current or deferred tax liabilities or assets. The 

amendments issued clarify the requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses, to address diversity in practice. 

The Group will apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with early application permitted. The 

Group does not expect the amendments to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- Amendments to Korean IFRS 1102 Share-based Payment

Amendments to Korean IFRS 1102 clarifies accounting for a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that 

changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equitysettled. And also, clarifies that the measurement approach 

should treat the terms and conditions of a cash-settled award in the same way as for an equity-settled award. The Group will apply the 

amendments for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early application permitted. The Group does not expect the 

amendments to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

- Korean IFRS 1109 Financial Instruments

The new standard for financial instruments issued on September 25, 2015 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 

1, 2018 with early application permitted. This standard will replace Korean IFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 

Measurement. The Group will apply the standards for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.

The standard requires retrospective application with some exceptions. For example, an entity is not required to restate prior period in 

relation to classification, measurement and impairment of financial instruments. The standard requires prospective application of its 

hedge ccounting requirements for all hedging relationships except the accounting for time value of options and other exceptions.

Korean IFRS 1109 Financial Instruments requires all financial assets to be classified and measured on the basis of the entity’s business 

model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A new impairment model, an 

expected credit loss model, is introduced and any subsequent changes in expected credit losses will be recognized in profit or loss. 

Also, hedge accounting rules amended to extend the hedging relationship, which consists only of eligible

hedging instruments and hedged items, qualifies for hedge accounting.

An effective implementation of Korea IFRS 1109 requires preparation processes including financial impact assessment, accounting 

policy establishment, accounting system development and the system stabilization. The impact on the Group’s financial statements due 

to the application of the standard is dependent on judgements made in applying the standard, financial instruments held by the Group 

and macroeconomic variables.

With the implementation of Korean IFRS 1109, the Group neither prepared for internal management process nor began to adjust 

accounting system for financial instruments reporting. Also, the Group did not analyze the financial effects of applying the standard. 

However, the following areas are likely to be affected in general.

(a) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
When implementing Korean IFRS 1109, the classification of financial assets will be driven by the Group’s business model for managing 

the financial assets and contractual terms of cash flow. The following table shows the classification of financial assets measured 

subsequently at amortized cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss. For hybrid

(combined) instruments, if the Group is unable to measure an embedded derivative separately from its host contract, financial assets 

with embedded derivatives are classified in their entirety.
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With the implementation of Korean IFRS 1109, the criteria to classify the financial assets at amortized cost or at fair value through other 

comprehensive income are more strictly applied than the criteria applied with Korean IFRS 1039. Accordingly, the financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss may increase by implementing Korean IFRS 1109 and may result an extended fluctuation in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group owns loans and receivables of KRW 4,045,016 million, available-forsale financial assets of KRW 

416,506 million, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of KRW 356,389 million and held-to-maturity financial assets of KRW 

2,907 million.

According to Korean IFRS 1109, a debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if: a) the objective of the business model is to hold the 

financial asset for the collection of the contractual cash flows, and b) the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent 

payments of principal and interest. As at December 31, 2016, the Group measured loans and receivables of KRW 4,045,016 million and 

held-tomaturity financial assets of KRW 2,907 million at amortized costs.

(b) Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
Korean IFRS 1109 requires the amount of the change in the liability’s fair value attributable to changes in the credit risk to be recognized 

in other comprehensive income, unless this treatment of the credit risk component creates or enlarges a measurement mismatch. 

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.

Under Korean IFRS 1039, all financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss recognized their fair value movements in 

profit or loss. However, under Korean IFRS 1109, certain fair value movements will be recognized in other comprehensive income and as 

a result, profit or loss from fair value movements may decrease. As at December 31, 2016, there are no financial liabilities measured at

fair value through profit or loss.

(c) Impairment: Financial Assets and Contract Assets
Korean IFRS 1109 sets out a new forward looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model which replaces the incurred loss model under Korean 

IFRS 1039 and applies to:

• Financial assets measured at amortized cost

• Debt investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, and

• Certain loan commitments and financial guaranteed contracts.

Under Korean IFRS 1109 ‘expected loss’ model, a credit event (or impairment ‘trigger’) no longer has to occur before credit losses are 

recognized. The Group will always recognize (at a minimum) 12-month expected credit losses in profit or loss. Lifetime expected losses 

will be recognized on assets for which there is a significant increase in credit risk after initial recognition.

Under Korean IFRS 1109, the asset that is credit-impaired at initial recognition would recognize all changes in lifetime expected credit 

losses since the initial recognition as a loss allowance with any changes recognized in profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group owns debt investment carries at amortized cost of KRW 4,066,128 million (loans, receivables, 

held-to-maturity financial assets), debt investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income, which classified as 

available-for-sales financial assets, of KRW 146,174 million. And the Group recognized loss allowance of KRW 18,205 million for these 

assets.

(d) Hedge Accounting
Hedge accounting mechanics (fair value hedges, cash flow hedges and hedge of net investments in a foreign operations) required by 

Korean IFRS 1039 remains unchanged in Korean IFRS 1109, however, the new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting for 

hedging instruments more closely with the Group’s risk management practices. As a general rule, more hedge relationships might be 

eligible for hedge accounting, as the standard introduces a more principles-based approach. Korean IFRS 1109 allows more hedging 

instruments and hedged items to qualify for hedge accounting, and relaxes the hedge accounting requirement by removing two hedge 

effectiveness tests that are a prospective test to ensure that the hedging relationship is expected to be highly effective and a 

quantitative retrospective test (within range of 80-125%) to ensure that the hedging relationship has been highly effective throughout 

the reporting period.

With implementation of Korean IFRS 1109, volatility in profit or loss may be reduced as some items that were not eligible as hedged items 

or hedging instruments under Korean IFRS 1039 are now eligible under Korean IFRS 1109.

As at December 31, 2016, there are no assets, liabilities, firm commitments or forecast transactions applying the hedge accounting.

Furthermore, when the Group first applies Korean IFRS 1109, it may choose as its accounting policy choice to continue to apply all of the 

hedge accounting requirements of Korean IFRS 1039 instead of the requirements of Korean IFRS 1109.

- Korean IFRS 1115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group will apply Korean IFRS 1115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers issued on November 6, 2015 for annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, and earlier application is permitted. This standard replaces Korean IFRS 1018 Revenue, 

Korean IFRS 1011 Construction Contracts, Interpretation 2031 Revenue-Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services, 

Interpretation 2113 Customer Loyalty Programs, Interpretation 2115 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate and Interpretation 

2118 Transfers of assets from customers. The Group must apply Korean IFRS 1115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers within 

annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, and will apply the standard retrospectively to prior reporting period 

presented in accordance with Korean IFRS 1008 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and apply simplified 

transition method with no restatement for completed contracts and other as at January 1, 2017.

Business model for the contractual cash flows
characteristics

Solely represent payments
of principal and interest

All other

Hold the financial asset for the collection of the
contractual cash flows 

Measured at amortized cost1

Recognized at fair value through profit or loss2Hold the financial asset for the collection of the
contractual cash flows and trading

Recognized at fair value through other 
comprehensive income1

Hold for trading Recognized at fair value
through profit or loss

1 A designation at fair value through profit or loss is allowed only if such designation mitigates an accounting mismatch (irrevocable).

2 Equity investments that are not held for trading can be recorded in other comprehensive income (irrevocable).

1   A loss allowance for lifetime expected credit losses is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. It is also required for contract assets or trade receivables that are not, according to Korean IFRS 1115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, considered to 
contain a significant financing component. Additionally, the Group can elect an accounting policy of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses for all contract assets and/or 
all trade receivables, including those that contain a significant financing component.

2 If the financial instrument has low credit risk at the reporting date, the Group may assume that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Stage1 Loss allowance

1
No significant increase in credit
risk after initial recognition2

12-month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result 
from those default events on the financialinstrument that are possible 
within 12 months after the reporting date)

2
Significant increase in credit risk
after initial recognition Lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from 

all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument)
3 Objective evidence of impairment
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The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognized when control of a good or service transfers to a customer – so the 

notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. A new five-step process must be applied before revenue from 

contract with customer can be recognized:

• Identify contracts with customers

• Identify the separate performance obligation

• Determine the transaction price of the contract

• Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and

• Recognize the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group neither prepared for internal management process nor began to adjust accounting system in 

relation to implementation of Korean IFRS 1115. Also, the Group did not analyze the financial effects of applying the standard. The Group 

plans to analyze the financial effects of applying the standard and disclose the result of the analysis in the notes on the financial 

statement as at September 30, 2017. The Group identified the following areas are likely to be affected in general.

(a) Identify performance obligation
The Group engaged in providing internet portal services, and operating revenues are mainly comprised of the advertisement and 

contents sales.

With the implementation of Korean IFRS 1115, the Group identifies performance obligations from contracts with customers, and where a 

performance obligation is satisfied over time, the related revenue is also recognized over time.

(b) Allocating the transaction price
With implementation of Korean IFRS 1115, the transaction price in an arrangement must be allocated to each separate performance 

obligation based on the relative standalone selling prices of the goods or services being provided to a customer. The Group determines 

the standalone selling price for each separate performance obligation by using ‘adjust market assessment approach’. In limited 

circumstances, the Group plans to use ‘expected cost plus a margin approach’ to estimate expected cost plus a reasonable margin.

2.3 Consolidation
The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Korean IFRS 1110 Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights 

to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities 

of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated 

from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. The consideration transferred is 

measured at the fair values of the assets transferred, and identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in 

a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling 

interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate 

share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair values, unless otherwise 

required by other standards. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of consideration transferred, amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair value of 

any previous equity interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recoded as goodwill. If 

those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognized directly in 

the profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealized losses 

are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of 

subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity owners of 

the Group. A changed in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-

controlling interest to reflect their relative interest in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to non-

controlling interest and any consideration paid or received is recognized in a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the 

Parent Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate for a subsidiary because of a loss of control, any retained interest in the subsidiary is remeasured 

to its fair value with the changed in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss.

(b) Associates
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. Investments in associates are 

accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost. Unrealized gains on transactions between 

the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. If there is objective evidence of

impairment for the investment in the associate, the Group recognizes the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate 

and its book amount as impairment loss.

(c) Joint Ventures
A joint agreement, wherein two or more parties have joint control, is classified as either a joint operation or a joint venture.

A joint operator holds direct rights and obligations to the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations and recognizes its 

share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the 

equity method, after initially being recognized at cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.4 Foreign Currency Translation

(a) Subsidiaries
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic 

environment in which each entity operates (the “functional currency” ). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Korean 

won, which is the Parent Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and 

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the 

fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain 

or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or

loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as 

equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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2.5 Financial Assets

(a) Classification and measurement
The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-

sale financial assets, loans and receivables, and held-to-maturity financial assets. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets 

are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For hybrid (combined) instruments, the Group is unable to measure an embedded derivative separately from its host contract; therefore, 

the entire hybrid (combined) contract is classified as at fair value through profit or loss. The financial assets designated at fair value 

through profit or loss by the Group is derivatives-combined securities. In addition, the group of financial instruments managed and 

evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the investment strategy is designated at fair value through profit or loss.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through 

profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial 

assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at 

fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. And, loans and receivables and held-tomaturity investments are 

subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss 

within finance income or finance costs. Gains or losses arising from changes in the available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in 

other comprehensive income, and amounts are reclassified to profit or loss when the associated assets are sold or impaired.

(b) Impairment
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 

assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective 

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and

that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financial assets that can 

be reliably estimated.

Impairment of loans and receivables is presented as a deduction in an allowance account, and that of other financial assets is directly 

deducted from their carrying amount. The Group writes off financial assets when the assets are determined to be no longer recoverable.

The Group considers that there is objective evidence of impairment if significant financial difficulties of the debtor, or prolonged 

delinquency in interest or principal payments is indicated. Moreover, in the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a 

significant decline in the fair value of the security below its cost significantly or prolonged decline is considered an objective evidence of 

impairment.

(c) Derecognition
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the Group has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 

transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset in its entirety and recognizes a financial liability for the 

consideration received.

(d) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial position where there is 

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the assets and 

settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the 

normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.6 Derivatives instruments
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date when a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured 

at their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for 

hedge accounting are recognized immediately in profit or loss within 'other non-operating income (expenses)' or 'finance income (costs)'

based on the nature of transactions.

2.7 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.

2.8 Property and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of all property, plant and equipment, except for land, is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or 

revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

The assets’ depreciation method, residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 

period.

2.9 Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are 

capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Investment income 

earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the 

borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.10 Intangible Assets
Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.(a), and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets, except for goodwill, are initially recognized at its historical cost, and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses.

Software development costs that are internally generated by the Group are recognized when the criteria such as, technical feasibility, 

probability of future economic benefits and other, are met. Membership rights that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to 

amortization because there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the assets are expected to be utilized. The Group amortizes 

intangible assets with a limited useful life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Useful life

Buildings 30 years

Structures 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Supplies 3 - 5 years

Machinery 3 years

Others 4 - 6 years



Notes to the CoNsolidated 
FiNaNCial statemeNts

090 091Naver annual report 2016FiNaNcial review

2.11 government grants
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 

the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants related to assets are presented in the statement of financial 

position either by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset, and government grants related to costs are 

deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to 

compensate.

2.12 Impairment of Non-financial Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, 

or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 

recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the

higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an 

impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.13 Financial Liabilities

(a) Classification and measurement
The Group’s financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial instruments held for trading. A financial liability is held for 

trading if it is incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. A derivative that is not designated as hedging 

instruments and an embedded derivative that is separated are also classified as held for trading.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, financial 

guarantee contracts and financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of financial assets does not qualify for derecognition, as financial 

liabilities carried at amortized cost and present ‘trade and other payables’ and ‘borrowings’, in the consolidated statement of financial 

position.

(b) Derecognition
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 

period, and the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.14 Provisions
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting 

period, and the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.15 Current and Deferred Income Tax
The tax expense for the period consists of current and deferred tax. The Company implemented a consolidated tax payment system to 

presume the Parent Company and its subsidiaries in Korea are one taxpayer. The Company uses systematic and reasonable method to 

measure tax returns of each entities on the basis of the consolidated tax payment system. Current and deferred tax is recognized in 

profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the 

tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The tax expense is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject 

to interpretation. The Group recognizes current income tax on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if it 

arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction 

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary 

differences and losses.

The Group recognizes a deferred tax liability all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates, 

and interests in joint arrangements, except to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, the Group recognizes a 

deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary differences arising from such investments to the extent that it is probable the

temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference 

can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when 

the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a 

legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis.

2.16 Employee Benefits

(a) Post-employment benefits
The Group operates defined benefit pension plans.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Generally, post-employment benefits are payable after the 

completion of employment, and the benefit amount depended on the employee’s age, periods of service or salary levels. The liability 

recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by 

independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 

discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the 

currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurement

gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they 

occur, directly in other comprehensive income.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments, curtailments and settlements are 

recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

(b) Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment is recognized at fair value of equity instruments granted, and employee benefit expense is 

recognized over the vesting period. At the end of each period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected 

to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in 

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Useful lives

Industrial rights 5 years

Software 5 years

Others 5 years, 30 years
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When the options are exercised, the Group issues new shares. The proceeds received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, 

are recognized as share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

(c) Other long-term employee benefits
The Group provide long-term employee benefits to certain employees. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued using the 

same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plan. The Group recognizes service cost, net interest on other long-term 

employee benefits and remeasurements as profit or loss for the year.

2.17 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods or rendering of services arising 

from the normal course of the business. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of value added taxes, returns, rebates and discounts and 

after elimination of inter-company transactions.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will 

flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The Group bases its 

estimate on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each 

arrangement.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when products are delivered to the customer.

(b) Rendering of services
Revenue from internet and mobile services is recognized when such services are rendered. The other revenues from rendering of 

services are recognized when substantially all contractual obligations of the service have been fulfilled by the Group based on the terms 

of the contracts.

(c) Commission income
The Group recognizes the net amount charged to the client less the amount needs to be paid to the actual supplier of the goods and 

services as commission income in case the Group performs as agent of the supplier, not the principal of the transaction.

(d) Customer loyalty program
The Group operates a customer loyalty program where customers accumulate points for purchases made which entitle them to 

discounts on future purchases. The fair value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of the initial sale is allocated 

between the reward points and the other components of the sale. The fair value of the reward points is measured by taking into account 

the proportion of the reward points that are not expected to be redeemed by customers. Revenue from the reward points is recognized 

when the points are redeemed and the reward points are expected to expire 12 months after the initial sale.

(e) Interest income
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method according to the time passed. When a loan and receivable is impaired, 

the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is recognized using the original effective interest rate.

(f) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

2.18 Segment Reporting
Information of each operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the internal business segment reporting provided to the 

chief operating decision-maker (Note 35). The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and 

assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.19 Approval of Issuance of the Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements 2016 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on January 25, 2017 and are subject to 

change with the approval of shareholders at their Annual General Meeting.

3. Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the Group to make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. Estimates and 

judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the 

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Estimated goodwill impairment
The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit 

(CGU) is determined based on value-in-use calculations (Note 15).

(b) Income taxes
The Group’s taxable income generated from these operations are subject to income taxes based on tax laws and interpretations of tax 

authorities in numerous jurisdictions. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain 

(Note 29).

If certain portion of the taxable income is not used for investments or increase in wages or dividends in accordance with the Tax System 

For Recirculation of Corporate Income, the Group is liable to pay additional income tax calculated based on the tax laws. The new tax 

system is effective for three years from 2015. Accordingly, the measurement of current and deferred income tax is affected by the tax

effects from the new tax system. As the Group’s income tax is dependent on the investments, increase in wages and dividends, there is 

an uncertainty measuring the final tax effects.

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group 

uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end 

of each reporting period (Note 5).

(d) Net defined benefit liability
The present value of net defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a 

number of assumptions including the discount rate (Note 21).

(e) Provisions
As at December 31, 2016, the Group recognizes provisions for social contribution, restoration and others. These provisions are 

estimated based on past experience (Note 20).
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4. Financial Risk Management

4.1 Financial Risk Factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate 

risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and 

seeks to minimize any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

4.1.1 Market risk

(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with 

respect to the US dollar and the Japanese yen. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets.

The impact of weakened/strengthened Korean won by 5% against foreign currencies with all other variables held constant on the 

post-tax profit for the years ended and equity as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

(b) Price risk
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the consolidated 

statement of financial position either as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss.

The impact of increases/decreases of the stock price by 5% with all other variables held constant on the Group’s post-tax profit for the 

years ended and equity as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(c) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the interest income or expenses arising from deposits and borrowings will fluctuate because 

of changes in future market interest rate. The interest rate risk mainly arises on floating rate deposits and borrowings. The objective of 

interest rate risk management lies in maximizing corporate value by minimizing uncertainty in interest rates fluctuations and net interest

expense.

Impact on post-tax profit Impact on equity

2016 2015 2016 2015

USD Weakened   2,188,425   852,935   2,188,425   852,935

Strengthened (2,188,425) (852,935) (2,188,425) (852,935)

JPY Weakened 2,070,067 (297,216) 2,070,067 (297,216)

Strengthened (2,070,067) 297,216 (2,070,067) 297,216

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

Impact on post-tax profit Impact on equity

2016 2015 2016 2015

Listed equity securities Increase   2,375,450   383,213   3,297,288   1,199,322

Decrease (2,375,450) (383,213) (3,297,288) (1,199,322)

As at December 31, 2016, the Group has floating rate deposits and does not have floating rate borrowings, and because of this, net 

interest income increase when interest rates increase. The Group adequately minimizes risks from interest rate fluctuations through 

various policies, such as avoiding high rate borrowings, reforming capital structure, monitoring fluctuations of domestic and foreign 

interest rates daily, weekly and monthly, establishing alternatives, and balancing floating rate short-term borrowings with floating rate 

deposits.

The impact of 10bp higher/lower of interest rate with all other variables held constant on the Group’s post-tax profit for the years ended 

and equity as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

Impact on post-tax profit Impact on equity

2016 2015 2016 2015

Increase   758,892   (71,048)   719,378   (71,048)

Decrease (758,892) 71,048 (719,378) 71,048

4.1.2 Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as 

well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial 

institutions, only independently rated parties with high rating are accepted. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are 

used. If there is no independent rating, the credit quality of the customer is evaluated by taking into account its financial position, past 

experience and other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored.

As at December 31, 2016, and 2015, the book amount of the Group’s financial assets represents the maximum exposure of the credit 

risks after deducting impairment losses.

4.1.3 Liquidity Risk
The Group monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs 

while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach 

borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s 

debt financing plans, covenant compliance with internal financial ratio target and external regulatory or legal requirements - for example, 

currency restrictions.

Details of the Group’s liquidity risk analysis as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

2016

Book amount
Cash flow in

agreement
Less than

1 years
Between

1 and 5 years

Trade and other payables   492,888,649   492,888,649   483,823,377   9,065,272

Short-term borrowings 227,320,593 227,440,867 227,440,867 -  

Debentures 150,000,000 155,952,800 3,189,000 152,763,800

  870,209,242   876,282,316   714,453,244   161,829,072

(KrW in thousands)
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5.2 Financial Instruments Measured at Cost
Details of financial instruments measured at cost as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2015

Book amount
Cash flow in

agreement
Less than

1 years
Between

1 and 5 years

Trade and other payables   409,499,660   409,499,660   405,340,888   4,158,772

Short-term borrowings 412,759,705 412,987,056 412,987,056 -   

Debentures (including current portion) 254,957,251 267,466,366 110,818,366 156,648,000

  1,077,216,616   1,089,953,082   929,146,310   160,806,772

4.2 Capital Risk Management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Company uses 

debt to equity ratio for capital management. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total equity as shown in the statements of 

financial position

The Group’s debt to equity ratio as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Debt   2,241,036,318   2,116,334,499

Equity 4,129,598,863 2,269,578,519

Debt to equity ratio 54.27% 93.25%

5. Fair Value

5.1 Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value
Details of financial instruments measured at fair value as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Book amount Fair value Book amount Fair value

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   356,388,626   356,388,626   303,620,053   303,620,053

Available-for-sale financial assets 316,104,081 316,104,081 262,871,804 262,871,804

  672,492,707   672,492,707   566,491,857   566,491,857

As at December 31, 2106 and 2015, there are no financial liabilities measured at fair value, financial assets and liabilities whose carring 

amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value are excluded from the fair value disclosures.

The above available-for-sale financial assets mainly consist of unlisted securities, of which the variability of estimated cash flows is 

significant and the probabilities of the various estimates cannot be reasonably assessed.

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Available-for-sale financial assets  100,402,351   69,776,612

5.3 Fair Value Hierarchy
Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, and the defined levels are as follows:

• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

•  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, prices) or 

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

•    Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Fair value hierarchy classifications of the financial instruments that are measured at fair value or its fair value is disclosed as at 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   62,676,789   12,164,335   281,547,502   356,388,626

Available-for-sale financial assets 24,322,904 169,038,711 122,742,466 316,104,081

2015

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   10,111,164   26,442,397   267,066,492   303,620,053

Available-for-sale financial assets 21,533,225 102,110,304 139,228,275 262,871,804

(KrW in thousands)
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(KrW in thousands)

1  During the prior year, the Group reclassified corporate bonds with inputs that are indirectly observable in an active market and derivatives that are classified by nobservable 

inputs as level 2 and level 3, respectively.

2016 2015

Financial assets
at fair value 

through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Financial assets
at fair value

through
profit or loss

Available-for-sale
financial assets

Beginning balance    267,066,492    139,228,275    265,546,977    74,578,106

Total profit or loss

Amount recognized in profit or loss (4,120,523) (383,856) 709,695 -

Amount recognized in other comprehensive income -   (22,774,371) - 81,189,320

Acquisition 241,850,761 8,353,830 206,407,626 540,180

Disposal (223,249,228) (2,356,042) (202,866,264) (840,807)

Transfer into Level 31 - - 7,437,203 46,643,126

Transfer out of Level 31 - - (10,168,745) (63,147,598)

Others -   674,630 -   265,948

Ending balance   281,547,502   122,742,466   267,066,492   139,228,275

5.5 Valuation Techniques and the Inputs
Valuation techniques and inputs used in the recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements of financial instruments categorized in 

levels 2 and 3 of the fair value hierarchy as at December 31, 2016, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Fair value Level Valuation techniques Major Inputs
Unobservable 
inputs

Range of
unobservable

inputs

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives linked
securities

   277,209,451 3 Black Scholes Model, Hull-White 
Model, Monte Carlo Simulation,
Gaussian 1-factor model, 
Garman- Kohlhagen model
and Others

Price of the underlying assets, 
Dividend rate, Volatility of the
underlying assets, Correlation 
between the underlying assets 
(rates of return on shares),
Interest rate, CDS SPREAD, 
Recovery rate, Discount rate

Volatility of the
underlying assets

3.29% ~ 37.15%

Correlation 
coefficient

0.00 ~ 1.00

CDS SPREAD 0.14% ~ 1.97%

Discount rate 1.92% ~ 2.31%

Recovery rate 40.00% 

Debt securities 12,164,335 2 Present value method
Credit risk adjusted discount 
rate

- - 

Derivatives 4,338,051 3 Option pricing model Price of the underlying assets, 
Credit risk adjusted discount 
rate, Volatility of the underlying 
assets

Volatility of the 
underlying assets

34.30% ~ 39.56%

Discount rate 1.56% ~ 1.88%

Available-for-sale financial assets

Beneficiary
certificates

23,104,863 2 - Quoted price of the underlying 
assets

- -

14,508,458 3 Market approach EBITDA Multiple
Revenue Multiple
Liquidity discount rate

EBITDA Multiple 35.3

Revenue Multiple 8.85

Liquidity discount 
rate

30.00%

Debt securities 145,933,848 2 Present value method Credit risk adjusted discount 
rate

- -

Equity securities 108,234,008 3 Market approach EBITDA Multiple Revenue 
Multiple Liquidity discount rate

EBITDA Multiple 2.54 ~ 21.70

Revenue Multiple 0.15 ~ 16.85

Liquidity discount 
rate

30.00%

5.6 Valuation Processes for Fair Value Measurements Categorized Within Level 3
The Group operates a separate team that performs the fair value measurements required for financial reporting purposes, including 

level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO), and discusses the valuation process and results with the 

CFO at least once quarter in line with the Group’s quarterly reporting schedule.

5.7 Sensitivity Analysis for Recurring Fair Value Measurements Categorized Within Level 3
Sensitivity analysis of financial instruments is performed to measure favorable and unfavorable changes in the fair value of financial 

instruments which are affected by the unobservable parameters, using a statistical technique. When the fair value is affected by more 

than two input parameters, the amounts represent the most favorable or most unfavorable.

The results of the sensitivity analysis for the effect on profit or loss from changes in inputs for each financial instrument, which is 

categorized within level 3 and subject to sensitivity analysis, are as follows:

5.4 Transfers Between Fair Value Hierarchy Levels of Recurring Fair Value Measurements
The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value at the end of the reporting period. There are no transfers between Level 

1 and Level 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.

Details of changes in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for recurring fair value measurements for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 

2015, are as follows:
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(KrW in thousands)

2016

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables   492,888,649

Short-term borrowings 227,320,593

Debentures 150,000,000

  870,209,242

(KrW in thousands)

2015

Financial assets at 
fair value through

profit or loss
Loans and

receivables
Available-for-sale

financial assets
Held-to-maturity

financial assets Total

Cash and cash equivalents   -     813,391,895   -     -     813,391,895

Long and short-term financial instruments -   979,419,118 -   -   979,419,118

Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss

303,620,053 -   -   -   303,620,053

Trade and other receivables -   597,996,848 -   -   597,996,848

Available-for-sale financial assets -   -   332,648,416 -   332,648,416

Held-to-maturity financial assets -   -   -   2,726,393 2,726,393

  303,620,053   2,390,807,861   332,648,416   2,726,393   3,029,802,723

2016

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables   409,499,660

Short-term borrowings 412,759,705

Debentures 254,957,251

  1,077,216,616

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Favorable changes Unfavorable changes Favorable changes Unfavorable changes

Profit or 
loss Equity

Profit or 
loss Equity

Profit or 
loss Equity

Profit or 
loss Equity

Financial assets

Derivatives-linked securities1   401,409   401,409   (1,175,418)   (1,175,418)   544,204   544,204   (1,251,341)   (1,251,341)

Derivatives2 1,316,262 1,316,262 (1,057,175) (1,057,175) 1,752,162 1,752,162 (1,839,302) (1,839,302)

Unlisted shares3 -   5,589,702 -   (6,144,075) -   8,292,125 -   (8,415,432)

1   For derivative-linked securities related to stocks (index), foreign exchange rate and interest rate, changes in their fair value are calculated by increasing or decreasing the 

volatility of the underlying assets and correlation, which are significant unobservable inputs, by 10%. For derivative-linked securities related to credit events, changes in fair 

value are calculated by increasing or decreasing the CDS SPREAD by 10bp.

2  For derivative instruments such as conversion rights to the common stock, changes in their fair value are calculated by increasing or decreasing the volatility of the stock 

price, which are significant unobservable inputs, by 10%p.

3  For unlisted stocks, changes in their fair value are calculated by increasing or decreasing the EBITDA multiple of revenue multiple, which are significant unobservable inputs, 

by 10%p.

6. Financial Instruments by Category

6.1 Carrying Amounts of Financial Instruments by Category
Categorizations of financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

1   As at December 31, 2016, long-term financial instruments amounting to KRW 18,000 million are restricted as deposits for shared corporate growth program, KRW 500 

million are pledged with regard to the restoration of the leased facilities and KRW 4,600 million are restricted for the borrowings with prime rate for the Group’s employees. In 

addition, KRW 1,600 million out of long and short-term financial instruments are pledged to Shinhan bank for financial guarantees in relation to NAVERPay service.

2016

Financial assets at 
fair value through

profit or loss
Loans and

receivables
Available-for-sale

financial assets
Held-to-maturity

financial assets Total

Cash and cash equivalents    -      1,726,231,781    -      -      1,726,231,781

Long and short-term financial instruments1 -   1,435,369,526 -   -   1,435,369,526

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

356,388,626 -   -   -   356,388,626

Trade and other receivables -   883,414,769 -   -   883,414,769

Available-for-sale financial assets -   -   416,506,432 -   416,506,432

Held-to-maturity financial assets -   -   -   2,907,350 2,907,350

  356,388,626   4,045,016,076   416,506,432   2,907,350   4,820,818,484

(KrW in thousands)
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6.2 Net gains or Losses by Category of Financial Instruments
Net gains or losses on each category of financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

2016 2015

Available-for-sale financial assets

Gain (loss) on valuation (other comprehensive income (loss))   (12,901,820)   46,096,784

Gain on disposal (profit or loss) 60,000 5,696,605

Loss on disposal (reclassifed to profit or loss)1 (42,827) (315,353)

Interest income 5,671,255 2,461,651

Foreign currency exchange differences (329,818) (1,626,371)

Dividend income 7,817,460 11,742,292

Impairment loss (profit or loss) (5,979,510) (17,169,135)

Loans and receivables

Interest income 27,710,333 23,860,688

Exchange differences2 (5,692,153) (16,867,543)

Bad debt expenses (10,858,609) (825,132)

Other bad debt expenses2 (545,561) (116,763)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income 2,173,086 1,850,793

Foreign currency exchange differences (12,949) (6,340)

Gain (loss) on valuation (6,476,021) 105,752

Gain on disposal 2,571,190 4,878,242

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Interest income 29,078 26,604

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Interest expense (6,070,381) (5,743,347)

Foreign currency exchange differences2 754,971 9,700,132

1 The amount reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

2 The amounts include discontinued operations income and expenses.

(KrW in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented as ‘financial income and costs’ in the 

consolidated statements of comprehensive income (Note 28).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

8. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Cash on hand   86,720   37,938

Bank deposits 1,715,992,475 748,790,333

Time deposits 10,152,586 64,563,624

  1,726,231,781   813,391,895

2016 2015

Current

Derivatives-linked securities   277,209,451   258,597,286

Others 74,841,124 36,553,561

352,050,575 295,150,847

Non-current

Others 4,338,051 8,469,206

  356,388,626   303,620,053

(KrW in thousands)



Notes to the CoNsolidated 
FiNaNCial statemeNts

104 105Naver annual report 2016FiNaNcial review

Trade and other receivables as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

9. Trade and Other Receivables

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

gross amount Allowances Book amount gross amount Allowances Book amount

Current

Trade receivables   485,340,272   (9,896,606)   475,443,666   410,847,783   (4,902,427)   405,945,356

Other receivables 225,262,207 (6,901,066) 218,361,141 119,912,073 (6,622,770) 113,289,303

Accrued income 13,371,196 -   13,371,196 7,380,833 -   7,380,833

Loans 42,164,914 (555,212) 41,609,702 16,775 -   16,775

Leasehold deposits 12,127,392 -   12,127,392 -   -   -   

  778,265,981   (17,352,884)  760,913,097   538,157,464   (11,525,197)   526,632,267

Non-current

Trade receivables   845,946   (845,946)   -   225,763   (225,763)   -   

Other receivables 5,918 (5,918) - 92,605 (92,605) -   

Accrued income 35,223 -   35,223 - - -

Loans 30,083,241 -   30,083,24 2,663,146 -   2,663,146

Leasehold deposits 92,383,208 -   92,383,208 68,701,435 -   68,701,435

  123,353,536   (851,864)   122,501,672   71,682,949   (318,368)   71,364,581

2016 2015

Beginning balance   11,843,565   11,449,402

Write off (6,694,791) (510,084)

Bad debt expenses 11,404,170 941,896

Others 1,651,804 (37,649)

Ending balance   18,204,748   11,843,565

(KrW in thousands)

Changes in the allowance for trade and other receivables for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

The aging analysis of the trade and other receivables as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

Details of available-for-sale financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

10. Available-for-sale Financial Assets

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Trade receivables Other receivables Trade receivables Other receivables

Receivables not past due1   463,323,798   216,836,533   398,307,876   101,698,472

Past due but not impaired2

Up to 6 months 13,471,068 1,862,456 7,416,678 11,155,062

6 months to 1 years 3,499,154 36,074 1,845,414 270,384

Over 1 years 5,892,198 6,533,062 3,503,578 6,880,760

22,862,420 8,431,592 12,765,670 18,306,206

  486,186,218   225,268,125   411,073,546   120,004,678

1   The Group performs credit checking procedure for all counterparties who wish to engage in credit transactions, and deals with those who have healthy credit only. 

Additionally, the Group maintains its exposure to default risk to a minimal level by continuously evaluating credit quality of counterparties.

 Credit risk of trade and other receivables arises when customers or counterparties fail to keep the obligations stated on terms of the contract in regular transactions. In 

order to manage credit risk, the Group continuously evaluates credit quality of the counterparties through taking into account its financial position, past experience and 

other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored.

As at December 31, 2016, there are no trade receivables, loans and other receivables which are significantly past due or subject to significant indicators of impairment and     

the managements decided that the possibilities of potential defaults on those receivables are low.

2   Receivables which are individually identifiable for the indicator of impairment such as default and bankruptcy are subject to the individually analysis for the recognition of 

allowance. Residual receivables with individually insignificant amount are categorized into the similar groups and are subject to the aging and past experience analysis.

2016 2015

Equity securities

Stocks   239,431,020   218,971,751

Beneficiary certificates 30,901,563 14,104,320

Debt securities  

Corporate bonds 146,173,849 99,572,345

  416,506,432   332,648,416

(KrW in thousands)
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Changes in available-for-sale financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Beginning balance   332,648,416   246,218,433

Acquisitions 124,186,174 112,880,731

Disposals (18,944,020) (66,312,853)

Impairment (5,979,510) (16,993,035)

Net losses reclassified from equity (56,500) (350,270)

Net gains (losses) reclassified to equity (17,110,205) 54,248,688

Others 1,762,077 2,956,722

Ending balance 416,506,432 332,648,416

Less: current portion (31,239,416) (19,350,684)

Non-current portion   385,267,016   313,297,732

Details of held-to-maturity financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

11. Held-to-maturity Financial Assets

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Bond issued by Japanese government   2,907,350   2,726,392

2016 2015

Beginning balance   2,726,392   2,581,611

Amortization (823) (720)

Others 181,781 145,501

Ending balance   2,907,350   2,726,392

Less: current portion - -

Non-current portion   2,907,350   2,726,392

(KrW in thousands)

Changes in held-to-maturity financial assets for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

Inventories as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

12. Inventories

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Finished goods   8,712,451   12,097,310

Merchandise 1,633,648 3,409,623

  10,346,099   15,506,933

2016 2015

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Prepayment   9,423,683   1,155  2,897,807   710

Prepaid expenses 62,425,525 20,072,240 32,596,992 26,361,538

Prepaid value added tax 3,309,275 - 594,504 -  

Others 805,270 336 1,371,361 -  

  75,963,753   20,073,731   37,460,664   26,362,248

(KrW in thousands)

Details of other assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

13. Other Assets

Inventories recognized as an expense during the year amounted to KRW 39,093 million (2015: KRW 29,225 million). They were included in 

‘operating expenses’.

The Group recognized KRW 934 million of loss on inventory valuation for the year (2015: KRW 7,000 million).
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Details of property and equipment as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

14. Property and Equipment

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Acquisition 
Cost

Accumulated
depreciation1 Book amount

Acquisition 
Cost

Accumulated
depreciation1 Book amount

Land   218,663,488   -     218,663,488   243,956,047  (142,380)   243,813,667

Buildings 419,449,691 (65,936,621) 353,513,070 419,449,144 (52,013,761) 367,435,383

Structures 80,201,464 (28,772,192) 51,429,272 79,711,984 (20,726,124) 58,985,860

Machinery 556,734,622 (417,274,525) 139,460,097 474,396,181 (343,472,325) 130,923,856

Vehicles 670,110 (344,391) 325,719 541,777 (279,373) 262,404

Office equipment 136,867,402 (79,330,777) 57,536,625 109,061,604 (55,851,403) 53,210,20

Others 24,945,406 (11,671,591) 13,273,815 16,969,816 (9,324,874) 7,644,942

Construction in Progress 29,056,312 -   29,056,312 1,528,292 -   1,528,292

  1,466,588,495   (603,330,097)   863,258,398   1,345,614,845   (481,810,240)   863,804,605

1 Accumulated impairment losses and government grant are included.

Changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

2016

Land Buildings Structures Machinery Vehicles
Office

equipment Others
Construction 

in Progress Total

Opening net book 
amount

  243,813,667   367,435,383   58,985,860   130,923,856   262,404   53,210,201   7,644,942   1,528,292   863,804,605

Acquisition/capital
expenditures

-   -   -   100,131,075 169,309 31,867,385 8,539,563 30,844,294 171,551,626

Increase due to
business
combination

-   -   -   -   -   1,887 -   -   1,887

Depreciation -   (14,034,650) (8,046,068) (94,513,766) (105,791) (26,512,252) (2,441,371) -   (145,653,898)

Disposals (27,618,636) -   -   (206,654) -   (2,913,829) (180,250) -   (30,919,369)

Disposal of a
subsidiary

-   -   -   -   -   (248,631) (26,665) -   (275,296)

Others(*) 2,468,457 112,337 489,480 3,125,586 (203) 2,131,864 (262,404) (3,316,274) 4,748,843

Closing net book
amount

  218,663,488   353,513,070   51,429,272   139,460,097   325,719   57,536,625   13,273,815   29,056,312   863,258,398

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

2015

Land Buildings Structures Machinery Vehicles
Office

equipment Others
Construction 

in Progress Total

Opening net book 
amount

  239,089,398   381,233,022   66,695,768   153,921,941   347,446   51,007,778   7,776,015   885,328   900,956,696

Acquisition/capital
expenditures

4,198,253 615,003 184 71,868,507 19,149 20,790,641 3,216,457 7,215,239 107,923,433

Increase due to
business
combination

-   -   -   1,474 -   310,035 82,863 -   394,372

Depreciation -   (14,036,784) (8,010,712) (96,848,564) (85,798) (20,168,862) (3,380,235) -   (142,530,955)

Disposals -   (111,878) -   (130,437) (19,261) (55,144) -   -   (316,720)

Impairment -   -   (2,017) -   -   (420,464) (113,357) -   (535,838)

Disposal of a
subsidiary

(252,307) (643,586) -   -   -   (13,097) -   -   (908,990)

Others1 778,323 379,606 302,637 2,110,935 868 1,759,314 63,199 (6,572,275) (1,177,393)

Closing net book
amount

  243,813,667   367,435,383   58,985,860   130,923,856   262,404   53,210,201  7,644,942   1,528,292   863,804,605

1 An increase/decrease from fluctuations of foreign currency exchange rate is included

Details of intangible assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

15. Intangible Assets

During the year, the Group has capitalized borrowing costs amounting to KRW 7 million (2015: - million) on property and equipment that 

are qualifying assets. The capitalization rate of borrowings used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalized is 2.13% 

(2015: -%).

1 Accumulated impairment losses and government grant are included.

2016 2015

Acquisition 
Cost

Accumulated
amortization1 Book amount

Acquisition 
Cost

Accumulated
amortization1 Book amount

Industrial properties   8,424,838   (6,828,470)   1,596,368   7,917,540   (6,256,982)   1,660,558

Software 65,347,099 (52,001,940) 13,345,159 60,950,530 (44,964,467) 15,986,063

Goodwill 81,701,222 (35,957,459) 45,743,763 82,062,203 (38,534,219) 43,527,984

Others 113,564,892 (62,118,649) 51,446,243 97,419,351 (55,275,184) 42,144,167

  269,038,051   (156,906,518)   112,131,533   248,349,624   (145,030,852)   103,318,772

(KrW in thousands)
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Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Industrial properties Software goodwill Others Total

Opening net book amount   1,660,558   15,986,063   43,527,984   42,144,167   103,318,772

Acquisition/Capital expenditures 648,065 4,290,539 -   15,876,755 20,815,359

Increase due to business combination -   11,372 4,665,417 4,381,104 9,057,893

Amortization (793,406) (7,183,434) -   (9,322,778) (17,299,618)

Disposals -   (24,092) -   (232,281) (256,373)

Impairment -   -   (4,031,340) (1,486,798) (5,518,138)

Disposal of a subsidiary -   -   (1,336,105) -   (1,336,105)

Others1 81,151 264,711 2,917,807 86,074 3,349,743

Ending net book amount   1,596,368   13,345,159   45,743,763   51,446,243   112,131,533

1 An increase/decrease from fluctuations of foreign currency exchange rate is included.

2015

Industrial properties Software goodwill Others Total

Opening net book amount   975,112   19,774,133   41,438,696   58,570,326   120,758,267

Acquisition/Capital expenditures 1,186,191 4,391,409 938,006 12,737,893 19,253,499

Increase due to business combination 1,467,432 225,018 35,969,023 14,975,477 52,636,950

Amortization (799,820) (7,155,855) -   (5,496,879) (13,452,554)

Disposals (24,372) (879,014) -   -   (903,386)

Impairment (1,207,047) (146,501) (31,214,277) (13,206,307) (45,774,132)

Disposal of a subsidiary (2,076) (10,176) (5,348,911) (33,220) (5,394,383)

Others1 65,138 (212,951) 1,745,447 (25,403,123) (23,805,489)

Ending net book amount   1,660,558   15,986,063   43,527,984   42,144,167   103,318,772

(KrW in thousands)

Impairment Tests for goodwill
The Group performs the impairment test on goodwill each year and evaluates the recoverable amounts of each CGUs. The recoverable 

amounts are determined based on the values in use which are calculated based on the discounted future cash flows expected from the 

continuous use of the assets. As a result, the book amount of Entry Labs CGU in which goodwill has been allocated from a business

combination, exceeded the recoverable amount and the Group recognized impairment losses amounting to KRW 4,031 million during 

the year. There are no recoverable amounts of Entry Labs CGUs as at December 31, 2016, and the Group recognized the impairment 

losses of the whole amount of goodwill of Entry Labs during the year.

The Group estimates future cash flows of each CGU by considering past experience, operation results and future business plan for the 

next five years which reflect management's evaluation for internal and external information of relevant industries. The major 

assumptions used in the calculation of values in use of major CGUs are as follows.

2016

LINE Entry Labs Iconnect Quicket gogolook

Discount rate 8.8% 15.44% 16.92% 14.55% 12.5%

Sales growth rate during the estimation period 17.55% 1.86% (-)0.21% 3.59% 34.73%

Perpetual growth rate 1.1% - - - -

(KrW in thousands)
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Details of investments in associates and joint ventures of the Group as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

16 . Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of entity Primary business Location
Closing
month

December 
31, 2016

December
31, 2015

Percentage of 
ownership (%)

Book 
amount

Book
amount

Associates Mirae Asset-NAVER New Growth
Fund 1

Investment Korea December 50.00 10,000,000 - 

 143,334,978  48,264,767

Joint 
ventures

YTN PLUS Digital contents distribution Korea December 50.00 3,872,403 3,517,931

LINE Project 1 Smartphone contents development Japan December 50.00 -   -  

Collab+LINE LINE service partnership USA December 50.00 1,253,437 1,372,435

Lantu Games Investment China December 50.00 8,301,453 11,709,802

JobsN Online information service Korea December 49.00 456,947 -   

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY
(formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS)2

Online payment service Thailand December 50.00 24,283,413 -   

Travel + Online information service Korea December 49.00 189,892 -  

Cineplay Online information service Korea December 49.00 193,194 -  

China Lab Online information service Korea December 49.00 116,235 -  

Designpress Online information service Korea December 49.00 150,468 -   

 38,817,442  16,600,168

  182,152,420   64,864,935

1  LINE Project Cooperative discontinued the use of equity method due to accumulated deficits and LINE Bros. which discontinued the use of equity method due to 

accumulated deficits was disposed during the year.

2   During the year, RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY (formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS) was reclassified from consolidated subsidiary to joint venture and accounted for under the equity 

method as the ownership interest was decreased.

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

Name of entity Primary business Location
Closing
month

December 
31, 2016

December
31, 2015

Percentage of 
ownership (%)

Book 
amount

Book
amount

Associates Allat Online payment service Korea December 20.00   3,206,028   3,066,348

NetMania
Software development and 
distribution

Korea December 27.17 777,831 561,454

Synapsoft
Software development and
distribution

Korea December 26.70 3,394,726 3,196,926

Cloud Application Factory
Software development and
distribution

Korea December 30.10 39,359 51,280

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund Investment Korea December 22.73 4,909,679 5,036,629

Korea Contents Mutual Aid
Association

Funding and investment in 
contents development

Korea December 30.17 2,577,500 2,815,268

ARO In Tech
Software development and 
distribution

Korea December 29.85 379,878 343,128

LINE Bros.1 Mobile service development Japan December - -   -   

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge 
Early Stage Start-up Fund

Investment Korea December 40.00 8,313,362 9,729,777

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup 
Investment Fund

Investment Korea December 37.04 9,829,236 9,750,327

Epic Voyage Mobile service development Japan December 30.00 27,780 26,534

LINE Music Mobile service development Japan December 33.40 4,287,724 1,065,632

Green Monster Mobile service development Japan December 35.00 65,860 417,465

Digital Media Partners II Investment
Cayman
Islands

December 30.00 2,598,721 629,710

AUBE LINE recruit service Japan December 49.00 3,522,535 2,792,769

NAVER-Suprema Youth Foundation 
No.5 Investment Fund

Investment Korea December 50.00 5,667,325 2,909,627

NAVER KIP Cheer up! Gamers Fund Investment Korea December 50.00 4,558,437 4,871,891

NSPACE Space Cloud Korea December 37.74 861,605 1,000,002

Silicon Cube Service platform on network Korea December 38.27 1,751,159 -

One Store Internet commerce Korea December 34.46 27,110,684 -

Transcosmos Online Communication Business customer support Japan December 40.00 437,395 -

Nplegames Mobile game development Korea December 22.22 924,048 -  

Alchera Solutions development and Sales Korea December 30.00 1,464,219 -  

Sound of Heart Culture Industry
Special Purpose Company

Conntents development Korea December 21.03 133,383 -  

Trust Us Mobile service development Korea December 26.00 3,085,823 -  

Yume no machi Souzou Iinkai Mobile service development Japan December 22.09 43,410,681 -  

[Continued]



Notes to the CoNsolidated 
FiNaNCial statemeNts

114 115Naver annual report 2016FiNaNcial review

Details of valuation of investments in associates and joint ventures that are accounted for using the equity method for the years ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

Beginning
balance

Acquisition
(Disposal)

Valuation of equity method in 2016

Ending
Balance

Share of
profit or loss

share of other
comprehensive 

income (loss) Others

Joint 
ventures

YTN PLUS 3,517,931 -   354,472 -   -   3,872,403

LINE Project -   -   -   -   -   -  

Collab+LINE 1,372,435 -   (160,806) 41,808 -   1,253,437

Lantu Games 11,709,802 -   (3,775,030) 366,681 -   8,301,453

JobsN -   98,000 358,947 -   -   456,947

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY 
(formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS)

-   24,553,069 (932,890) 639,704 23,530 24,283,413

Tavel + -   98,000 91,892 -   -   189,892

Cineplay -   98,000 95,194 -   -   193,194

China Lab -   98,000 18,235 -   -   116,235

Designpress -   98,000 52,468 -   -   150,468

16,600,168 25,043,069 (3,897,518) 1,048,193 23,530 38,817,442

  64,864,935   126,563,395   (9,440,698)   1,038,024   (873,236)   182,152,420

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

Beginning
balance

Acquisition
(Disposal)

Valuation of equity method in 2016

Ending
Balance

Share of
profit or loss

share of other
comprehensive 

income (loss) Others

Associates Allat   3,066,348   -     139,680   -     -     3,206,028

NetMania 561,454 -   216,377 -   -   777,831

Synapsoft 3,196,926 -   187,029 10,771 -   3,394,726

Cloud Application Factory 51,280 -   (11,921) -   -   39,359

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund 5,036,629 -   (126,950) -   -   4,909,679

Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association 2,815,268 -   (261,002) -   23,234 2,577,500

ARO In Tech 343,128 -   36,750 -   -   379,878

LINE Bros -   -   -   -   -   -  

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge 
Early Stage Start-up Fund

9,729,777 (2,712,000) 2,215,585 -   (920,000) 8,313,362

Future Creation NAVER-
SB Startup Investment Fund

9,750,327 -   78,909 -   -   9,829,236

Epic Voyage 26,534 -   (538) 1,784 -   27,780

LINE Music 1,065,632 7,172,182 (3,892,215) (57,875) -   4,287,724

Green Monster 417,465 -   (389,192) 37,587 -   65,860

Digital Media Partners II 629,710 2,056,920 (238,193) 150,284 -   2,598,721

AUBE 2,792,769 -   563,683 166,083 -   3,522,535

NAVER-Suprema Youth Foundation 
No.5 Investment Fund

2,909,627 3,000,000 (242,302) -   -   5,667,325

NAVER KIP Cheer up! Gamers Fund 4,871,891 -   (313,454) -   -   4,558,437

NSPACE 1,000,002 -   (138,397) -   -   861,605

Silicon Cube -   2,298,400 (127,883) (419,358) -   1,751,159

One Store -   29,497,707 (2,532,648) 145,625 -   27,110,684

Transcosmos Online Communication -   514,925 (62,054) (15,476) -   437,395

Nplegames -   1,079,852 (155,804) -   -   924,048

Alchera -   1,500,030 (35,811) -   -   1,464,219

Sound of Heart Culture Industry 
Special Purpose Company

-   320,000 (186,617) -   -   133,383

Trust Us -   3,085,823 -   -   -   3,085,823

Yume no machi Souzou Iinkai -   43,706,487 (266,212) (29,594) -   43,410,681

Mirae Asset-NAVER New Growth 
Fund 1

-   10,000,000 -   -   -   10,000,000

 48,264,767  101,520,326  (5,543,180)  (10,169)  (896,766)  143,334,978

[Continued]
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[계속]

(KrW in thousands)

Beginning
balance

Acquisition
(Disposal)

Valuation of equity method in 2015

Ending
Balance

Share of
profit or loss

share of other
comprehensive 

income (loss) Others

Associates Allat   2,804,450   -     261,898   -     -     3,066,348

NetMania 514,527 -   46,927 -   -   561,454

Synapsoft 3,027,630 -   276,438 -   (107,142) 3,196,926

Cloud Application Factory 71,620 -   (20,340) -   -   51,280

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund 3,306,700 1,500,000 204,025 -   25,904 5,036,629

Korea Contents Mutual Aid 
Association

3,012,653 -   (201,784) -   4,399 2,815,268

ARO In Tech 517,387 -   (174,259) -   -   343,128

LINE Bros. 73,648 664,855 (490,128) 33,229 (281,604) -   

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge 
Early Stage Start-up Fund

5,000,000 5,000,000 329,777 -   (600,000) 9,729,777

Future Creation NAVERSB Startup 
Investment Fund

5,000,000 5,000,000 (249,673) -   -   9,750,327

Epic Voyage 26,308 -   (1,199) 1,425 -   26,534

LINE Music 2,707,349 (436,681) (1,338,756) 132,445 1,275 1,065,632

Green Monster 630,428 -   (238,878) 25,915 -   417,465

Digital Media Partners II -   894,810 (355,080) 43,972 46,008 629,710

AUBE -   2,857,713 (70,492) 5,548 -   2,792,769

NAVER-Suprema Youth Foundation 
No.5 Investment Fund 

-   3,000,000 (90,373) -   -   2,909,627

NAVER KIP Cheer up! Gamers Fund 4,967,968 -   (96,077) -   -   4,871,891

NSPACE -   1,000,002 -   -   -   1,000,002

31,660,668 19,480,699 (2,207,974) 242,534 (911,160) 48,264,767

Joint 
ventures

YTN PLUS 3,191,375 -   326,556 -   -   3,517,931

LINE Project -   -   -   -   -   -  

Collab+LINE 1,101,816 -   196,205 74,414 -   1,372,435

Lantu Games -   11,709,802 -   -   -   11,709,802

4,293,191 11,709,802 522,761 74,414 -   16,600,168

  35,953,859   31,190,501   (1,685,213)   316,948   (911,160)   64,864,935

The tables below provide summarized financial information for those associates and joint ventures that are material to the Group and 

received dividends from the associates and joint ventures.

(KrW in thousands)

1 Information based on the consolidated financial statements and therefore, equity amount represents controlling interests.

2 Including Beijing Lantu Times Technology Company, subsidiary of Lantu Games.

2016

Current 
assets

Non-current
assets

Current
liabilities

Non-current
liabilities Equity

Associates BonAngels Pacemaker Fund   6,828,922   14,723,486   77,711   -     21,474,697

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early Stage Startup
Fund

673,368 19,672,248 164,162 -   20,181,454

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup Investment Fund 3,766,434 22,331,909 158,684 -   25,939,659

One Store 90,413,889 23,073,296 40,969,835 768,519 71,748,831

Yume no machi Souzou Iinkai1 28,025,287 68,527,351 15,933,310 20,041,794 60,498,822

Joint 
ventures

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY (formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS) 29,531,945 270,813 1,483,844 71,020 28,247,894

Lantu Games2 21,339,344 765,018 5,501,457 -   16,602,905

1 Information based on the consolidated financial statements and loss for the year includes loss attributable to controlling shareholders after a deemed acquisition date.

2 Including Beijing Lantu Times Technology Company, a subsidiary of Lantu Games.

2016

Revenue

Operating
income 

(loss)

Profit 
(loss)

for the 
year

Other 
comprehensive 

income

Total 
comprehensive 

income
(loss)

Received
dividend

Associates BonAngels Pacemaker Fund   1,074,841   381,209   381,209   -     381,209   - 

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early Stage Start-up 
Fund

6,207,553 5,538,963 5,538,963 -   5,538,963 920,000

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup Investment Fund -   (637,956) 213,055 -   213,055 -   

One Store 106,809,160 (13,949,913) (12,373,450) -   (12,373,450) -  

Yume no machi Souzou Iinkai1 18,655,191 (1,348,655) (1,215,913) -   (1,215,913) -  

Joint 
ventures

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY (formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS) 503,066 (3,783,893) (340,256) -   (340,256) -

Lantu Games2 -   (8,171,416) (7,550,064) -   (7,550,064) -  

(KrW in thousands)
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(KrW in thousands)

2015

Current 
assets

Non-current
assets

Current
liabilities

Non-current
liabilities Equity

Associates BonAngels Pacemaker Fund   6,632,292   15,595,149   194,164   -     22,033,277

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early Stage Startup Fund 3,267,493 20,620,923 165,924 -   23,722,492

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup Investment Fund 6,014,480 19,886,903 174,779 -   25,726,604

Joint 
ventures

Lantu Games 23,419,609 -   -   -   23,419,609

2015

Revenue

Operating
income 

(loss)

Profit 
(loss)

for the 
year

Other 
comprehensive 

income

Total 
comprehensive 

income
(loss)

Received
dividend

Associates BonAngels Pacemaker Fund   1,935,451  1,127,084   1,127,084   -     1,127,084   -  

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early Stage Start-up 
Fund

2,981,385 2,327,192 2,327,192 -   2,327,192 600,000

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup Investment Fund -   (704,151) (674,118) -   (674,118) - 

Joint 
ventures

Lantu Games -   -   -   -   -   -   

(KrW in thousands)

Details of adjustments from financial information of associates and joint ventures to the book amount of investments in associates and 

joint ventures as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Net asset (a)

Ownership
interests

held by the
group (b)

Interest in net
asset (axb) goodwill

Internal
Transaction

etc. Book amount

Associates Allat   16,030,140 20.00%   3,206,028   -     -     3,206,028

NetMania 2,862,408 27.17% 777,831 -   -   777,831

Synapsoft 10,832,240 26.70% 2,892,495 502,231 -   3,394,726

Cloud Application Factory 130,762 30.10% 39,359 -   -   39,359

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund 21,474,697 22.73% 4,880,613 29,066 -   4,909,679

Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association 8,533,680 30.17% 2,574,263 3,237 -   2,577,500

ARO In Tech 1,023,930 29.85% 305,651 74,227 -   379,878

LINE Bros. -        -   -   -   -   -   

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early 
Stage Start-up Fund

20,181,455 40.00% 8,072,582 240,780 -   8,313,362

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup 
Investment Fund

25,939,659 37.04% 9,607,281 221,955 -   9,829,236

Epic Voyage 92,600 30.00% 27,780 -   -   27,780

LINE Music 12,833,679 33.40% 4,286,449 1,275 -   4,287,724

Green Monster 188,171 35.00% 65,860 -   -   65,860

Digital Media Partners II 8,662,401 30.00% 2,598,721 -   -   2,598,721

AUBE 7,188,847 49.00% 3,522,535 -   -   3,522,535

NAVER-Suprema Youth Foundation No.5 
Investment Fund

11,334,650 50.00% 5,667,325 -   -   5,667,325

NAVER KIP Cheer up! Gamers Fund 9,116,874 50.00% 4,558,437 -   -   4,558,437

NSPACE 312,764 37.74% 118,047 743,558 -   861,605

Silicon Cube 2,068,532 38.27% 791,660 943,773 15,726 1,751,159

One Store 71,748,831 34.46% 24,723,028 2,387,656 -   27,110,684

Transcosmos Online Communication 1,093,488 40.00% 437,395 -   -   437,395

[Continued]
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1 Acquired at the end of December, 2016 and therefore, acquisition cost was recognized as book amount.

2 Information based on the consolidated financial statements and therefore, net asset represents amount attributable to controlling interests.

2016

Net asset (a)

Ownership
interests

held by the
group (b)

Interest in net
asset (axb) goodwill

Internal
Transaction

etc. Book amount

Associates Nplegames 1,223,716 22.22% 271,910 631,088 21,050 924,048

Alchera 1,427,435 30.00% 428,237 1,035,982 -   1,464,219

Sound of Heart Culture
Industry Special Purpose
Company

629,785 21.03% 132,456 927 -   133,383

Trust Us1 -   26.00% 3,085,823 -   -   3,085,823

Yume no machi Souzou Iinkai 60,498,822 22.09% 13,366,047 27,774,540 2,270,094 43,410,681

Mirae Asset-NAVER New
Growth Fund 11

-   50.00% 10,000,000 -   -   10,000,000

295,429,566  106,437,813 34,590,295 2,306,870 143,334,978

Joint 
ventures

YTN PLUS 7,744,806 50.00% 3,872,403 -   -   3,872,403

LINE Project -   50.00% -   -   -   -  

Collab+LINE 2,506,875 50.00% 1,253,437 -   -   1,253,437

Lantu Games 16,602,905 50.00% 8,301,453 -   -   8,301,453

JobsN 932,544 49.00% 456,947 -   -   456,947

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY
(formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS)2

28,247,894 50.00% 14,123,947 10,159,466 -   24,283,413

Travel+ 387,534 49.00% 189,892 -   -   189,892

Cineplay 394,274 49.00% 193,194 -   -   193,194

China Lab 237,213 49.00% 116,235 -   -   116,235

Designpress 307,077 49.00% 150,468 -   -   150,468

57,361,122  28,657,976 10,159,466 -   38,817,442

  352,790,688    135,095,789   44,749,761   2,306,870   182,152,420

(KrW in thousands) (KrW in thousands)

2015

Net asset (a)

Ownership
interests

held by the
group (b)

Interest in net
asset (axb) goodwill

Internal
Transaction

etc. Book amount

Associates Allat   15,331,737 20.00%   3,066,348   -     -     3,066,348

NetMania 2,066,145 27.17% 561,454 -   -   561,454

Synapsoft 10,121,669 26.62% 2,694,695 502,231 -   3,196,926

Cloud Application Factory 170,368 30.10% 51,280 -   -   51,280

BonAngels Pacemaker Fund 22,033,277 22.73% 5,007,563 29,066 -   5,036,629

Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association 9,082,056 31.00% 2,815,268 -   -   2,815,268

ARO In Tech 900,817 29.85% 268,901 74,227 -   343,128

LINE Bros. 324,714 40.00% 129,886 -   (129,886) -   

Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early 
Stage Start-up Fund

23,722,492 40.00% 9,488,997 240,780 -   9,729,777

Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup 
Investment Fund

25,726,604 37.04% 9,528,372 221,955 -   9,750,327

Epic Voyage 88,446 30.00% 26,534 -   -   26,534

LINE Music 3,186,697 33.40% 1,064,357 1,275 -   1,065,632

Green Monster 1,192,758 35.00% 417,465 -   -   417,465

Digital Media Partners II 2,099,033 30.00% 629,710 -   -   629,710

AUBE 5,699,528 49.00% 2,792,769 -   -   2,792,769

NAVER-Suprema Youth Foundation No.5
Investment Fund

5,819,254 50.00% 2,909,627 -   -   2,909,627

NAVER KIP Cheer up! Gamers Fund 9,743,782 50.00% 4,871,891 -   -   4,871,891

NSPACE 2,649,716 37.74% 1,000,001 -   -   1,000,001

139,959,093  47,325,118 1,069,534 (129,886) 48,264,766

Joint 
ventures

YTN PLUS 7,035,862 50.00% 3,517,931 -   -   3,517,931

LINE Project -   50.00% -   -   -   -  

Collab+LINE 2,744,869 50.00% 1,372,435 -   -   1,372,435

Lantu Games 23,419,609 50.00% 11,709,803 -   -   11,709,803

33,200,340  16,600,169 -   -   16,600,169

  173,159,433    63,925,287   1,069,534   (129,886)   64,864,935

As at December 31, 2016, marketable investment securities out of the investment in associates and joint ventures held by the Group are 

from Yume no machi Souzou Iinkai, whose fair value is KRW 62,860 million. None of the investments in associates and joint ventures is 

marketable securities as at December 31, 2015.
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Trade and other payables as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

17. Trade and Other Payables

Short-term borrowings as at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, are as follows:

19. Borrowings and Debentures

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Financial liabilities

Other payables   424,772,827   7,500,000   373,241,458   4,027,593

Accrued expenses 58,762,275 1,514,970 31,661,630 68

Deposits received 288,275 50,302 437,800 131,111

  483,823,377   9,065,272   405,340,888   4,158,772

Non-financial liabilities

Accrued expenses 187,999,894 -   143,290,867 -  

  671,823,271   9,065,272   548,631,755   4,158,772

Other liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

18. Other Liabilities

2016 2015

Current Non-current Current Non-current

Advances from customers   205,021,741   -     166,564,179   -  

Deferred revenues 105,292,294 627,501 82,462,211 529,515

Customer loyalty programs 5,553,604 -   6,303,777 -  

Others 99,738,690 627,501 76,158,434 529,515

Withholdings 229,683,949 -   96,713,298 72,924

Withholdings-VAT 79,323,961 -   43,703,672 -  

Others -   -   222,240 - 

  619,321,945   627,501   389,665,600   602,439

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW and Jpy in thousands)

Lender
Latest maturity 

date
Annual interest

rate (%)
December 31,

2016
December 31,

2015

Short-term 
borrowings

Foreign
currency

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation - -   -
  228,422,350

(JPY 23,500,000)

Foreign
currency

Mizuho Corporate Bank. - - -  
179,821,850

(JPY 18,500,000)

Foreign
currency

Shinhan Bank Japan - - - 
4,515,505

(JPY 464,533)

Foreign
currency

FreakOut, Inc. September 30, 2017 1.00
1,555,215

(JPY 150,000)
-

Foreign
currency

IGNIS Ltd. September 30, 2017 1.00
1,119,755

(JPY 108,000)
-

Foreign
currency

Sumitomo Mitsui BankingCorporation September 29, 2017 0.07
120,964,623

(JPY 11,667,000)
-

Foreign
currency

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd. September 30, 2017 0.08
103,681,000

(JPY 10,000,000)
-

  227,320,593   412,759,705

Lender
Latest maturity 

date
Annual interest

rate (%)
December 31,

2016
December 31,

2015

Fixed rate in Korean won 2nd public bond - -   -     100,000,000

3rd public bond November 12, 2018 2.13 150,000,000 150,000,000 

Fixed rate in foreign
currency

LINE 1st private bond - - - 
4,957,251

(JPY 150,000,000)

Less: Current portion -   (104,957,251)

  150,000,000   150,000,000 

(KrW and Jpy in thousands)

Debentures as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:
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Changes in provisions for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

20. Provisions

Details of net defined benefit liabilities recognized in the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as 

follows:

21. Post-employment Benefits

(KrW in thousands)

1   According to a ruling by the Supreme Court of Korea, the previous agreement with employees that specified 'Bonus Coins' provided to employees would not be treated as 
part of ordinary wages for the purpose of calculating pension contributions and other statutory benefits became invalid. Accordingly, the Group has calculated a provision 
for additional compensation to be provided to employees covering previous periods within the statute of limitation, and reversed the entire unused amounts as the statute of 
limitation has expired during the year.

2  During 2013, the Group agreed with the Fair Trade Commission to contribute to good causes, the exact nature of which to be agreed with the Fair Trade Commission in 
advance. The Group has recorded a provision for these committed expenditures.

2016

Provision for
litigation

Provision for
personnel1

Provision for
Customer

loyalty
programs

Provision for
social

contribution2

Provision for
restoration
and others Total

Beginning balance   926,439   412,280   249,054   45,726,559   18,008,897   65,323,229

Additional provisions -   -   -   -   11,406,196 11,406,196

Unused amounts 
reversed during the year

-   (412,280) -   -   (3,710,267) (4,122,547)

Used -   -   -   (5,726,559) (4,876,445) (10,603,004)

Others -   -   -   -   (528,590) (528,590)

Ending balance   926,439 -     249,054   40,000,000   20,299,791   61,475,284

Current portion 926,439 -   249,054 40,000,000 5,179,049 46,354,542

Non-current portion -   -   -   -   15,120,742 15,120,742

2015

Provision for
litigation

Provision for
personnel

Provision for
Customer

loyalty
programs

Provision for
social

contribution

Provision for
restoration
and others Total

Beginning balance   926,439   1,014,631   234,878   80,000,000   12,772,312   94,948,260

Additional contribution -   -   16,000 -   5,880,254 5,896,254

Unused amounts 
reversed during the year

-   (201,575) -   -   (1,119,540) (1,321,115)

Used -   (400,776) (1,824) (34,273,441) (39,781) (34,715,822)

Others -   -   -   -   515,652 515,652

Ending balance   926,439   412,280   249,054   45,726,559   18,008,897   65,323,229

Current portion 926,439 412,280 249,054 45,726,559 1,391,179 48,705,511

Non-current portion -   -   - -   16,617,718 16,617,718

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Present value of funded defined benefit obligations   35,382,391   47,199,486

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations 223,869,256 205,272,992

Total 259,251,647 252,472,478

Fair value of plan assets (17,576,904) (18,792,029)

Net defined benefit liabilities   241,674,743   233,680,449

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Beginning balance   201,241,251   182,483,928

Current service cost 252,472,478 201,241,251

Interest expense 6,304,788 5,837,000

Remeasurements:

Actuarial losses from change in demographic assumptions 103,023,464 8,260,860

Actuarial gains from change in financial assumptions (136,247,967) (1,850,675)

Actuarial losses from experience adjustments 1,810,102 6,997,682

Payments from plans:

Benefit payments (22,574,916) (14,924,036)

Others (1,235,483) (100,915)

Ending balance   259,251,647   252,472,478

The Group decided to terminate the service of its subsidiary, MIXRADIO, during the year, and the related restructuring expense of KRW 

10,225 million are recognized as loss on discontinued operations.

Movements in the defined benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:
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There is no expected contributions to plan assets for the year ending December 31, 2017, are zero and the weighted average duration of the 

defined benefit obligations is between 4.94 and 16.78 years.

Movements in the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Beginning balance   18,792,029   20,632,563

Interest income 473,861 578,771

Remeasurements:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest 
income)

268,090 (362,604)

Payments from plans:

Benefit payments (1,957,076) (2,056,701)

Ending balance   17,576,904   18,792,029

Plan assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, consist of:

The significant actuarial assumptions as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Amount Ratio (%) Amount Ratio (%)

Time deposit etc.   17,576,904 100%   18,792,029 100%

The sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the principal assumptions is

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Discount rate 2.20% ~ 3.40% 2.60%

Salary growth rate 5.03% ~ 11.42% 5.00% ~ 14.40%

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity of the 

defined benefit obligation to changes in principal actuarial assumptions is calculated using the projected unit credit method, the same 

method applied when calculating the defined benefit obligations recognized on the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior year.

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Changes in
assumption

Increase in
assumption

Decrease in
assumption

Discount rate 1% Increase/Decrease (24,935,998) 29,531,212 

Salary growth rate 1% Increase/Decrease 27,824,211 (24,124,003)

(KrW in thousands)

The Company’s total number of authorized shares is 300,000,000 shares. As at December 31, 2016, the Company has issued 32,962,679 

ordinary shares and 4,155,266 treasury shares, and the number of outstanding shares is 28,807,413 shares. The Company’s share 

capital and share premium as at December 31, 2016 amount to KRW 16,481,340 thousand and KRW 132,920,605 thousand, respectively.

There are no changes in the number of shares issued for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

22. Issuance and Acquisition of Shares

Other components of equity as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

23. Other Components of Equity

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Treasury shares   (1,355,983,085)   (1,057,269,678)

Loss on disposal of treasury shares (39,640,899) (39,640,899)

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 46,046,252 69,348,753

Share of other comprehensive income of associates and the joint 
ventures

1,147,647 271,142

Exchange difference (72,621,369) (39,052,412)

Others (28,071,916) (28,071,916)

  (1,449,123,370)   (1,094,415,010)

The Group retains the treasury shares to stabilize the share price in the market, etc.



Notes to the CoNsolidated 
FiNaNCial statemeNts

128 129Naver annual report 2016FiNaNcial review

As at December 31, 2016, LINE, a subsidiary of NAVER, entered into stock option agreements for the employees and directors of the 

Group upon the resolution of several shareholders’ meetings and the Board of Directors. All stock options granted per the agreement 

are equity-settled share-based payments.

24. Share-based Payment

(in number of shares)

2016

Unexercised
at the beginning 

of the year
Exercised during 

the year
Expired during 

the year

Unexercised
at the end of

the year granted by

2012.12.17 (1st) 14,000,000 -   -   14,000,000 LINE

2013.12.16 (2nd) 3,332,500 (1,633,500) (45,000) 1,654,000 LINE

2014.02.01 (3rd) 1,667,000 (476,500) (55,500) 1,135,000 LINE

2014.08.01 (4th) 697,000 (351,500) (34,500) 311,000 LINE

2014.10.01 (5th) 323,000 (72,000) (29,500) 221,500 LINE

2015.02.04 (6th) 5,665,000 -   (75,000) 5,590,000 LINE

25,684,500 (2,533,500) (239,500) 22,911,500 

2015

Unexercised
at the beginning 

of the year
granted during 

the year
Expired during 

the year

Unexercised
at the end of

the year granted by

2012.12.17 (1st) 14,000,000 -   -   14,000,000 LINE

2013.12.16 (2nd) 3,377,000 -   (44,500) 3,332,500 LINE

2014.02.01 (3rd) 1,752,500 -   (85,500) 1,667,000 LINE

2014.08.01 (4th) 739,500 -   (42,500) 697,000 LINE

2014.10.01 (5th) 352,500 -   (29,500) 323,000 LINE

2015.02.04 (6th) -   5,786,000 (121,000) 5,665,000 LINE

20,221,500 5,786,000 (323,000) 25,684,500

(in number of shares)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group calculated the compensation costs using black-scholes model and the assumptions and inputs used for calculation of the 

compensation costs are as follows:

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th

Risk-free interest rate 0.30% 0.30% 0.20% 0.20% 0.20% 0.30%

Option maturity 6 years 6 years 6 years 6 years 6 years 6 years

Expected price volatility1 60.00% 67.00% 58.00% 53.00% 52.00% 56.20%

Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Weighted average share price at grant date JPY 233 JPY 1,011 JPY 1,161 JPY 3,280 JPY 3,297 JPY 4,225

Weighted average fair value of share options granted 
during the year

JPY 107 JPY 793 JPY 575 JPY 2,310 JPY 2,312 JPY 3,219

Exercise price JPY 344 JPY 344 JPY 1,320 JPY 1,320 JPY 1,320 JPY 1,320

Retained earnings as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, consist of:

25. Retained Earnings

2016 2015

Legal reserves1   8,240,670   8,240,670

Other reserves 13,909,235 13,909,235

Retained earnings before appropriation 3,788,039,498 3,047,219,979

  3,810,189,403   3,069,369,884

1   The Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea requires the Parent Group to appropriate for each financial period, as a legal reserve, an amount equal to a minimum of 10% 
of cash dividends paid until such reserve equals 50% of its issued capital stock. The reserve is not available for cash dividends payment, but may be transferred to capital 
stock or used to reduce accumulated deficit. When the accumulated legal reserves (the sum of capital reserves and earned profit reserves) are greater than 1.5 times the 
paid-in capital amount, the excess legal reserves may be distributed in accordance with a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

(KrW in thousands)
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Operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

26. Operating Expenses

Details of other income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

27. Other Income and Other Expenses

2016 2015

Salaries and wages   709,166,905   557,396,272

Post-employment benefits 63,213,165 52,481,452

Share-based payments 100,969,352 105,016,671

Employee benefits 90,783,477 75,160,152

Travel 25,429,597 24,634,433

Entertainment 3,796,741 4,371,092

Depreciation 145,652,950 142,369,139

Amortization 17,285,538 10,569,941

Communication 114,136,600 103,738,519

Utility 25,546,490 23,323,823

Taxes and dues 18,005,805 8,735,961

Rental 46,730,869 28,780,882

Commission 1,141,464,046 902,221,748

Advertising 303,352,000 304,614,743

nsurance 10,098,535 9,217,663

Freight 6,801,861 5,304,106

Supplies 20,232,318 15,200,876

Training 16,943,173 13,132,381

Others 60,979,722 37,435,537

  2,920,589,144   2,423,705,391

(KrW in thousands) (KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Rental revenues   100,663   109,863

Foreign currency exchange gain 30,797,599 33,350,677

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 27,867,310 1,388,875

Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates 19,201,945 3,327,276

Others 24,049,423 24,859,808

  102,016,940   63,036,499 

Details of other expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

2016 2015

Foreign currency exchange loss   31,315,423   28,692,512

Donations 37,561,442 43,006,240

Impairment loss on investments in subsidiaries and associates -   243,701

Impairment loss on intangible assets 5,518,138 5,736,341

Other impairment loss1 12,829,591 116,763

Others 4,535,350 4,797,849

  91,759,944   82,593,406

1  Other impairment loss represents the loss from continuing operations related to MIXRADIO bonds classified as ‘discontinued operations’. The related to intercompany and 
costs transaction are excluded from profit (loss) from discontinued operations (other expenses) (Note 36).

(KrW in thousands)
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Details of finance income for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

28. Finance Income and Costs

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, consists of:

29. Income tax expense

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Interest income   35,583,752   28,207,684

Dividends income 7,817,460 11,742,292

Foreign currency exchange gain 14,607,970 11,128,694

Gain on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,911,608 2,938,944

Gain on transactions of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss

5,723,290 7,283,232

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 60,000 5,935,375

  66,704,080   67,236,221

2016 2015

Interest expenses    6,070,381    5,743,347

Foreign currency exchange loss 13,200,283 24,424,168

Loss on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 9,387,629 2,833,192

Loss on transactions of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss

3,152,100 2,404,990

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets -   238,770

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets 5,979,510 17,169,135

Others -   183,657

   37,789,903    52,997,259

(KrW in thousands)

Details of finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Current tax:

Current tax on profits for the year   400,589,136   292,064,548

Adjustments in respect of prior year 8,617,011 (399,668)

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (58,060,690) (109,100,424)

Impact of changes in Korean tax rate 2,649,858 8,746,602

Income tax expense   353,795,315   191,311,058

Continuing operations 360,863,616 229,003,000

Discontinued operations (7,068,301) (37,691,942)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate 

applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Profit before income tax expense   1,112,868,266   708,297,337

Continuing operations Profit before income tax expense 1,131,770,949 823,221,803

Discontinued operations Profit before income tax expense (18,902,683) (114,924,466)

Tax at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries 275,407,062 189,051,783

Adjustments:

Income not subject to tax (148,191) (17,894,734)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 28,213,791 15,515,797

Tax credits (12,995,481) (4,912,873)

Changes in non-recoverable deferred tax asset 14,463,731 (12,157,926)

Adjustment in respect of prior year 8,617,011 (399,668)

Re-measurement of deferred tax – change in the Korean tax rate 2,649,858 8,746,602

Effects of the tax system for recirculation of corporate income 32,598,157 -  

Effects of consolidate tax return (12,308,430) -  

Others 17,297,807 13,362,077

Income tax expense   353,795,315   191,311,058

Continuing operations 360,863,616 229,003,000

Discontinued operations (7,068,301) (37,691,942)

The weighted average applicable tax rate of the Group was 24.75% (2015: 26.69%).
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The tax effect relating to components of other comprehensive income (expenses) for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, is 

as follows:

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within 

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax asset to be recovered within 12 months   155,426,313   158,195,792

Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months 117,039,817 72,498,150

272,466,130 230,693,942

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liability to be within 12 months (245,775) -  

Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 months (6,952,103) (13,521,047)

(7,197,878) (13,521,047)

Deferred tax assets, net   265,268,252   217,172,895

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Before tax Tax effect After tax Before tax Tax effect After tax

Changes in the fair value of availablefor- sale 
financial assets

  (17,110,205)   4,208,385   (12,901,820)   54,133,461   (8,036,677)   46,096,784

Reclassification of available-for-sale financial 
assets

(56,500) 13,673 (42,827) (350,270) 34,917 (315,353)

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit 
liabilities

31,682,491 (7,185,776) 24,496,715 (13,770,471) 3,854,673 (9,915,798)

Exchange difference1 (47,927,846) -   (47,927,846) 1,105,940 (267,638) 838,302

Share of other comprehensive income of associates 
and joint ventures1

1,038,024 -   1,038,024 316,948 -   316,948

  (32,374,036)   (2,963,718)   (35,337,754)   41,435,608   (4,414,726)   37,020,882

1  The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the exchange differences and share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and associates from 
the investment in subsidiaries and associates as at December 31, 2016 considering the Group has no plan for disposal of those investments.

The income tax (charged) / credited directly to equity does not exist for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, is as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Beginning
balance

Statement of
profit or loss

Other 
comprehensive 

income (loss)
Issuance of

subsidiary
Exchange

difference
Ending

balance

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   485,919   (731,694)   -     -     -     (245,775)

Available-for-sale financial assets (13,521,047) 2,173,092 4,222,058 -   173,794 (6,952,103)

Deferred income tax liabilities (13,035,128) 1,441,398 4,222,058 -   173,794 (7,197,878)

Provision for impairment 2,463,406 5,028,148 -   -   (94,179) 7,397,375

Investments in subsidiaries and associates 33,304,979 4,743,228 -   (8,187,126) -   29,861,081

Intangible assets 3,583,988 6,254,050 -   -   (35,140) 9,802,898

Accrued expenses 27,279,083 16,461,838 -   -   174,357 43,915,278

Withholdings 28,792,306 3,575,312 -   -   1,816,847 34,184,465

Net defined benefit liabilities 45,876,413 15,193,322 (7,185,776) -   165 53,884,124

Provision for social contribution 10,890,000 (1,210,000) -   -   -   9,680,000

Tax losses and tax credit carryforward 30,619,999 (20,294,985) -   -   -   10,325,014

Others 47,397,849 24,218,521 -   -   1,799,525 73,415,895

Deferred income tax assets 230,208,023 53,969,434 (7,185,776) (8,187,126) 3,661,575 272,466,130

Deferred income tax assets, net   217,172,895   55,410,832   (2,963,718)   (8,187,126)   3,835,369   265,268,252

(KrW in thousands)

2015

Beginning 
balance

Statement of
profit or loss

Other 
comprehensive 

income (loss)
Exchange

difference Ending balance

Available-for-sale financial assets   (11,841,526)   6,434,550   (8,001,761)   (112,310)   (13,521,047)

Deferred income tax liabilities (11,841,526) 6,434,550 (8,001,761) (112,310) (13,521,047)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (167,704) 653,623 -   -   485,919

Provision for impairment 2,289,450 124,694 -   49,262 2,463,406

Investments in subsidiaries and associates (880,862) 34,110,965 (267,638) 342,514 33,304,979

Intangible assets 3,342,531 184,642 -   56,815 3,583,988

Accrued expenses 23,620,854 3,564,783 -   93,446 27,279,083

Withholdings 16,257,712 11,642,724 -   891,870 28,792,306

Net defined benefit liabiliies 31,602,694 10,418,733 3,854,673 313 45,876,413

[Continued]
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Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding: 10,651,756,248 ÷ 366 days = 29,103,159 shares

(in number of shares)

2016

Number of ordinary shares 
outstanding Cumulative amount

Beginning balance 29,200,768 10,687,481,088

Treasury shares acquisition (393,355) (35,724,840)

10,651,756,248

Weighted average number of common stock outstanding: 10,746,726,565 ÷ 365 days = 29,443,086 shares

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of 

all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Group has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible bonds and share options. 

The convertible bond is assumed to have been converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense 

less the tax effect. For the share options, a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value 

(determined as the average annual market share price of the Group’s shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached 

to outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that would have been issued 

assuming the share options are exercised.

The Group did not issue any dilutive securities for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. Therefore, basic earnings per shares are 

identical to diluted earnings per share.

(in number of shares)

2015

Number of ordinary shares 
outstanding Cumulative amount

Beginning balance 29,466,667 10,755,333,455

Treasury shares acquisition (265,899) (8,606,890)

10,746,726,565

2016

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company   761,140,055

Adjustment for net profit of non-controlling interest 6,751,820

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company for diluted earnings per share 754,388,235

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 29,103,159

Diluted earnings per share (in Korean won)   25,921

(KrW in thousands and in number of shares)

Basic earnings per share for operating profit from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as 

follows:

30. Earnings per Share

(KrW in thousands and in number of shares)

2016 2015

Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Group   761,140,055   595,979,009

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 29,103,159 29,443,086

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations (in Korean won)   26,153   20,242

Basic earnings per share for operating profit from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as 

follows:

(KrW in thousands and in number of shares)

2016 2015

Loss from discontinued operation attributable to the ordinary equity 
holders of the Parent Company

  (11,834,381)   (77,232,523)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (thousands) 29,103,159 29,443,086

Basic loss per share from discontinued operations (in Korean won)  (407)   (2,623)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are calculated as follows:

2015

Beginning 
balance

Statement of
profit or loss

Other 
comprehensive 

income (loss)
Exchange

difference Ending balance

Provision for social contribution 19,360,000 (8,470,000) -   -   10,890,000

Tax losses and tax credit carryforward 124,799 30,495,200 -   -   30,619,999

Others 34,252,098 11,193,908 -   1,951,843 47,397,849

Deferred income tax assets 129,801,572 93,919,272 3,587,035 3,386,063 230,693,942

Deferred income tax assets, net   117,960,046   100,353,822   (4,414,726)   3,273,753   217,172,895

The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the temporary differences amounting to KRW 292,604 million (2015: 

KRW 38,114 million) from the investments in subsidiaries and associates which are not subject to disposal, tax losses amounts of KRW 

88,453 million (2015: KRW 85,108 million) which are not recoverable because of the uncertainty of future taxable income of the 

subsidiaries. The maturity of unused tax losses is 2023 for KRW 17,824 million, 2024 for KRW 38,843 million, 2025 for KRW 29,441 million 

and 2026 for KRW 2,345 million.

(KrW in thousands)
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Details of cash generated from operations and changes in assets and liabilities due to operations for the years ended December 31, 

2016 and 2015, are as follows:

31. Cash generated from Operations

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Profit for the year   759,072,951  516,986,270

Adjustments:

Impairment loss 10,858,609 825,132

Depreciation 145,653,898 142,530,955

Amortization 17,299,618 13,452,553

Gain on foreign currency transaction (13,981,035) (10,003,950)

Loss on foreign currency transaction 10,253,881 8,533,626

Gain on disposal of property and equipment (27,867,310) (1,388,875)

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,628,626 147,715

Impairment loss on property and equipment -   535,838

Gain on disposal of intangible assets (10,519) -  

Loss on disposal of intangible assets 77,727 701

Impairment loss on intangible assets 5,518,138 45,774,131

Gain on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (2,911,608) (2,938,944)

Loss on valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss

9,387,629 2,833,192

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
transaction

(5,723,290) (7,283,232)

Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
transaction

3,152,100 2,404,990

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (60,000) (5,935,374)

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets -   238,770

Impairment loss on available-for-sale financial assets 5,979,510 17,169,135

Gain on disposal of investments in subsidiaries and associates (19,201,945) (3,327,276)

Share of profit or loss of associates and joint ventures 9,440,699 1,685,214

Share-based payments 100,969,352 105,016,671

Post-employment benefits 73,438,469 56,489,426

Interest income (35,583,752) (28,199,735)

Interest expenses 6,070,381 5,743,347

Dividends income (7,817,460) (11,742,292)

Income tax expenses 353,795,315 191,311,058

Others (16,120,102) (16,362,075)

[Continued]

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Change in operating assets and liabilities:  

Increase in trade receivables (56,449,175) (66,896,343)

Increase in other receivables (86,604,790) (29,114,716)

Increase in other assets (24,323,200) (16,089,352)

Increase in other payables 10,505,246 39,559,090

Increase in accrued expenses 68,520,172 13,620,072

Increase in other current liabilities 202,774,770 146,456,303

Decrease in provisions (356,000) (2,061,864)

Decrease in net defined benefit liabilities (34,817,633) (12,894,438)

Others 9,076,738 (9,160,032)

  1,471,646,010   1,087,915,691

2016 2015

Reclassification of construction in progress   3,316,274   6,579,597

Other payables for acquisition of property and equipment 6,345,929 (18,751,737)

Other payables for the treasury shares (5,723,980) 5,723,980

Reclassification of current portion of available-for-sale financial assets 10,087,000 10,729,117

Reclassification of current portion of long-term financial instruments 18,979,767 10,033,500

Offset of provision for social contribution and prepaid expenses 726,559 10,201,412

Reclassification of current portion of provision for social contribution - 45,000,000

Reclassification of current portion of long-term borrowings and 
debentures

- 242,978,251

(KrW in thousands)

Significant transactions not affecting cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:
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Type 2016 2015

Associates Allat, NetMania, Synapsoft, Cloud Application Factory, BonAngels
Pacemaker Fund, Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association, ARO In Tech,
LINE Bros., Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early Stage Start-up
Fund, Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup Investment Fund, Epic 
Voyage, LINE Music, Green Monster, AUBE, Digital Media Partners II, 
NAVER KIP Cheer up! Gamers Fund, NAVERSuprema Youth Foundation 
No.5 Investment Fund, NSPACE, Silicon Cube, One Store, Transcosmos 
Online Communication, Beijing Lantu Times Technology Company 
Limited, Nplegames, Alchera, Trust Us, Sound of Heart Culture Industry 
Special Purpose Company, Yume no Machi Souzou Iinkai, Mirae 
Asset-NAVER New Growth Fund 1

Allat, NetMania, Synapsoft, Cloud Application Factory, BonAngels
Pacemaker Fund, Korea Contents Mutual Aid Association, ARO In 
Tech, LINE Bros., Future Creation NAVER Stonebridge Early Stage 
Start-up Fund, Future Creation NAVER-SB Startup Investment Fund, 
Epic Voyage, LINE Music, green Monster, AUBE, Digital Media 
Partners II, NAVER KIP Cheer up! gamers Fund, NAVER-Suprema 
Youth Foundation No.5 Investment Fund, NSAPCE

Joint ventures YTN PLUS, LINE Project Cooperative, Collab+LINE, Lantu Games 
Limited, JobsN, RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY, Travel+, Cineplay, China 
Lab, Designpress

YTN PLUS, LINE Project Cooperative,
Collab+LINE, Lantu games Limited

As at December 31, 2016, the Group has borrowing agreement with Kookmin bank and Shinhan bank of up to KRW 90,000 million. And 

the Group has borrowing agreement with Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Shinhan Bank Japan and Mizuho Corporate Bank of up 

to JPY 24,380 million.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group was provided with guarantees up to KRW 1,446 million from Seoul Guarantee Insurance and up to 

KRW 910 million from Shinhan bank regarding the performance guarantee insurance.

As at December 31, 2016 the Company entered into a construction contract amounting to KRW 26,700 million with Doosan Engineering 

& Construction Co., Ltd in relation to a construction of new building for the Company.

As at December 31, 2016, the Group is a defendant in lawsuit cases filed with regard to patent, copyright and compensation for damage. 

The results of the cases are uncertain for the present and the management recognizes the provision in relation to the potential loss in 

case any of the lawsuit cases require the recognition of the provision.

The Group acquired Japanese government bonds and the acquisition cost of which are equivalent to the value of cyber money issued by 

the Group and used in internet sites. The acquisition of the bonds is required by Act on Settlement of Fund in Japan. They are recognized 

as held-to-maturity financial assets.

32. Commitments and Contingencies

Details of associates and other related parties that have sales and other transactions with the Group or have outstanding balances as at 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

33. Related Party Transactions

Transactions with related parties including operating revenues and expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as 

follows:

2016

Operating revenues Operating expenses

Associates ARO In Tech   -     558,227

Allat -   2,862,208

One Store 9,180,496 38

NSAPCE 5,000 22,700

LINE Music 4,751,086 104,721

AUBE 9,766,231 3,132

Green Monster 3,860 1,198,557

Cloud Application Factory -   2,400

Synapsoft -   1,077,186

Transcosmos Online Communication 190,894 20,652

Yume no Machi Souzou Iinkai 6,969 20,047

Trust Us 1,384 -  

Alchera -   60,000

Silicon Cube -   300

Joint ventures YTN PLUS -   485,368

Collab+LINE -   29,770

JobsN 462,757 1,257,081

LANTU GAMES 1,120 -  

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY 1,166,019 36,835

China Lab -   166,000

Designpress -   269,000

Travel+ -   249,000

(KrW in thousands)
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(KrW in thousands)

2015

Operating revenues Operating expenses

Associates ARO In Tech   -     478,303

Allat -   4,040,207

LINE Bros. 13 14,007

LINE Music 1,440,762 -  

AUBE 2,119,819 2,556

Cloud Application Factory -   113,660

Synapsoft -   50,000

Joint ventures YTN PLUS -   481,773

Collab+LINE -   97,707

LANTU GAMES 1 -  

2016

Receivables Payables

Trade 
receivables

Other 
receivables

Trade 
payables

Leasehold 
deposits and 

others

Associates ARO In Tech   -     -     51,165   -  

Allat 1,523,775 -   -   -  

One Store 191,043 -   -   -  

NSAPCE -   -   3,300 -  

LINE Music 836,291 84,610 150,629 -  

AUBE 973,811 1,037 -   -  

Green Monster -   555,212 78,335 59,291

Synapsoft -   -   1,000,000 -  

Silicon Cube -   301,000 -   -   

Transcosmos Online Communication 48,131 -   -   -  

Yume no Machi Souzou Iinkai 4,702 - 7,617 -

Joint ventures YTN PLUS -   -   56,533 -  

JobsN 110,000 -   190,300 -  

Cineplay -   -   83,000 -  

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY 434,180 376,578 36,897 -  

(KrW in thousands)

Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

(KrW in thousands)

2015

Receivables Payables

Trade 
receivables

Other 
receivables

Trade 
payables

Leasehold 
deposits and 

others

Associates ARO In Tech   -     -     75,516   -  

Allat 2,045,357 -   -   -  

LINE Bros. - 2,392 -   -  

LINE Music 309,113 83,804 76,564 66,957

AUBE 352,909 261 -   -

Joint ventures YTN PLUS - - 44,330 -  

2016 2015

Short-term employee benefits   2,901,275   4,080,000

Post-employment benefits 765,912  785,040

Other long-term benefits 1,571,699 1,265,835

(KrW in thousands)

No provisions are held against receivables from related parties.

In addition to the above receivables, the Group owns convertible bonds, amounting to KRW 843 million of Trust Us Co., Ltd., amounting 

to KRW 300 million of Silicon Cube, associates of the Group, issued as at December 31, 2016.

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive), members of the Executive Committee, the Group Secretary and the 

Head of Internal Audit. The compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services for the years ended December 31, 

2016 and 2015, consists of:
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On February 19, 2016, the Group acquired 50.49% of shares of M.T. Burn Corporation which is providing Hike service (mobile 

advertisement service) in Japan.

The following table summarizes the consideration paid, and the book value of assets acquired, and liabilities assumed:

34. Business Combination

The Group consists of a single segment. Financial performances of the segment is periodically reported to chief operating decision-

maker and there are no differences between the financial performances of the segment and consolidated statements of comprehensive 

income.

Financial performance by each service provided for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

35. Operating Segment Information

1 The non-controlling interest was measured using the proportionate amount of the fair value of identifiable net assets.

2 Goodwill was recognized as the acquisition is expected to strengthen the advertising platform function of mobile messenger service.

Amount

Consideration

Cash and cash equivalents   5,537,467

Non-controlling interest1 854,987

Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Assets Cash and cash equivalents 939,799

Trade and other receivables 902,984

Property and equipment 1,887

Intangible assets 4,392,476

Deferred tax assets 907,545

Subtotal 7,144,691

Liabilities Trade and other payables 1,039,991

Borrowings 2,801,441

Deferred tax liabilities 1,525,063

Other liabilities 51,160

Subtotal 5,417,655

Total identifiable assets 1,727,036

Goodwill2   4,665,418

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Operating 
Revenue Ratio (%)

Operating 
Revenue Ratio (%)

Advertisement   2,966,970,020 73.76   2,322,379,265 71.37

Contents 924,862,501 22.99 848,823,100 26.09

Others 130,797,099 3.25 82,727,987 2.54

Total   4,022,629,620 100.00   3,253,930,352 100.00

Financial performance by each region for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

1 Financial instruments and deferred tax assets are not included.

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets1

2016 2015 2016 2015

Domestic   2,592,038,787   2,168,684,473   973,821,879   918,623,852

Japan 1,341,473,792 1,027,029,890 160,115,412 121,554,109

Others 89,117,041 58,215,989 43,678,792 18,172,599

Total   4,022,629,620   3,253,930,352   1,177,616,083   1,058,350,560

(KrW in thousands)
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The Group’s subsidiary, LINE Corp. decided to terminate the service of its subsidiary, MIXRADIO, at the Board of Directors’ meeting in 

February 2016 and proceeds to liquidate the subsidiary by end of the first half of 2017. The profit and loss on the related operations are 

presented as discontinued operations. The comparative financial statements have been restated.

Profit (loss) from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

36. Discontinued Operation

The profit or loss allocated to non-controlling interests and accumulated non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are material to 

the Group for the year ended December 31, 2016:

37. Information for Non-controlling Interests

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Operating revenues   (976,771)   (2,773,252)

Operating expenses (27,366,956) (65,247,860)

Operating loss (28,343,727) (68,021,112)

Other income 2,033,124 1,317,449

Other expenses 6,410,292 (48,064,105)

Finance income 1,096,716 234,102

Finance costs (99,087) (390,800)

Loss before income tax (18,902,682) (114,924,465)

Income tax benefit (7,068,301) (37,691,942)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations   (11,834,381)   (77,232,523)

Summarized cash flows activities for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:

2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities   (55,059,769)   (59,341,336)

Cash flows from investing activities 260,379 (21,864,785)

Cash flows from financing activities 1,903,694 11,858,203

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2,602,168) 3,013,416

Net cash outflow   (55,497,864)   (66,334,502)

(KrW in thousands)

(KrW in thousands)

2016

Noncontrolling
interest rate

(%)

Accumulated 
non-controlling
interests at the

beginning of
the year

Changes in
non-controlling

interests by
share issuance
of subsidiaries

Profit or loss
allocated to

noncontrolling
interests

Other
comprehensive

loss allocated
to noncontrolling

interests Others

Accumulated
noncontrolling

interests at
the end of

the year

LINE 19.65 143,942,168 229,888,041 16,413,198 (16,261,376) 100,992,243 474,974,274

1   During the year, the Group recognized 19.65% of non-controlling interests due to share issuance and exercised stock option of LINE, subsidiary of the Group. This resulted in 

an increase in non-controlling interests of  KRW 296,364 million and increase in equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company of  KRW 1,068,061 million.

(KrW in thousands)

2016 2015

Disposal of interests in a subsidiary without loss of control1   1,068,061,004   -  

Net effect on the Parent Company’s equity   1,068,061,004   -  

On January 2, 2017, the Group established K-Fund I by investing EUR 4.3 million with the resolution of Board of Directors as at September 

29, 2016.

On January 2, 2017, the Group established NAVER LABS by investing KRW 40 billion with the resolution of Board of Directors as at 

December 14, 2016.

With the resolution of Board of Directors as at January 25, 2017, the Group plans to split-off the webtoon business division and establish 

NAVER webtoon on May 1, 2017

38. Events After the Reporting Period

2016 2015

Book amount of non-controlling interests acquired   (296,363,580)   -  

Consideration paid to non-controlling interests 1,380,476,641 -  

Net effect on the share premium attributable to owners of the Parent 
Company

  1,084,113,061   -  

Net effect on the other components of the equity attributable to owners of 
the Parent Company

  (16,052,057)   -  

(KrW in thousands)

Effects of transactions with non-controlling interests on the equity attributable to owners of the Parent Company for the years ended 

December 31, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:
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NAVER Corp.’s current affiliated companies

As of December 31, 2016, there are a total of

58 affiliated companies including NAVER Corp.

Subsidiary

Sub-subsidiary

NAVER NAVER Business Platform / 100.00%

Online information distrubution business

NAVER I&S / 100.00%

Business support, workforce supply, employee 

dispatch,and software development

LINE / 80.35%

Mobile service development

NAVER China / 100.00%

Software development and distribution

Search Solution / 100.00%

Software development and distribution

N-Visions / 100.00%

Exhibition and performance planning business

Camp Mobile / 100.00%

Software development and distribution

Entry Labs / 100.00%

Software development and distribution

Works Mobile / 100.00%

Applied software development and distribution

WAV Media / 100.00%

Mobile service development

SNOW / 95.09%

Software development and distribution

WEBTOON Entertainment / 100.00%

Mobile service development

SB Next Media Innovation Fund / 88.89%

Investment

NAVER Business
Platform

NAVER Business Platform Asia Pacific / 100.00%

IT infrastructure operations

NAVER Business Platform America / 100.00%

IT infrastructure operations

NAVER Business Platform Europe / 100.00%

IT infrastructure operations

LINE Plus LINE Play / 100.00%

Software development 

LINE Euro-Americas / 100.00%

Mobile service marketing

LINE Taiwan / 100.00%

Mobile service operations 

LINE Company (Thailand) / 99.95%

Mobile service operations

LINE Digital Technology (Shanghai) / 100.00%

Mobile service marketing 

LINE Vietnam / 95.00%

Mobile service operations

LINE Digital Technologies India / 100.00%

Mobile service operations 

PT.LINE PLUS INDONESIA / 99.84%

Mobile service operations

LINE Line Business Partners / 100.00%

Search advertising service

LINE Plus / 100.00%

Portal and Internet services

LINE Fukuoka / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

LINE BIZ+ / 100.00%

Mobile payment system planning and development

LINE Book Distribution / 52.00% 

Mobile service development

LINE Ventures / 100.00%

Investment

LINE C&I / 100.00%

Investment

LINE Game Global Gateway / 100.00%

Investment

MIXRADIO / 100.00%

Mobile service development

LINE Friends / 100.00%

Character equipment and doll wholesale and retail

LINE Life Global Gateway / 100.00%

Investment 

LINE-NAVER Game Investment Fund / 100.00%

Investment 

LINE Mobile(formerly, LMN) / 100.00%

Telecommunications service

M.T.Burn / 50.49%

Mobile advertising service business

NAVER I&S Incomms / 100.00%

Other contract services

Greenweb Service / 100.00%

Other contract services

NHN Technology Service / 100.00%

Software consulting, development and distribution

NIT Service / 100.00%

Software development and consulting

CommPartners / 100.00%

Portal and other Internet services, call center and 

telemarketing services

LINE BIZ+ LINE Pay / 100.00%

Mobile payment system planning and development 

Line Biz Plus / 100.00%

Software development and distribution

Line Biz+ Taiwan / 100.00%

Mobile payment system planning and development

LINE Pay Webpay Holdings / 100.00%

Mobile payment system planning and development

LINE Company
(Thailand)

RABBIT-LINE PAY COMPANY 

(formerly, LINE BIZ PLUS) / 50.00%

Mobile payment service

WEBTOON
Entertainment

Watong Entertainment Limited / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

Camp Mobile Iconnect / 100.00%

Software development

Quicket / 51.01%

Software development and consulting

Gogolook / 70.00%

Mobile service development 

Camp Mobile / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

Works Mobile Works Mobile Japan / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

SNOW SNOW China / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

SNOW Japan / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

MIXRADIO MixRadio Entertainment India / 100.00%

Mobile service operations

Webpay Holdings Webpay / 100.00%

Mobile payment system planning and development

AFFILIATES
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CORPORATE HISTORY / AWARDS & ACCOLADES

CORPORATE HISTORY AWARDS & ACCOLADES

1999. 06    Incorporated NAVERcom and launched 

search portal “NAVER”
 06  Launched children’s portal “Junior NAVER”
 12  Launched game portal “Hangame”

2000. 07  Acquired Hangame Communications,   
   One-Cue, and Search Solutions
 09  Established Hangame Japan

2001. 09  Changed the corporate name to NHN 
   (Next Human Network)

2002. 10  Listed on KOSDAQ(Korean Securities 
   Dealers Automated Quotations)

2003. 10  Integrated Japanese subsidiaries and 
   named NHN Japan
 12    Acquired Future Valley, a company 

specialized in developing digital content 
transmission technology

2004. 04  Ranked No.1 on KOSDAQ in market 
   capitalization
 06    Signed a contract on ‘Ourgame’ service with 

Sea Rainbow Holdings Corporation in China
 11  Established NHN Games, a game 
   development studio

2005. 07  Launched online donation portal 
   ‘Happybean’
 07  Incorporated NHN USA 
 08  Established NHN Services, an internet 
   service management company

2006. 06  Acquired a search company ‘1noon’
 10  Acquired Datachorus, a data storage 
   management solution company

2007. 05  NHN USA started official services of the 
   game portal 'ijji.com'
 11  Established NAVER Japan
 12  Established NHST (Next Human Search 
   Technology)

2008. 11  Transferred to KOSPI

2009. 01  Acquired ‘me2day’, a micro blog website
 02  Acquired ‘Wingbus’, a tour guide website
 05  Established the Happybean Foundation to 
   strengthen the online donation culture
 05  Spun NHN Corporation off and established 
   ‘NHN Business Platform (NBP)’

 07    ITOPF Corporation, a mobile coupon 
distribution solution company, 

   became an affiliate
 08  Changed Corporate Identity(CI) in 
   celebration of the 10th anniversary

2010. 01    Signed an “Agreement to Promote a 
Women-Friendly Corporate Culture” with the 
Ministry of Gender Equality

 04    Established NHN Investment, specializing in 
asset management and venture investment 
business

 04  NHN Japan acquired ‘livedoor.com’
 05  Established NHN Cultural Foundation
 07  Merged ‘Wingbus’, a tour guide website
 07    NHN Social Enterprise obtained the social 

company certification and changed the 
name to N-Visions

2011. 01  NBP started full-fledged autonomous 
   advertisement service
 01  Orange Crew, a smart device game 
   developer, became an affiliate
 04  NTS (NHN Technology Services) became 
   an affiliate
 09  KaN Communications, a joint venture with 
   KT Corp, became an affiliate

2012. 01    Merged three entities, NHN Japan, NAVER 
Japan, and Livedoor to become ‘NHN Japan’

 04    Established ‘The Sarang’ for hiring vulnerable 
social group, jointly with Webzen

 08  Established NHN Singapore Pte., Ltd.

2013. 03    Established ‘LINE Plus Corporation.’ to be 
responsible for global business of  
LINE service

 03  Established 'Camp Mobile’ to be 
   responsible for mobile business
 04    Changed the name of NHN Japan to  

LINE Corp. and spun off game business
 08    Spun off NHN Entertainment (formerly known 

as ‘Hangame’) and changed name to NAVER 
Corp.

 12    Camp Mobile acquired Gogolook, a 
Taiwanese Who's Call service provider.

2014. 07    Acquired ads and platform business of 
NAVER Business Platform to NAVER 

 07  Established LINE C&I to secure and 
   manage mobile contents

2015. 04  Established Works Mobile specializing in 
corporate collaboration service 

 06  Acquired Entry Korea, a SW education 
platform developer

2016. 07   LINE Corp double listed on 

NYSE(New York) and TSE(tokyo)
 08 Establised SNOW Inc.

2000. 02    Won the 1st grand prize in digital information 
technology (Hankyoreh Daily)

 05    Ranked No.1 Korean search engine (Korea 
Management Association Consulting)

 12    Won the grand prize in internet portal 
business (Chosun Ilbo)

2001. 06    Won ‘Internet Grand Prix’ award in 
entertainment field  
(New Business Management)

2002. 05    Ranked No.1 website game provider in Korea 
for 3 consecutive years (Korea Management 
Association Consulting)

 10    Awarded for excellence in privacy protection 
(Korea Association of Information and 
Telecommunication)

 12    Obtained the certification as an exemplary 
company in using genuine software  
(Korea Software Property-right Council)

 12    Won the Best Internet Company of the Year 
award (Korea Internet Corporations 
Association and Journalist Association of 
Korea)

2003. 03    Ranked 1st in search portal service sector of 
NCSI

 07    Won the grand prize of the Korean 
Technology Fast 500 Growth Company 
Award (Deloitte)

 08    Ranked No.1 internet portal of the Korea 
Service-Quality Index  
(Korean Standards Association)

 12    NAVER’s “Knowledge Search” service was 
selected as one of the “Hits of the Year,” 
(Samsung Economic Research Institute and 
Joongang Ilbo)

 12    Won the Presidential Award for the 
contribution to the advancement of Korean 
software industry

2004. 08    Ranked No.1 internet portal of the Korea 
Service-Quality Index (Korean Standards 
Association)

 12    Won the grand prize of the ‘Web Award Korea 
2004’ (Web Award Committee)

2005. 03  Won the 1st Namoo Prize of the ‘I-People 
   Award’ (joins.com)
 06    Won the grand prize of Internet Grand Prix  

(New Business Management)
 06    Ranked No.1 internet portal in Korea’s Brand 

Star Portal Site field (Brand Stock)
 09    Ranked No.1 internet portal of the Korea 

Service-Quality Index for 3 consecutive 
years(Korean Standards Association)

 10    Won the ‘CEO Who Brightens Korea’ award 
(Korea Economic Daily and Seoul National 
University Industry-Academy Cooperation 
Foundation)

 11  Won the grand prize of the Korean 
   IR Awards (Korea IR Association)
 12    Won the grand prize in the field of social 

contribution at the ‘IMI Management Awards’
 12    Won the best award in the ‘Internet Portal 

Company of the Year’ field (Kinternet)

2006. 06    Won the ‘Best KOSDAQ Company’ Award 
(KOSDAQ Listed Companies Association)

 06    Became the first internet company to be 
awarded the ‘Good Design’ mark  
(Korea Institute of Design Promotion)

 09    Ranked No.1 internet portal of the Korea 
Service-Quality Index for 4 consecutive 
years (Korean Standards Association)

 10    Hangame was ranked as No.1 game portal of 
the National Brand Competitiveness Index 
for 2 consecutive years  
(Korea Productivity Center)

2007. 04    Received the 7th Presidential Citation for 
excellent gender equality employment 
(Ministry of Labor)

 11    Won the Presidential Prize of the Korea’s 
Internet Awards (Ministry of Government 
Administration and Home Affairs)

 11    Won the grand prize of the Korean IR Awards 
(Korea IR Association)

 12    Selected for the Technology Fast 500 Asia 
Pacific for 5 consecutive years  
(Deloitte Consulting)

 12    Won the ‘Innovation Grand Prize’ of the Web 
Award Korea 2007 (Web Award Committee)

 12    Selected as an excellent website for 
protecting teenagers

2008. 02    Entered top 60 companies in shareholder 
value performance index of the CMT industry 
(Oliver Wyman)

 02    Selected as ‘Korea’s Most Admired 
Companies 2008, All-Star 3’ (Korean 
Management Association Consulting)

 03    Ranked No.1 search portal service of the 
National Customer Satisfaction Index (NCSI) 
for 3 consecutive years  
(Korea Productivity Center)

 04    Entered the ‘Global 2000 Companies’ 
(Forbes)

 09    Entered the ‘Asia’s Excellent 50 Companies’ 
(Businessweek)

 11    Won the Prime Minister Prize in design 
management field at the 2008 Korea Design 
Award (Ministry of Knowledge Economy and 
Korea Institute of Design Promotion)

 12    Ranked 5th in the ‘Most Profitable Companies 
in 2008’ (Businessweek)

2009. 04    Hangame was ranked 2nd in web board 
gaming field (Korea Productivity Center)

 04    Ranked No.1 search portal service of the 
National Customer Satisfaction Index (NCSI) 
for 4 consecutive years  
(Korea Productivity Center)

 06    Won the Best Venture Award among venture 
businesses with more than KRW 100 billion 
in annual sales  
(Korea Venture Business Association)

 09    Selected as one of the ‘Excellent Asia-Pacific 
50 Companies’ (Forbes)

 10    NAVER was ranked No.1 in Korea 
Service-Quality Index for 6 consecutive 
years (Korean Standards Association)

 11    NAVER was ranked No.1 in Korean Customer 
Satisfaction Index for 7 consecutive years  
(Korea Management Association)

 11  NAVER was ranked 5th among worldwide 
   search portals (Comscore)
 12    Won the grand prize in mobile web & media/

information service field (Web Award Korea)
 12    Won the C9 grand prize of the 2009 Korea’s 

Game Award (Ministry of Culture, Sports and 
Tourism)

 12    Selected as one of the ‘Promising 
Asia-Pacific 50 Companies’ (Forbes)

 12    Ranked 3rd in the ‘Top 100 Brands of Korea in 
2009’ (Brandstock)

 12    Won the grand prize of the ‘2009 Korea 
Sharing and Volunteer Awards’ (Hankook Ilbo)

 12    Won the Minister Prize for the ‘Library 
Donations’ (Ministry of Culture, Sports and 
Tourism)

2010. 04        Ranked No.1 search portal service of the 
National Customer Satisfaction Index (NCSI) 
for 5 consecutive years  
(Korea Productivity Center) 

 06    NAVER’s campaign ‘Hangeul, beauty in every 
letter’ won the PR Lions Silver prize (Cannes 
Lions)

 08    Won 5 main awards in brand design field  
(Red dot Award)

 08    NAVER’s 9 contents including intro clips of 
Green Window and Dialogue in the Dark won 
main design prizes (iF Communication Award)

 08    NAVER’s annual report won gold prize in 
internet service and publication/production 
field, and bronze prize in design field  
(Annual Report Competition 2010 Awards)

 12    Selected as one of the top 10 tech 
companies representing Asia  
(Business Insider)

 12    Won 15 awards in mobile web & media/
information service field (Web Award Korea)

2011. 04    Ranked No.1 search portal service of the 
National Customer Satisfaction Index (NCSI) 
for 6 consecutive years  
(Korea Productivity Center) 

 07    Won the ‘Excellent Revenue-Generating 
Venture Business’ prize (Small & Medium 
Business Administration and Korea Venture 
Business Association)

 08    NAVER’s annual report won gold prize in 
internet service and photograph field, silver 
in publication field, and bronze in design field 
(Annual Report Competition 2011 Awards)

 10    Green Factor won the excellent prize of the 
Korea Architecture Award 2011

 11    NAVER App Square and Photo Printing 
Package won the main awards in 
communication field (iF Design Award)

 12    Won the grand prize of the 2011 Information 
Protection Award (Korea Communications 
Commission and Korea Internet & Security 
Agency)

2012. 04    Ranked No.1 search portal service of the 
National Customer Satisfaction Index (NCSI) 
for 7 consecutive years  
(Korea Productivity Center)

 06    NAVER App Square, NHN NEXT Identity and 
others won 4 main awards in brand design 
field (Red dot Award)

 07    NAVER Real Estate App, NHN Diary Package 
and other won 4 awards brand design field 
(IDEA 2012 Award)

 10    Won the Presidential Prize of the ‘2012 Digital 
Territory Expo’ (Ministry of Land , Transport 
and Maritime Affairs)

 12    NHN NEXT Identity, LINE, and others won 7 
main awards in brand design field  
(iF Communication Award)

 12    NAVER Music won the best prize of the  
1st Korean TV App Award in daily life field  
(Korea Communications Commission)

 12    Won the best prize of the 21st Good Company 
Award in non-manufacturing industry field  

(Citizens’ Coalition for Economic Justice)
2013. 04    Ranked No.1 search portal service of the 

National Customer Satisfaction Index (NCSI) 
for 8 consecutive years  

(Korea Productivity Center)

2014. 02    Won the lifetime achievement award from 
Korean Bar Association

 02    Won design awards in four sectors (iF Award) 
(including design center GAK)

 04    Won the Minister Prize in employment sector 
(Ministry of Health and Welfare) 

 05    Received the Presidential Citation for 
excellent gender equality employment 

(Ministry of Employment and Labor)
 07    Won the brand design awards in six sectors 

(IDEA) (including Hangeul Campaign)

 08    NAVER SDF Data Square won design awards 
including the best of the best in five sectors 
(red dot Award).

 10    NAVER Green Factory obtained the LEED 
Platinum certification with the world's top 
record

 12    Won the educational donation award (Ministry 
of Education)

 12    Won the Best Contribution Award for 
supporting software industry (Ministry of 
Science, ICT and Future Planning)

2015. 01    LINE Friends won the best prestige awards 
LIMA and ALA in licensing.

 02    Won design awards in eight sectors of iF 
Award (including NAVER Library and TOSS)

 02    LINE won the best international startup prize 
at the Crunch Award.

 08    NAVER Subway Route Map won design 
awards in five sectors including the best of 
the best in social responsibility sector  
(red dot Award).

 08    LINE Selfie app B612 won design awards in 
two sectors including the best of the best in 
communication design sector  
(red dot Award).

 08    NAVER Service History Wall won the Gold 
Prize in digital design sector (IDEA).

 09    Won the Minister Prize at the 1st 
Enterprise-Farming Industry Co-prosperity 
Competition (Ministry for Food, Agriculture, 
Forestry and Fisheries)

 11    Won the Minister Prize in the public-private 
sector of the 3rd Software Protection Award 
(Ministry of Science, ICT and Future Planning)

2016. 01    Ranked No.1 in the search portal service of 
NCSI (National Customers Satisfaction Index) 
for 10 consecutive years

 08    Named as one of 'The World Most Innovative 
Companies' by Forbes for three consecutive 
years

 10    Ranked No. 1 in the search portal service of 
KCSI (Korean Customer Satisfaction Index) 
for 13 consecutive years (Korea 
Management Association)

 10    Won the presidential citation at the 38th 
Korea Energy Efficiency Awards (Ministry of 
the Interior)



152 INVESTOR INFORMATION

INVESTOR INFORMATION
P

lan
n

e
d

 &
 D

e
sig

n
e

d
 b

y
 IR

 P
L

U
S
 +

8
2

-2
-5

5
7-9

5
9

2

NAME OF COMPANY  NAVER Corporation (KOSPI 035420)

CEO  SANG-HUN KIM

DATE OF ESTABLISHMENT   June 2, 1999

CAPITAL  KRW 16,481,339,500

HEAD OFFICE    NAVER Green Factory, 6, Buljeong-ro , Bundang-gu, Seongnam-si, Gyeonggi-do, 

Korea (Postal code: 13561)

HOMEPAgE  www.navercorp.com

MAJOR SERVICES
Internet Services 

Internet Services naver.com

Junior NAVER, children’s online portal jr.naver.com

Happybean, online donation portal happybean.naver.com

Matome, user-generated contents service in Japan matome.naver.jp

Livedoor, online comprehensive portal in Japan livedoor.com

Mobile Services 
Mobile NAVER m.naver.com

LINE, mobile messenger line.me/ko/

BAND, mobile community service band.us/home

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES (As of december 31, 2016)

NAVER Corp.: 2,693 persons

STOCK INFORMATION (As of december 31, 2016)

Number of common shares outstanding: 32,962,679

Market capitalization: KRW 25.55 trillion

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Samil PricewaterhouseCoopers
Address: 92, Hangang-daero, Yongsan-gu, Seoul, Korea

Homepage: http://www.pwc.com/kr/en

Tel: +82-2-3781-3131

Fax: +82-2-3781-3196

DISCLAIMER
This report does not contain a complete description of NAVER 

Corporation’s business performance. All investments involve an 

element of risk, and the performances described herein must not 

be taken as a guarantee of future results. Executives and employees 

of NAVER Corporation and its affiliates are not liable for losses or 

damages arising from investments or business decisions made by a 

third party based on the information contained herein.

IR INFORMATION
The 2016 Annual Report and recent investment information on 

NAVER Corporation can be found in both Korean and English on 

NAVER Corporation’s website (www.navercorp.com).

CONTACTS
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact the following.

NAVER IR/Asset Management
Tel: +82-1588-3830

Fax: +82-31-784-1000

E-mail: dl_ir@navercorp.com






